o o w >

CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

AGENDA
PUBLIC HEARING FOLLOWED BY REGULAR BOARD MEETING

BRESNAN MEETING CENTER
Wednesday, October 14, 2015
7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARING

ORDINANCE NO. 602: BOND ORDINANCE

The Public Hearing is to discuss and receive public comments on the intent to issue $1 092,700 in
General Obligation Bonds. A Notice of Public Hearing was published in The News-Gazette on October
2,2015.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Immediately Following Public Hearing

CALL TO ORDER
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
COMMUNICATIONS

PRESENTATIONS

1. Audit — Martin, Hood, Friese & Associates, LLC
2. Clearview North Phase |, Tom Jordan, Fehr-Graham

TREASURER’S REPORT
1. Acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report for the Month of September 2015

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

1. Volunteer of the Month
2. General Announcements

COMMITTEE REPORT

1. Champaign Parks Foundation

REPORT OF OFFICERS
1. Attorney’s Report

2. President’'s Report
a. 10-year Board Member Service Anniversary Award — Jane Solon

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.




Regular Board Meeting
Wednesday, October 14, 2015
Page 2

. CONSENT AGENDA
All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately.

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, September 9, 2015
2. Approval of Minutes of the Study Session, September 23, 2015

3. Approval of Bid for Hard Court Replacement

4. Approval of Bid for Trash/Dumpster Service

J. NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval of Disbursements as of October 12, 2015
Staff recommends approval of disbursements for the period beginning September 9, 2015 and
ending October 12, 2015.

2. Acceptance of the FY14-15 Audit
Staff is requesting acceptance of the FY14-15 Annual Audit. The audit has been previously
reviewed by the Treasurer and Executive Director.

3. Approval to Solicit Bids for the Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Staff is requesting confirmation authorizing the Treasurer to solicit bids for the issuance of
$1,092,700 in General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of providing funds to pay for the building,
maintaining, improving and protecting the parks and boulevards of the Park District and for the
payment of expenses incident thereto, as provided in a resolution adopted by the Board at its
Regular Meeting held September 9, 2015.

4. Approval of a Resolution Estimating Taxes to be Levied for FY16-17
Staff is requesting approval of a Resolution setting the tax levy for fiscal year beginning May 1,
2016 and ending April 30, 2017 and scheduling a public hearing on the Tax Levy Ordinance for
Wednesday, November 12, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center as required by the
Truth in Taxation Act.

5. Approval of an Agreement with Champaign Telephone Company (CTC) for Network Connections
Staff is requesting approval to enter into an agreement with CTC for network connections for a
three-year period at a monthly rate of $4,133.33 and authorization for the Executive Director to
execute the agreement.

6. Approval of an Agreement with Challenger Sports, Inc.
Staff recommends approval of an agreement between Challenger Sports, Inc. and the Park District
for a period of three years, expiring in 2018, to provide trained and qualified instructor(s) to teach
youth soccer camps to children registered through the Champaign Park District and provide soccer
garments, authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreement.

7. Approval of an Agreement with The News-Gazette
Staff recommends approval of the agreement between the Park District and The News-
Gazette for radio and newspaper advertising for a period of two years.

8. Approval of an Agreement with USPS for a Postage Machine
Staff recommends approval of agreements with Neopost, USA, Inc. and its affiliate, Mailroom
Finance, Inc. for rental of a new postage meter for a three year period in the amount of $38.00
per month and maintenance of the new postage machine of $204.00 per year, and authorize
the Executive Director to execute the agreement.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.




Regular Board Meeting
Wednesday, October 14, 2015
Page 3

K. OLD BUSINESS
L. DISCUSSION ITEMS

M. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS

N. ADJOURN

NEXT MEETINGS OR EVENTS

¢ October 16, National Boss’ Day

¢ October 16, Artist Reception, 7:30 p.m., Springer Cultural Center

¢ October 17, That's What She Said, 7 p.m., Virginia Theatre

¢ October 18, Memorial Services for Robert F. Toalson, 2 p.m., McKinley Presbyterian Church
» October 26, Suspicion, 7 p.m., Virginia Theatre

* October 27, 30" Annual Halloween Funfest, 5:30 p.m., Market Place Mall

* October 27, Sabotage, 7 & 10 p.m., Virginia Theatre

* October 28, Study Session, 5:30 p.m., Bresnan Meeting Center

¢ October 28, The Lady Vanishes, 7 & 10 p.m., Virginia Theatre

» October 29, Legal Symposium, Oak Brook '

* October 29, Nightmare on Grove Street, 5:30 p.m., Douglass Community Center
¢ October 29, Spellbound, & & 10 p.m., Virginia Theatre

* October 30, Frenzy, 7 & 10 p.m., Virginia Theatre

¢ October 31, Halloween

» November 2, Daylight Savings

+ November 3, Election

» November 6, IAPD Legal Symposium, Hamburger University in Oak Brook

» November 9, Foundation Board Meeting, 4 p.m., Bresnan Meeting Center

» November 11, Veterans Day, Administrative Offices Closed

 November 12, Public Hearing followed by the Regular Board Meeting, 7 p.m., Bresnan Meseting Center
» November 13, Bach’s Lunch Concert, 12 p.m., Springer Cultural Center

* November 14, Double Indemnity, 7 & 10 p.m., Virginia Theatre

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.




August 31, 2015

To the Board of Commissioners
Champaign Park District

706 Kenwood Road
Champaign, Illinois 61821

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Champaign Park District (the District) for the year ended April 30, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. We have communicated such information in our correspondence to the Board President
on June 29, 2015. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit:

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies
was not changed during Fiscal Year 2015. We noted no transactions entered into by the District
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the District’s financial statements were:

1. The allowance for uncollectible amounts applied against receivables

2. The useful lives of depreciable capital assets

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Champaign Park District Page 2
August 31, 2015

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management.

e Management may choose not to correct certain misstatements due to qualitative and
quantitative factors, such as materiality. If applicable, these uncorrected
misstatements are summarized on the attached Audit Difference Evaluation
Form. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate to the financial statements taken as a whole.

o The attached Adjusting, Eliminating, and/or Reclassifying Journal Entry Reports, as
applicable, summarize misstatements that were corrected by management. These
entries were either (1) provided by management or (2) identified during the
performance of audit procedures and proposed to, discussed with, and approved by
management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
Management Representation Letter dated August 31, 2015.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a

consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements,

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Champaign Park District Page 3
August 31,2015

our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI)
(Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Funding Progress for IMRF) that
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not
audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the supplementary schedules 1 through 15, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to
the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other
procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Commissioners and
management of the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
Martin, Hood, Friese & Associates, LLC

Mark E. Czys, CPA

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sosodind uoissnasip 104 - eBuey? 03 10elgns — aaneiua) R Arsujwaad

[ArA% ¢ aon )4
[%62°2- %09°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 (pouzsw Janojjou) suoydes S/ 40 % Se Qv JedA Joud pue Jusung
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 ‘%000 (poyjaw utennd uolf) suoided /4 40 % Se gv J1esh Jusuny
0Zr'sly 912'96S'L  820'0LL'Z  £69'S0/'L | 695229 665'60¢ 198°/£92 s|ej0} uonjde Jusiuse)s [eroueul
6656~ 6656 0 ! (pouiswi onojjol) Jeak Joud pue Jeak JusLIng pauiquio)
665'6- 665'6 sieak Joud—Qy pajsnipeun jo Jo843
0 0 0 (poylow uieuNd uodl) Jeak Jualino—agy paisnipeun jJoN
payooq Ajpusnbasqns sjuswisnipe ypne sso
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €J0 1
- - SLAd Ut suoN
S19SSY 19N *uadx3 SaNUSASY Ainbg ‘dep SMOopU| sanljqen] sjessy  |'Joy saded asne) (1) A1 40] (Qv) @2usssyIq NpnyY
Jadsuejeg Bunjiopn [ejol relol lelol S|IOM (M) umouyy|jo (ainjeN) uonduasaq
pung
ui sbueyn
:Jo Juswele]s (Uspun) J8AQ Jo JUNOCWY—3oa)T SjUswWale}s [eloueuld
00€'2 JBAQ $B2UBIRYIQJ HPNY UMmouy jo Bunsiy v pun4 wnasnpy: Jun uoludo
:91eq H1MW :Aq pasedald
SL/0S/Y Q) UBWI)ElS [elOUBUIS ulsIg }ed ubredweyn JIUN [BJUSWIULIBACS)

W04 UOHEN[BAT 32UBISYIA HPNY ZZL-XO-OTV

Xapu[

(o) 9%




Ao sosodand uoissnasip 4o) - sBueys o3 wealgns — saneusy w Aeuunisid

X0 OV
1%Lz %S€°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00:0 %000 %00°0 (poyjaw sonojjos) suonded g/4 4o % se Qv Jeak Joud pue Juaing
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %000 %000 (poysow urepno uoi) suondes g/4 40 % se Qv Jeak Jualng
022’0y GS0'L1l'e  £/8'869'C  7/9'Gl9C 265116 05's6Y 89,220V s|ejo} uopded juswisle)s [eloueul
810l 1~ g10°'1L1 0 0 0 0 (poyrow Janojjol) Jeak Joud pue JesA JuslINd pauIGWos)
8L0'L)- 810°1L) sieak Joud—Qy pajsnipeun jo 10043
0 0 0 (poyrow ureun? uolj) Jeak Juslnd—Qy paisnipeun joN
; payooq Ajuanbasqgns sjusuwgsnipe jipne sse
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ejoL
0 AD Ul QUON
S)9SSY J19N “uadxgy SaNUaAay finb3g -deo SMO[jU| sanlqer] sjossy [joy 1oded asnen (1) A1 40| (gv) @2ualseyiq 1pny
Joduejeg Bunjiopp lejoL lejoL fejol =}IOM (M) umouy|jo (sunjen) uonduasaq
pung
uj 26ueyn
130 JuswRlelS (Ispun) JeAQ JO JuNnowy—3a9yg SJUSWSIE)S jRIduRUIS
00g's JSAQ Sedualagid Ipny umouy] Jo Buigsi vy pun4 uoljeaioay Jun uoiudo
:31eq HIM :Aq paledald
S1/0S/v @)eQ JUsWole)S [elouBUIY JouIsIq Med ubledwey) UM [BJUSWUIBSAOL)

Xapu|

w04 UonenjeA] saualaIq JPNY ZZL-XD-O1V

(oL oY




Auo sosodind uoissnasip 1o} - abueys o1 1o9igns — sapeus)  Areuiwiaad

TTXI OV
{%LL'6 %€9°)L %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 (poyyew Janojjou) suondes S/ Jo % se Qv teak Joud pue Jusungd
%16 %€’ %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 (pouyaw urepns uoly) suonded /4 J0 % Se Qv Jesk Juaing
(zog'coz)  €08'8€L’L  L00'GER £2¥'206'L . 86£'682  20S'L¥ £ZE'6ETC s[ejo} uolldes juswsle)s [ejoueul
0.5'8lL- 0/5'81 0 (poujew Janojjod) Jeak Joud pue JeaA jJuaund paulquio))
sieak Joud—QQy palsnipeun o 108y7]
0,581~ 0.5'8l 0 (potgew ugeuno uoly) Jeak Juaund—Qy pajsnipeun jJoN
paxooq Ajusnbasqgns sjusunsnlpe jipne ssa7
0.5'81L- 0/5'8l 0 0 0 0 0 0 IEJ0L
0.5'8L- 0/s'8L 60-dV panss| alem M G10¢ Aenuer
SJUSWSJE]S {elouUBUY U] paAIa0al 8210AU]
pajipne | A4 a4} isje Pusiq Yied eueqin
BUBQIM WOJ) S]10AUI Jo uoniod 102 Ad
Y1 Ad 84} paAiLday
S)asSsY J19N “uadxg SONUBAdY RAinbg -den smopu| saiijiger] sjessy  |Joy Jeded asne) (1) A1 10| (QVv) @3ualapiq Hpny
josueeg Bunjiopn 1ejol 1ejol jejo1 -3I0My (M) umou)[jo (aunyeN) uonduasag
pund
u} abueys
:JO Juswle)g (Japup)) JAAQ JO JUNOWY—)I31T SIUSLUAYE}S [elouRUL
002'¢ JSNQ SSoualayig Npny umouy Jo Bunsi] v uonealoay [eoads un uoido
:31eq HLM :Aq paledaig
SLI0SIY :9leq Juswale}s |eoueuly 1oUuIsIq ed ubiedwey): HUN [EJUSWIUIBACD
uLIoH uoijenfeA3 23ualagiq y¥pny Z°C7L-X0-971V
xapuj

(oL oY




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01c - 01 General

Workpaper: AJ-01 - AJE - 01 General Fund

Account Description

W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:43 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1

To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to
calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea
Wallace, Director of Finance.

01-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
01-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
01-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2

MATERIAL - to reclassify cash to the due to/due from account
related to a May 2015 deposit that was incorrectly recorded in
April 2015, Discussed with and approved by Andrea Wallace on
7/15/15.

01-01-001-15080 DUE TO/FROM FUND
01-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
01-01-001-11000 CASH IN BANK - GENERAL FUND
01-01-001-15080 DUE TO/FROM FUND

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 3

To accrue sanitary fees billed by the City of Champaign for

FY15. Entry provided by Andrea Wallace.
01-20-073-56230 SANITARY FEES AND CHARGES
01-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

01-20-075-55301 OFFICE SUPPLIES
01-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 5

To write-off a portion of the IMET Liquidating Trust account
deemed as a loss. Discussed and approved with Andrea
Wallace on 8/6/15.

01-MHFAQ1 Loss on Investment
01-01-001-12001 INVESTMENTS-RESTRICTED
Total

R-01

TB-01

TB-01

TB-05

111,729.00

79,774.00
31,955.00

111,729.00

111,729.00

184,148.00
343,000.00

184,148.00
343,000.00

527,148.00

527,148.00

14,760.00

14,760.00

14,760.00

14,760.00

1.00

93,600.00

93,600.00

93,600.00

93,600.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01c - 01 General

Workpaper: AJ-01 - AJE - 01 General Fund

Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:43 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
TO RECORD GRANT REVENUE AND TRANSFER OF FUNDS
TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND REPAIR FUND,
01-20-001-59409 TRANSFER
01-01-001-47200 GRANT PROCEEDS
Total

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01d - 02 Recreation

Workpaper: AJ-02 - AJE - 02 Recreation

Account Description WIP Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:43 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to
calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea
Wallace, Director of Finance.
02-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
02-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
02-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 PBC
To record a payable for an invoice related to the Spring soccer

season, but was not paid until July 2015. Also to reverse the prior

year accrual. Entry provided by Andrea Wallace on 7/13/15

02-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

02-40-196-49116 VENDOR PORTION OF INCOME

02-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

02-40-196-43116 VENDOR PORTION OF INCOME
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
To accrue sanitary fees billed by the City of Champaign for FY15.
Entry provided by Andrea Wallace.
02-30-076-56230 SANITARY FEES AND CHARGES
02-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 R-10
To recognize revenue on an energy efficiency rebate that was

received within 60 days of year-end. Entry was provided by

Andrea Wallace on 6/15/15.

02-01-001-15000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
02-30-160-46150 SPECIAL RECEIPTS
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 5 PBC
MATERIAL - to reclassify cash to the due to/due from account

related to a May 2015 deposit that was incorrectly recorded in

April 2015. Discussed and approved with Andrea Wallace on

7/15/15.

02-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
02-01-001-15080 DUE TO/FROM FUND
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

02-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE

02-30-021-55301 OFFICE SUPPLIES
Total

120,195.00

66,233.00
53,962.00

120,195.00

120,195.00

19,155.00
11,596.00

11,596.00
19,155.00

30,751.00

30,751.00

3,302.00

3,302.00

3,302.00

3,302.00

76,617.00

76,617.00

76,617.00

76,617.00

75,000.00

75,000.00

75,000.00

75,000.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




10/9/2015
9:43 AM

Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01e - 03 Museum

Workpaper: AJ-03 - AJE - 03 Museum

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to

calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea

Wallace, Director of Finance.

03-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 104,645.00

03-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES 55,858.00

03-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES 48,787.00
Total 104,645.00 104,645.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To accrue sanitary fees billed by the City of Champaign for
FY15. Entry provided by Andrea Wallace.
03-30-030-56230 SANITARY FEES AND CHARGES 377.00
03-30-078-56230 SANITARY FEES AND CHARGES 314.00
03-30-095-56230 SANITARY FEES 500.00
03-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,191.00
Total 1,191.00 1,191.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 3 PBC
MATERIAL - to reclassify cash to the due to/due from account
related to a May 2015 deposit that was incorrectly recorded in
April 2015. Discussed and approved with Andrea Wallace on
7/15/15,
03-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 75,000.00

03-01-001-15080 DUE TO/FROM FUND 75,000.00
Total 75,000.00 75,000.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

03-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE 1.00
03-15-068-55301 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00

10f3

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01f - 04 Liability Insurance

Work

paper: AJ-04 - AJE - 04 Liability Insurance
Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to
calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea
Wallace, Director of Finance.
04-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
04-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
04-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

04-01-001-55309 SAFETY SUPPLIES
04-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE

Total

11,182.00

7,212.00
3,970.00

11,182.00

11,182.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client:
Engagement:
Period Ending:
Trial Balance:
Workpaper:

Account

3095 - Champaign Park District
AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
4/30/2018

TB-01g - 06 IMRF

AJ-06 - AJE - 06 IMRF

Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to

calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea

Wallace, Director of Finance.

06-01-001-41010

06-01-001-15070

06-01-001-24070
Total

PROPERTY TAXES
PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 TB-01
MATERIAL - to reclassify cash to the due to/due from account
related to a May 2015 deposit that was incorrectly recorded in
April 2015. Discussed and approved with Andrea Wallace on

7115115,

06-01-001-15080

06-01-001-21000

06-01-001-11000

06-01-001-15080
Total

DUE TO/FROM FUND

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
CASH IN BANK

DUE TO/FROM FUND

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

06-01-001-53135
06-01-001-31100
Total

IMRF PAYMENTS
FUND BALANCE

3,5627.00

2,913.00
614.00

3,527.00

3,527.00

150,000.00
184,148.00

150,000.00
184,148.00

334,148.00

334,148.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client:

3095 - Champaign Park District

Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015
Trial Balance: TB-01i - 08 Audit

Workpaper:

AJ-08 - AJE - 08 Audit

Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to calculated
amounts based on information provided by Andrea Wallace, Director of

Finance.

08-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
08-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES
08-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

Total

652,00
431.00

1,083.00

1,083.00

1,083.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client:
Engagement:
Period Ending:
Trial Balance:
Workpaper:

3095 - Champaign Park District
AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
4/30/2015

TB-01j - 09 Paving and Lighting
AJ-09 - AJE - 09 Paving & Lighting

Account Description WI/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to calculated amounts
based on information provided by Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance.

09-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

09-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES

09-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES

Total

1,674.00

794,00
780.00

1,574.00

1,574.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client:
Engagement:

3095 - Champaign Park District
AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District

Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance:
Workpaper:

TB-01k - 11 Activity and Affiliate
AJ-11 - AJE - 11 Activity and Affiliate

Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 TB-01
To adjust fund balance to agree to the FY 14 audit report. Discussed and approved with
Andrea Wallace on 7/27/15.

11-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE

11-01-001-21600 DUE TO AFFILIATES

Total

6,926.00

6,926.00

6,926.00

6,926.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




10/9/2015

9:44 AM
Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015
Trial Balance: TB-011 - 12 Special Donations
Workpaper: AJ-12 - AJE - 12 Scholarship
Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

12-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE 1.00

12-01-001-59410 MISC EXPENSES 1.00

1.00 1.00

Total

preliminary & tentative — subject io change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01m - 14 Social Security
Workpaper: AJ-14 - AJE - 14 Social Security

Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to
calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea
Wallace, Director of Finance,
14-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
14-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
14-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES
Total

13,432.00

8,426.00
5,006.00

13,432.00

13,432.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




10/9/2015

9:44 AM
Client: 3095 - Champalign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015
Trial Balance: TB-01n - 15 Special Recreation
Workpaper: AJ-15 - AJE 15 - Special Recreation
Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to calculated
amounts based on information provided by Andrea Wallace, Director of
Finance.

15-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 12,598.00

15-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES 8,690.00

15-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES - CPD OPERATING 3,908.00
Total 12,598.00 12,598.00
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 PBC
To accrue expenses for invoices related to capital outlay received in May 2015
with work being performed in March 2015. Entry provided by Andrea Wallace
on 7/30/15.

15-01-001-61508 CPD - ADA 8,390.00

15-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 8,390.00

8,390.00 8,390.00

Total

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-010 - 16 Capital Improvements
Workpaper: AJ-16 - AJE - 16 Capital

Account Description W/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 TB-01
MATERIAL - to reclassify cash to the due to/due from account
related to a May 2015 deposit that was incorrectly recorded in April

2015,

Discussed and approved with Andrea Wallace on 7/15/15.

16-01-001-15080 DUE TO/FROM FUND
16-01-001-11000 CASH IN BANK

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 PBC
To accrue retainage for invoices related to capital outlay received

in Ma

y 2015. Entry provided by Andrea Wallace on 7/30/15.

16-01-001-61508 PARK CONSTRUCTION/IMROVEMENTS
16-01-001-21000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
TO MOVE GRANT REVENUE TO TRANSFER IN FROM THE
GENERAL FUND, BASED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY
16-01-001-47200 GRANT PROCEEDS
16-01-001-46500 TRANSFERS

Total

343,000.00

343,000.00

343,000.00

343,000.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

1,250,000.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client: 3095 - Champaign Park District
Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015

Trial Balance: TB-01r - 19 Police Protection
Workpaper: AJ-19 - AJE - 19 Police Protection

Account Description

W/P Ref Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1

To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to
calculated amounts based on information provided by Andrea
Wallace, Director of Finance.

19-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES

19-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES

19-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To adjust fund balance to agree to prior year report.

19-01-001-55350 RECREATION/PROGRAM SUPPLIES
19-01-001-31100 FUND BALANCE
Total

R-01

1,828.00
2,238.00

4,066.00

4,066.00

4,066.00

1.00

1.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Client:

3095 - Champaign Park District

Engagement: AUD - 3095 Champaign Park District
Period Ending: 4/30/2015
Trial Balance: TB-01t - 21 2004/2005 Debt Service

Workpaper:

AJ-21 - AJE - 21 2004-2005 Debt Service

Account Description WI/P Ref

Debit

10/9/2015
9:44 AM

Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 R-01
To record property taxes revenue, receivables, and deferred to calculated
amounts based on information provided by Andrea Wallace, Director of

Finance.

21-01-001-24070 DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
21-01-001-41010 PROPERTY TAXES
21-01-001-15070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

Total

328,780.00
377,984.00

706,764.00

706,764.00

706,764.00

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Board of Commissioners
Champaign Park District
Champaign, Illinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Champaign Park District (the District) as of and for the year ended April
30, 2015, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose ‘of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. -

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we
identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiency in the
District’s internal control to be a material weakness:

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Material Journal Entries

Our audit procedures identified material misstatements of certain financial statement
amounts provided to us by management. Management was not aware of the noted misstatements
prior to our identification. Subsequent to identifying these misstatements, we proposed, and
management approved, an adjusting journal entry, which has corrected the identified

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Champaign Park District Page 2

misstatements in the financial statements. However, as the District’s system of internal control
failed to prevent or detect the misstatements, we consider there to be a material weakness in the
District’s internal controls over the preparation of financial statements. In order to address this
material weakness, we suggest the following:

The District’s management should record all journal entries necessary to report the
account balances and transactions of the entity prior to providing the trial balance
summarization to the auditor for use in the audit.

The District’s management should ensure that journal entries are posted in the correct
fiscal year.

If there are journal entries that management knowingly leaves for the auditor to
calculate and record as part of the audit, the auditor should be made aware prior to the
audit and a member of management possessing the necessary accounting skills,
knowledge, or experience (or an outside party working for management, other than
the auditor) should review the adjusting journal entries and the supporting
documentation and provide specific approval of the calculation and the drafted
journal entries.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of
Commissioners, management, and others within the District and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Champaign, Illinois
August 31, 2015

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Champaign, Illinois

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended

April 30, 2015

Prepared By:
Finance and Administration Department

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Page
Letter Of TranSMIEAl .......coveiieiieeeiiiccteieeee et sascsbe e beesasesesbssesteostsestes sabsessssesansssesons 1-6
Organizational CRALt.........ccoeiririiieereiient et e st se st ste s ssaesnsrasessessesessnsssrssesnsesens 7
List of Elected and Appointed Officials ........cceceverererenirerineierisnscnriesins s 8
FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent AUdItor’s REPOTT......ccciriierriineiiiniieieireineersestessesiessssneessessessessessasnessnesessseosess 9-11
Management’s Discussion and Analysis .........cccceverveierenreninenn ettt s sen e 12-22
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Governﬁzéht — Wide F iﬁ,anqial VStqz‘erjn_ents

Statement of Net Position

(Exhibit A) .......... JRRIRRR e esae ey Feererer s 23

Statement of Activities P o :

(EXRIDIE B) ....ovsimevirirenneisisenincesssenissineessingessens T 24

Statement of Activities — Component Unit

(EXPUDIL C) wvvervevveviesreienrinierisienesssesensessnensessesssssessenaes et e et serresanreebeesares 25
Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

(EXRIDIL D) c.oveeereneerneeeniinisiiereetsneesesssessssessestssssssssssssassosssssssessnsssssssestesesnssnesseseseensenis 26

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to

the Statement of Net Position

(EXRUDIE D=1) coeeeeeeeeeeeeecteete e cee e stesie s sts e sas e stes e sse e sesaes e sraassesaessensansesassseessassssnsaneas 27

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

(EXRIBDIE E) cevooveveriereeeieiicinientetsissesrissesaestsssssessessssssaasessessssessesssnessessssassaosesssssanessessens 28

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
(EXRIDIE E-1)..c.ceevueneveerrsrersrenesierissssnsssssosessessssossssontssssassansasesensssssassossssssssssassessasssanses 29

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget:

General Fund

(EXRIDIE ) c..oeeeieerieniereneersesieiosiisiosessssesasssssssssessassssasessensssosessssansssessssssossssssansssssasnes 30
Recreation Fund
(EXRIDIE G) .oeeeeverereeieriiieisrereissesessissassssesessssasessasassassssssesssssesensssssssssesssnsssessssessnenes 31
Museum Fund
(EXRIDIE H) ...ttt saeb e e st bbb e e 32
Special Recreation Fund
(ExhlbltI)......7 ...... e Py P PP PPPPPPI eeenes ceenni33
- Statement of F1duc1ary Net P051t10n A I . T o
(ExhlbltJ)........._ ...... I OTOOOY/POF NIPPONY | PUOKC A0 S VOO D O OO ST RACIP -
Notes to Financial Statements........cccccvvereeerenesrersriseesesseresesessesesrenissssessssessessresesssssesenesess 35-68
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION """
Schedule of Fundmg Progress (Unaudlted) ............................ 69*

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Financial Statements

Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental Funds
(SCREAUIE 1) .ocaveeveveeiiiiicreciinrenreneste e siss et sss st s sa e sassaesassnaesbanseebse e st e sassssansesaneraenns 70

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
(SCACAUIE 2) c..eouveeireneeniecesisecesierteste st svens e st e sse e eras e sbesvesaess et e s sasssessssansasaesesnsenessnnans 71

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Individual Fund Financial Statements

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget:

Special Revenue Funds

Liability Insurance Fund

(SCHCAUIC 3) ettt sessne s e ssa et e res sreeseesnees

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

(SCHEAULE 4) .ottt re s e asas e s ssaens

Audit Fund

(SCHEAULE 5) ettt s srse st sne st sag e st ae e e e e e b

Social Security Fund

(SCHEAULE B) ..ottt rtese e e st r s esr e st s s e sa e s e saee

© Police Protection Fund L

_>'>>(Schedul_‘e7) .............. _f ..... : ...... ...... .......

~ Special Donation Fund "~

(SCHCAUIE 8) vttt e sas i san s

Debt Service Fund :

Bond Alnbrtizatién /Debt Service Fund

(SCHEAUIE 9) 1oreseeeeerereeeoeeeeeessreessesssess s e i

Capital Projects Fund

Paving and Lighting Fund

(SCHEAULE 10) oot csresrnesseesnsssae s rasrene s as e s nessaeeas

Capital Improvements and Repair Fund

(SCREAULE 1) c.unveeereeeeeereeteererceercvesvessreesrersssstesaesaeesreseaessaseessenenanes

Land Acquisition Fund

(SChEdUIE 12) oo reieseear e ns srnessaessnesseasneeesanes

Bond Proceeds Fund

(SCREAUIE 13) .ottt sae s s sss b esaa s e s st sabeses

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Permanent Fund

Working Cash Fund
(SCREAUIE 14) ..uouvereeiriereiisiieeresieneetresese et te st e s e seesse e sbossasrassresaesasonasons 83

Fiduciary Fund

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities —
Fiduciary (Agency) Fund - Activity and Affiliates Fund
(SCREAUIE 15) cuereeerirricreeriereneisieniesesisiessessesesesesesaessesaeessessssrossnoresorenseseassaens 84

Statistical SECtion INITOAUCTION c...cvveiivvriririereesserirvretreereeesrresbiesaessebeeeseesssesesstsessteessssssnnens 85

Net Position by Component

(SCREAUIE 16) ...veoenvevieveeeirreeenesreeirie e s s e saessesereessesassaasassasseesreesstesnes staravaeraessresnsassanensennees 86
Changes in Net Posmon _ o o ) ; }
(Schedule 17) PG SR SO SO enseniusennsindonsbassairbenshogiosrases herseaeaend 87 s

F.und Bal_ances of Gover,nm’entallFunds CAUNE GO TR
" (Schedule 18) ............. BT OV O U U OO SO PR OUO TSR UTUTEORTSTORPPO 88

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds L _
(Schedule 19) ............. R LB L vossnans SR 89

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property _
(Schedule 20) ............ccouvoveieiieiieiecieies s e e oot 90

Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governments
(SCREAULE 21) ..ttt bbb sa s eh s 91

Principal Property Taxpayers
(SCREAUIE 22) ..ottt te et e sse et e s e s e s et s ae s e st s et b s s ase e sansaesats s besae st ssaeessanns 92

Property Tax Levies and Collections
(SCREAUIE 23) ...coneeverreeireiriicrieiniintrese ettt s sb e b bbbt s s bbb s e e 93

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
(SCREAUIE 24) ..ot nreetees e sete sttt s e se s re st s e st e e bes b sasestestsss st esnasresrensesbssoness 94

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt Outstandmg
(SCREAUIE 25) eveueeieeeeeeceeieeieerece s ite et st se st e st s e st e s s e st e saesnteseessesssonrassabstsbesabsonsossonbesssaness 95

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

(SCREAUIE 26) .....eoeeeeereiiiicreriiirsiisiine s s s bbbt sr e 96
Computation of Legal Debt Margin ,
(SCHEAUIE 27 oottt e e b s n s sk b e s s e nn et be s 97
Schedule of Revenue Supported Bond Coverage
(SCHEAUIE 28) .cneneeeeeiieeeeeteciestssienit sttt sb et a s s a s sa b s b st ae e e snesas 98
Demographic and Economic Statistics
(SCREAULE 29) ..ouveeveereee ettt st bbb b s e sa e et et 99
Principal Employers
(SCHEAUIE 30) .ocuveiireviireiriirecireereec s eareeseese e st st bbbt s b b s sh s b e b s s e e b e b e sb et e beas s 100
Number of District Employees by Function
(SCREAUIE 31 oot sseeest ettt sttt bbb b e b e n e e e e b et et et e ana s 101
Operating Indicators by Function v N » , . S
':(:Schrédu{e' 32) e, SUPPPUE PPN SO PN T ...... 102 -
Capital Asset Statisticsi:by Fimction o g , | 5 B | L i

" (Schedule 33) ... RS s e eterere et oot e et et e st bt R e e b s Rt s R an et aen 103

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

September 9, 2015

Board of Commissioners
Champaign Park District

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
Champaign Park District for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015. The State of Illinois
requires each local government to issue an annual report on its financial position prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report is based on management’s goal to present a complete financial picture of the
operations and financial position of the Champaign Park District. Consequently,
‘management accepts full responsibility for the fairness, accuracy and completeness of all
of the information presented in this report. To provrde a reasonable basis for makmg '

 these representatrons the management of the District has establrshed and maintained a

comprehensive internal control frameWOrk that is designed to protect the District’s assets. -
from loss, theft or misuse, to assure transactions are properly executed and recorded with
management’s authorization and to compile sufficient information for the District’s
financial statements. The District’s system of internal control is supported by written
policies and procedures and perlodlcally rev1ewed evaluated and modrﬁed to meet
current needs. ,

Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal controls should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived from the controls. It is management’s belief that
the District’s system of internal controls adequately safeguards assets, provides a
reasonable assurance of proper recording of transactions and that these financial
statements are complete and reliable in all material respects.

The District’s financial statements have been audited by the firm of Martin, Hood, Friese
and Associates, LLC licensed certified public accountants. The audit involved examining
selected records to support amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles applied and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Based upon the audit, the
independent auditor concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended April
30, 2015 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report
is presented in the financial statement section of this report beginning on page 9.

-1-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditor.

Profile of the Champaign Park District

The Champaign Park District was organized in November 1911. The Park District was
established as a separate unit of local government in 1955 by a public referendum. The
District is a municipal corporation under the Statutes of the State of Illinois. The District
operates under a Board-Executive Director form of government. The five member Board
of Commissioners is elected to six year, uncompensated, terms in biennial elections. The
Executive Director and the department heads who serve under his supervision are
responsible for carrying out the policies, procedures and ordinances of the District.

The District’s boundaries are nearly coterminous with the City of Champaign and covers
22.43 square miles. The 2010 census conducted by the U.S. Bureau of the Census lists
the City’s population as 81,055, with a 2.9% increase estimated for 2014 to 83,424, The
District maintains over 70 parks and facilities comprised of community parks,
neighborhood parks, mini parks, and 14 walklng/blklng trails covering 670 acres. The
District’s strateglc plan identified the District’s vision to con51stently éxceed commumty
expectations. The mission of the Dlstrlct is to’ enhance our communlty s quahty of life
through p051t1ve experlences in parks, recreatlon and cultural arts

In 1999, the District received the Illinois Association of Park Districts and the Illinois
Park and Recreation Association’s Distinguished Park and Recreation Accredited Agency
award. To earn this distinction, a park district is evaluated in six separate categories
which range from mandatory and legal requlrements to desired standards for park
districts that the two associations have set. The District was re-evaluated in 2005/2006
and also 2010/2011 and maintained this distinguished distinction each time. Only 49
other park districts from over 350 agencies in the State of Illinois have obtained the
distinguished accredited agency designation. The District is currently preparing for the
recertification in 2017.

Financial Planning

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the District’s financial plannlng and
control. In May, a proposed budget is submitted by staff to the Board of Commissioners
for review and approval. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means for
financing them for the fiscal year beginning May 1. Before the budget can be officially
approved, state law requires a public hearing on the proposed budget. By state law, the
budget must be officially approved by the Board of Commissioners by the end of the first
quarter of the new fiscal year.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, department, program activity and by line
item classification. Budgetary control is utilized as a management control device during
the year through an internal reporting process. The process includes verification of
appropriation amounts prior to expenditures and a monthly review of all account totals
compared with appropriations. Contracts greater than or equal to $20,000, or that exceed
a one-year term must have the Board of Commissioner’s approval. The Board reviews

-2

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




monthly, all expenditures and financial statements and is updated on line item accounts
which may go over appropriated amounts and need a transfer.

Transfers are generally within the same fund and are simply movement from one line
item account that is under budget to another line item account that will exceed its
appropriated amount. Transfers between lines within the same fund may be made
throughout the year without Board approval and are then approved by the Board near the
end of the fiscal year. If necessary, transfers between line items between different funds
are approved as part of the monthly Treasurer’s Report and Detailed Bill Listing which is
approved by the Board.

A new Budget and Appropriation Ordinance is required if the total appropriation for a
fund is exceeded. The Board of Commissioners may amend the Budget and
Appropriation Ordinance, but it must be done in accordance with the same procedures
followed in adopting the original ordinance. A budget amendment was required during
FY15; refer to the MD&A following the independent auditors report for more detailed
information.

Local Economy

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it
is considered from the broader perspect1ve of the spe01ﬁc env1ronment w1th1n whlch the
DlS’[I’lct operates . : S : o :

The Champalgn Park District is located in East Central Illln01s, one of the most stable
economic environments, with one of the lowest unemployment rates in the State. The
unemployment rate for the State as of April 2015 was 6.0% compared to 4.0% for
Champaign, and 5.4% nationally. The University of Illinois is located in Champaign and
its neighbor City of Urbana which prov1des steady employment to our citizens. The
University provides over 10,340 _]ObS to the community. The large number of University
employees res1d1ng in the District contributes greatly to the District’s program and
property tax revenues. The District’s commercial base is rather diverse which tends to
minimize the overall effects of economic swings as well as a recent increase in the
estimated population totals since the 2010 Census. The commercial base of the District is
mainly divided between healthcare, retail, food, service, real estate and high technology
industries.

In recent years the District’s boundaries have expanded by both residential growth and
retail and commercial growth. The residential growth has mainly expanded the
boundaries to the west with some new growth planned to the north and west. The retail
and commercial growth has been mainly north with expansion also taking place in
downtown Champaign. In 2005 the District completed the largest annexation in its
history, annexing in over 600 acres related mostly to single family housing. This resulted
in an increase to the District’s assessed valuation by over 15%. The assessed valuation
has declined over the last several years. For tax year 2014 (fiscal year 2016), the assessed
value increased 1.56% almost making up the decrease from the prior year.

In general, an increase in the assessed valuation helps offset the property tax cap limits
imposed by the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law. This law limits the increase in
the District’s annual property tax levy to the lesser of 5% or the increase in the national
Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus any new or improved property in the District. For the

-3-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




fiscal year 2014/2015 the increase in CPI was set at 1.7%. Property Taxes account for
nearly 69% of the District’s operating revenues. If tax caps were not in place, and if the
District taxed at their maximum allowable rate, then the District could have received
nearly $249,900 more in property tax revenue overall. The District does not receive any
state or local income tax revenue, though it does receive a share of Personal Property
Replacement Tax, which is collected and distributed by the State of Illinois Department
of Revenue.

Major Initiatives

The District’s capital improvement program is reviewed and revised annually. The
Board of Commissioners and the staff updated the five year plan in the second half of the
prior year. During the annual budget process, staff review and reprioritize the capital
program in order to best meet the District’s maintenance, development and land
acquisition goals as they fit in the current year’s budget.

The District continues to issue general obligation bonds to help finance various capital
and major repair projects. The District issued $1,084,000 of bonds in November 2014.
The District has completed or is in the process of completing the following projects.

Sunset Ridge Park (formerly known as Boulder Rldge Park) — This project was

completed and grant billing ﬁnahzed during fiscal year 2014. The grant relmbursement :

- of approx1mate1y $379,000 was recelved in ﬁscal year 2015

Kauﬁnan Lake ThlS pI‘OjCCt was completed and grant brlhng ﬁnahzed durlng ﬁscal year
2015. The District was awarded a $200,000 grant at the end of fiscal year 2014 to repave
the north portion of the roadwayﬁsurroundlng the lake

Virginia Theatre - The Dlstrlct recelved notrﬁcatron in ﬁscal year 2015 of a $750,000
grant to assist with updating the sound and lighting or1g1nally scheduled to be completed
in December 2015. Due to the State of Illinois budget impasse, this grant has been
suspended and the project put on hold indefinitely.

Leonhard Recreation Center — Due in part to the receipt of a $2.5 million PARC grant in
Fiscal Year 2012, the District worked and completed the $5.9 million dollar recreation
center at the end of fiscal year 2014. The facility held its grand opening to the public in
May 2014. Final grant paperwork was submitted and the remaining grant funds of
$1,250,000 received during fiscal year 2015.

Douglass Park Development — The District was awarded a $300,000 OSLAD grant to
assist with the redevelopment of Douglass Park. The $1.1 million dollar project was
completed and a grand opening held in May 2015. Amenities include additional
pathways, horseshoe pits, relocated the batting cages, spray ground feature, playground
equipment and poured in place surfacing, exercise nodes throughout the new paths, as
well as shade structures and lighting. The final grant reimbursement has been submitted
to the State, however until the State of Illinois FY 16 budget is approved, no funds will be
released.

-4-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Debt Administration

The District can issue debt to provide financing, and pay the costs associated with, the
acquisition, and improvement of long-term assets and/or to make the annual debt
payment on the alternative revenue bonds. It is not used to finance the District’s regular
operating expenditures. The District’s primary objectives in debt management are to keep
the level of indebtedness within available resources and within the total debt and payment
limits established by state statutes and tax cap legislation.

The statutory debt limit for the District is 2.875% ($43,906,699) of the assessed valuation
for total debt issued and .575% ($8,781,340) for general obligation bonds. The District is
well within these established limits. Currently, the District has $1,084,000 of non-
referendum general obligation debt maturing in November 2015 and $4,585,000 of
alternate revenue bonds maturing in December 2024.

In fiscal year 2014 Moody’s Investor’s Services, Inc. gave the District an Aa2 rating
citing the District’s healthy regional economy and tax base, sound financial operations
supported by growing reserves and manageable debt as the main reasons for the high
rating. There has been no change to this rate since.

Impact of Fmanclal Pollcles on Fmanclal Statements

Many governmental ent1t1es are facmg ﬁnan01a1 hardshlp, w1th 1ncreased costs outpacmg -
revenue growth comphance with the Affordable Care Act, coupled with the decrease in
capltal and operating grant funding from the State of Illinois. While unemployment is
decreasing, the costs to employers are increasing. In February 2015, the District offered
health insurance coverage to ten additional employees to be in compliance with the ACA.
This added expenditure is discussed in more deta11 in the MD&A.. Furthermore, the
ongoing increase in employee compensatlon isa result of ACA, salary increases for
performance, health insurance costs, and pension continue, The District updated its fund
balance policy in Fall 2010 to maintaina 120- day reserve ‘balance in the main funds
(General, Recreation and Museum). These reserve levels are monitored to ensure that
they are maintained, and the District has not fallen below these levels since the policy
was updated.

The District invests cash that is temporarily idle in the Illinois Funds Investment Pool, the
Ilinois Park District Liquid Asset Fund, the Illinois Municipal Investment Fund, and
certificate of deposits and money market index funds at local institutions. The District has
adopted, and follows, an investment policy based on the standards recommended by the
Treasurer of the State of Illinois. Due to the slow recovery from the recession, protection
of principle is of prime importance with all invested funds. Additional information on
the District’s cash management policies and details of the District’s investments can be
found on Notes 1d, le, and 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The District is a member of the Park District Risk Management Agency (PDRMA) which
was organized by state park districts in Illinois in accordance with the terms of an
intergovernmental cooperative agreement. The purpose of PDRMA is to obtain
insurance coverage as a single insurable unit for the member park districts for coverage in
excess of self-insurance units and to administer the payment of self-insurance claims.

-5-

preliminary & tentative ~ subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Currently, over 140 park districts and special recreation associations throughout the State
of Illinois belong to PDRMA. Additional information on the District’s risk management
activity can be found in Note 18 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The District participates in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund which is a multiple-
employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for local governments in Illinois. All employees who meet certain
minimum hourly standards must participate by contributing 4.5% of their annual salary
which is set by state statute. The District contributes the remaining amounts necessary to
fund the system, using the actuarial basis specified by the statute. The District
contributed 10.56% of salaries of covered employees during calendar year 2014 and
9.62% in 2015. Additional information on the District’s pension arrangement and
activity can be found in Note 17 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
Champaign Park District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2014. This was the nineteenth consecutive year that the District has
received this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District

- must publlsh an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual ﬁnanclal
~report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accountmg pr1n01ples and
applicable legal requlrements | L = L

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program

requirements, and we are subm1tt1ng it to the GFOA to determme the, e11g1b111ty for
another certificate. | » E :

The preparation of this report has been made possible due to contributions from many
individuals of the Administration and Finance Department. We would like to express our
appreciation to everyone who assisted and contributed to the report. Credit must also be
given to the Board of Commissioners for their support in maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the District’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

-6-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

5 Presented Jto'
Champalgn Park District
’ Illmms

For its Comprehensive Annual
~ Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

April'so, 2014

By

Executlve Director/CEO

~ preliminary & tentative - subject to change - for discussion purposes only




List of Elected and Appointed Officials

PrESIAEnt......cccvivirieniecriecerieseererree et e e te s ettt a st e sraesnesnasaens Joseph A. Petry
ViCE PreSIAENL ....veuivvereeniiciirenientinenesenneisesresressessess s sseesessessssessessesassossossasans Alvin Griggs
COMMUSSIONET «...vevueieeereeueeeenetersesreressereaessrentsesessessessennsesenssseseseeseanesens Jane L. Solon
COMMUSSIONET .euveiriirieieieriiientsneiiise s ie st e sae s st s b rsssstsss s e sesesesessssnsnens Barbara J. Kuhl
COMMUSSIONGT cuviviiveviuisrenieirireeiertrteen et se e s seeses e s eese e e stsss st saessareneen Tim McMahon
ATOTTNIEY vviveeririeiienirieeiesiesseeeestesseeeeseesseseesseesseseensesseesaassesesnsasesasassessessnenss Guy C. Hall
TICASULET ....civvirieiiiiieeiissres et ssie e e estesaestosassssssaresnonsssasasanen Gary G. Wackerlin
Assistant to Executive Director/SECretary .....cc.cooeviverviivereereneneniesressrensennes Cindy Harvey
Executive Director/ASsiétaqﬁ Secret@ty Joe DeLuce |

) ;Directqrf of Flnancez ..... Andreé 'Wallaqe |
Director of CUMUIAL ATES .......ovvervvenrivenersesssnessnsssssssessssesssseesssssssssesssans Jameel Jones
Director of Recreati()'ﬂl...'...._ ......... ...... irreegnee g aibiesse sk eresbssmesbereeds :Megan Kuhlenschmidt
Director of Human Rcs'ources....i..‘.....;‘ ...... .......... v Tammy Hoggatt
Director of Operations and Planning ..........cecceeeemevenveriereneeenienreessseeressnene Kevin Crump

-8-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Champaign Park District
Champaign, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Champaign Park District (the District), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprlse the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management?s Re'sponSibility for the Financial' Statements

Management is respons1ble for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of these ﬁnan01al
 statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of -
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnan01al statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. : -

Auditor’s Responsibi]ity ,

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

-9.

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of
April 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedule of funding progress on pages 12 through 22 and
page 69, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
'although not a part of the basic financial statements, is requlred by the Govemmental Accountlng
Staridards Board, who cons1ders it to be an essentlal part of ﬁnancral reportlng for placing the basic
financial statements in an approprrate operatronal ‘economic, or h1storrcal context., We have applied

certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained durlng our audit of the basw finan01al statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the 1nformatlon because the limited procedures do not provide

us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual major and non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual major and non-major fund financial statements (Schedules 1
through 15) are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

-10-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual major and non-major fund financial statements are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on them.

Champaign, Illinois
August 31, 2015

-11 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Champaign Park District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2015

Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an overview of the Champaign Park District’s
(District’s) financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter and the District’s financial statements which begin on page
23.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $55,259,532 (net position), and net position shows an improvement over the prior
year. The District received $1.4 million in capital grant receipts for new projects
completed during the current fiscal year. In addition, a net pension asset of $799,750 was
added as further explained in footnote 17.

e Accounts payable as of April 30, 2015 was 49% less than the prior year as a result of less
capital projects in progress at year-end.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s. governmental funds reported.
= comblned endlng fund balances of $17, 182,243, A551gned fund balance, increased forty
percent (40%) for cap1ta1 grant fundmg recelved and ass1gned to future capltal pl‘OjeC’[S

e Revenues totaled $16 698,598 for the Dlstrlct S governmental funds and reﬂect an overall
increase from prior year of 2.3%, mainly for new one-time revenue for energy efficiency
rebates for the Leonhard Recreation Center facility, and membership fees for the new
facility in the current year. Total expendltures for the District’s governmental funds
decreased 23% from the prior year as less capital pl‘O_]CCtS occurred in current year
decreasing those expendltures 69%, offset by a 17% increase in overall operating
expenditures as discussed in more detail later.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$6,885,818, or 174.2% of total General Fund expenditures, a 6% increase over prior year

e The District’s total long term debt decreased 8% from the prior year.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

-12-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




The government-wide financial statements of the District include not only the District itself
(known as the primary government), but also a legally separate nonprofit organization, the
Champaign Parks Foundation, which is exclusively dedicated to philanthropic support to the
District. The financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the
financial information presented in the primary government. These financial statements are
prepared on the full-accrual method of accounting reflecting all assets and liabilities in a similar
accounting method used by most private-sector companies. All revenues and expenses are
reflected regardless of when the cash is received or paid and more importantly present the
District as a whole.

o The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

o The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Startmg in ﬁscal year 2008 the act1v1t1es of the Champalgn Parks F oundatlon are 1ncluded in the
audit, which is reflected in the Component Unit reference in the financial statements. The
~ governmental activities of the District include general government, recreation and cultural arts
opportunities, land and park development.

The government-wide ﬁnancial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements A fund isa groupmg of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be
divided into two categories: governmental funds and fiduciary funds. The modified accrual
method of accounting is used to record revenues and expenditures within the fund financial
statements. This method measures cash and any other financial asset that can easily be converted
into cash. The purpose of these financials is to facilitate an analysis of financial resources that
can be spent in future years to support the District’s programs.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements:
However, unlike government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

-13-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Recreation Fund,
Museum Fund, Special Recreation Fund, and the Bond Proceeds Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26, 28 and 30 through
34 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The District maintains no proprietary funds (also called Enterprise Funds).
Enterprise Funds are presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. In fiscal year 2006, there was an active proprietary fund regarding the tennis center
operations, but in fiscal year 2007 and beyond, the tennis center operatrons were included in the
.Recreatlon Fund and there isno longer a proprretary fund

Ftductary Funds Flduclary funds are used to account for resources held for the beneﬁt of
_parties outside the government. Frduclary funds ate not reflected in the government-w1de
financial statements because the resources of those funds are notr available to support the
District’s own programs. The District maintains one fiduciary fund. The Activity Fund is used to
account for money held in trust for groups affiliated with but not controlled by the Park District.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 34 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 35-68 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information. The required supplementary
information includes information concerning the District’s progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension benefits to its employees. The other supplementary schedules contain combined
financial information and budget to actual comparisons for non-major funds, information about
the legal debt margin calculations and assessed valuations, tax rates, taxes extended and
collected information about the property tax funding system. Required supplementary and other
supplementary information can be found on pages 69-103 of this report.

-14 -

preliminary & tentative ~ subject to change - for discussion purposes only




THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The total net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, total net position was $55,259,532 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year representing a net increase of $3,143,078 over the prior year. The following
table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position.

Champaign Park District’s Net Position (in thousands)

Governmental Activities

2015 2014
Current and Other Assets $ 20,5202 $ 18,949.9
Capital Assets 41,685.5 41,247.8
Total Assets 62,205.7 60,197.7
Deferred Outflow of Resources 2022 223.4
Long-Term Liabilities 4,898.2 5,345.4
Other Liabilities 2,250.2 2,959.3

Total Liabilities 7,148.4 8,304.7

~Net Position

Net Investment in . S 3 i R S
" Capital Assets 365932 354428
Restricted 4,321.0 2,771.0
Unresticted - _ 14,3453 13,902.6
Total Net Position © .~ ©  § 552595 § ""';_{5'2","1]16.4

Total net position of the District’s governmental activities increased 6.0% over the prior year, or
$3,143,078. Unrestricted net position ($14,345,259), the portion that can be used to finance the
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, legislation, or any other
legal requirements increased from a surplus of $13,902,641 in the prior year to $14,345,259 in
the current year. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive
balances in all three categories of net position for its governmental activities.

The largest portion of the District’s net position (66.2 percent) reflects its net investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

-15-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




The following table summarizes the revenues and expenses of the District’s activities:

Champaign Park District’s Change in Net Position (in thousands)

Governmental Activities

2015 2014

Revenues:
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 2,589.2 $ 2,393.7

Oper. Grants and Contributions 116.8 143.3

Capital Grants and Contributions 504.0 2,695.8
General Revenues

Property Taxes 11,452.3 11,531.6

Interest Income 293 17.2

Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax 2879 275.0

Special Receipts 271.1 188.6

Other 127.5 68.0

Total Revenues 15,384.1 17,313.2

Expenses:

Culture and Recreation 11,995.8 11,651.1

Interest on Debt . 151.6 178.5

) Total Expenses e 12, 147 4 11,829.6 -

Extraordmary Item: ' i

Loss on Cash Equ1va1ent (93 6) b=
Change in Net Position 3,143.1 5,483.6
Beginning Net Position 52,116.4 46,632.8
Ending Net Position ::; - .8 .. 55259.5 $ 52,116.4

Revenues:

Revenues for the District are generated from a number of dlfferent sources and for the most part
are dependent on different financial factors. The majority of revenue is derived from property
taxes, as illustrated in the chart below. Property Taxes, which account for 77% of the District’s

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Capital Grants & Contributions, 3. 3%,

Olhel',2 6%

\
Operating Grants & Contributions, 08% *,
Replacement Taxes, 1.9%_

\

..—Imerestincome,
0.2%

" '/4'

Charges for-~
Services, 16.8%

- Property Taxes,
74.4%

-16-

operating revenue, or
74.4% of overall fiscal
year 2015 revenues, are
a consistent source of
revenues. The District’s
charges for services
come mainly from, but
is not limited to, the
District’s recreation and
cultural programs,
including sports,
cultural arts,
membership fees and
facility rentals, and the
Virginia Theatre events.

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Total revenues on the statement of activities decreased 11.1% ($1,929,172) from the prior year.
General revenues were 0.78% ($93,655) higher than the prior year due to multiple factors.
Property tax revenues decreased from the prior year, however this was offset by an increase in
membership fees and special receipts at the opening of the new, larger Leonhard Recreation
Center. Charges for services increased 8.17% ($195,543) from the prior year due to additional
performances held at the Virginia Theatre with a very successful summer program that was not
present in the prior year due to construction. Leonhard Recreation Center facility opened at a
new location increasing the overall square footage which allowed for additional programming.
This expansion was reflected in increases in daycamp, afterschool, and school out day revenues
nearly doubling from the prior year. Capital Grant revenue in FY 15 was $503,996 compared to
$2,695,833 in FY14. This decline in capital grants is consistent with a decline in overall capital
projects and fixed asset additions. The Douglass Park improvement capital grant was the only
project not earned by fiscal year end.

Expenses:

Total expenses for FY15 increased 2.69% ($317,782) over the prior year, excluding the
extraordinary loss on cash equivalents. While the District experienced a savings in interest on
debt of 15.1% ($26,871), personnel costs increased 4.99% ($298,029) mostly due to annual merit
increases, performance increases with organizational restructuring, insurance premium increases,
and adding employees to health insurance as part of new Affordable Care Act requirements
coupled with an

Expenses by Use- Governmental Activities

Loss on Cash

) ! Interestand Fees, 1.2%
Equivalent, OO‘iAa/ : !

Non-Depreciable _
Capital Expenses, 3.4% o

Loss on Disposal of Capital
Assets, 0.0%

s

additional payout to

IMREF related to -
| paid leave payouts
- for long-time ¢

- employees that left

employment during

Commodities, 13.6% .~

- the fiscal year.
~ - Personnel Costs
==--—Personnel Costs, (Salary, Wages and
Depreciation, 14.0%_. 51.6% Fringe Benefits)

historically account
for approximately
50% of the
District’s total

s s oy — .. expenses, which is
within the industry norm. The current year personnel costs are 51.6%, which is higher in
comparison with the prior year and consistent with the increase in full-time equivalents noted in
Schedule 31. Commodities increased 21.41% (291,565) as the District expanded facilities and
therefore increased programming at Leonhard Recreation Center. An interesting point to note is
that by installing geothermal heating/cooling at the new facility the District spent $8,000 more to
heat an additional 25,000 square feet. The District paid $28,304 for gas and electricity for the
nearly 40,000 square foot building, compared to $20,557 in the prior year at a 15,000 square foot
facility. The District also incurred additional expenses related to the stormwater utility fee, which
had not previously been billed. During FY15, approximately $38,000 was included in expenses
for a two-year period. The fees are billed in arrears, therefore to properly record the expense, an
accrual was recorded at year-end. Depreciation expense increased 15.33% due to the addition of
nearly $6 million in assets added for the new Leonhard Recreation Center at the very end of the
prior year resulting in a full year of depreciation expense.

e

Contractual Services, 16__2,%""'\

-17 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $17,182,243. A portion of this amount, $5,759,382, constitutes
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. Not
including non-spendable amounts the actual amount of Fund Balance totals $16,924,040. The
total combined fund balance for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015 is $2.8 million higher than
the prior year. This increase specifically includes $1.8 million in capital grant funding received
during the year comprised of the remaining $1.25 million OSLAD grant for Leonhard Recreation
Center, $379,511 OSLAD grant for Sunset Ridge Park Improvements, and $188,996 remaining
grant funds for roadway improvements at Kaufian Lake. Excess funds totaling $371,613 in the
Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund, resulting from abatement timing differences on the
refundmg bonds for tax year 2013, will be utlllzed in FY16 towards the outstandmg debt
payment due November 30 2015 The ‘remaining $0.6 million increase’ is the net impact: of
increased charges for services tevenue for recreation and cultural’ arts programs exceedmg
expenditures as a result of increased programmmg, specifically membership fees, concession
revenues, and daycamp/afterschool programmmg

» The General fund 1s the mam operatmg fund of the D1strlct At the end of the current
fiscal year, total fund balance was $6,886,676 and with the exception of $858 in prepaid
items, is unassigned. The unassigned fund balance represents 174.2% of total General
Fund expenditures (including both operating and capital expenditures), or 170.2% of
General fund expenditures including the extraordinary loss on cash equivalent of
$93,600. This extraordinary loss is further described in Note 20 on page 64. During the
June 10, 2015 board meeting, the Commissioners voted to commit $800,000 of this
unassigned fund balance and transfer $100,000 into the Capital Improvement Fund to be
used for trails and pathways, and to create a new Capital Improvement Fund for park
development. Both transfers will occur in FY16.

=  The Recreation Fund’s fund balance increased $403,220 to $2,615,672 this year and
represents 84.1% of the Recreation Fund total expenditures. Total revenues for the
current fiscal year decreased $856,782 from the prior year as the prior year included a
capital grant reimbursement of $1,250,000 that did not recur in this fund for current year,
while charges for services and special receipts income increased $244,000 due to
additional programming in daycamps, afterschool, and other programming. Expenditures
decreased $3,155,384 mainly as the capital project for Leonhard Recreation project was
included in the prior year. The current year capital was for general improvements and
repairs at the aquatic center.

- 18-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




» Fund balance in the Museum Fund increased $419,420, and represents 106.8% of

"~ Museum Fund expenditures, which is an improvement over the prior year. Total revenues

decreased $108,803 from prior year as no capital grant revenue was received or recorded

in current year, however there was an increase in charges for services and concession

revenues from the prior year as increased programming at the Virginia Theatre was
scheduled and open the entire season.

These three main funds have a total of over $11.2 million dollars in fund balances,
which is 65.2% of the District’s total fund balance.

» A slight decrease in property tax revenues for tax caps let to the overall change in fund
balance for the current year. At the fiscal year end, Special Recreation Fund has a fund
balance of $1,902,427, which represents 166% of the Special Recreation expenditures.

» The last major fund, the Bond Proceeds Fund ended the fiscal year with a deficit fund
balance of $549,755, which will be eliminated by the transfer of funds from the Bond
Amortization/Debt Service Fund as part of the repayment on the short-term general
obligation bond debt, due November 30, 2015.

Major Funds Budgetary Highlights

The District staff develops a working budget prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. This .
worklng budget is based on District goals outlined in the most recent strateglc plan of what
programs to fund, capital projects and purchases desired, program fee structures, estlmates of
 State revenues and grants availability, historical operating expenditures and desired cash reserves
and fund balance. The working budget is presented to the Board of Commissioners for approval.
The District staff use this budget to guide operations throughout the fiscal year.

The legal spendlng 11m1ts of the D1strlct as well as most mumclpal governments are set by the
account the maximum acceptable spending for operatlons and other possible contingencies. The
appropriation budget is passed via ordinance of the Board of Commissioners in accordance with
State statues. The Board may vote to transfer appropriated amounts between departments or line
items as needed during the year. But there are very few remedies, as described in State statue, if
the total appropriation amount needs to be raised or lowered.

During the fiscal year 2015, the District formally amended the budget on March 11, 2015 and
filed document with the Champaign County Clerk. This amendment increased total
appropriations from $20,818,587 to $22,116,397. Original total appropriations for the IMRF
fund was $1,166,960; however, the Board voted to make an additional $859,148 lump sum
payment towards the December 31, 2013 unfunded liability on November 12, 2014, which
resulted in a net pension asset of $799,750. As this exceeded the original plan to pay a portion of
the balance, an amendment was filed to increase the total appropriations for this fund to
$1,274,750. Other funds were also amended to adjust for organization restructuring across funds,
and for additional expenditures that were on track to exceed total budget. Additionally, the
District also presented line item transfers to the Board for approval on May 27, 2015. Those
transfers from the original budget were changes within individual departments within the same
fund and did not result in an increase or decrease in total amended appropriations.

-19 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Total revenue in the General Fund exceeded the final amended budget by $1,228,307 as
$1,250,000 of capital grant proceeds was budgeted for in the Capital Improvement Fund, rather
than General Fund. This increase is also seen in the Transfers Out line with the same variance.
Funds were posted as receipts in the General Fund to reimburse the District for those
expenditures paid out in prior years for the Leonhard Recreation Center. The funds were then
shown as a transfer to the Capital Improvement Fund to be used for future capital projects. This
is indicative of the large fund balance in that fund at year end compared to prior years.

In the General Fund, the District spent $0.6 less than the $4.7 million final budget, excluding the
extraordinary loss on cash equivalents. Total operating expenditures were $0.5 million less than
budget primarily in less spending on commodities and contractual services as contracts were
entered into, but not complete at year-end therefore will carry over into FY16. Overall fund
balance is well ahead of the targeted 120-day reserve level at year-end.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
April 30, 2015 amounts to $41,685,496 (net of accumulated depreciation), or an increase from
the prior year of $437,697. The investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements,
playground equipment, buildings and systems, and machinery and equipment. The following
Comparative Statement of Capltal Assets, net of deprematlon shows the change in assets for the
governmental activities. '

Comparatlve Statement of Capital Assets ’
’ " Governmental Activities

2015 2014
Land $ 7,840,578 $ 7,840,578
Buildings & Improvements 31,620,659 31,884,114
Equipment ' C2224259 1,523,107
S 4L 685 496 41,247,799

A net decrease in buildings and improvements was due to a full year of depreciation expense on
the $6.6 million of additions added in the prior year being offset by the $1,045,161 for the new
Douglass Park Improvements and repaving of roadway at Kaufman Lake during the current year.
Equipment increased $701,152 for a new fully accessible playground at Eisner Park, addition of
one new vehicle and two replacement vehicles to the fleet, as well as a new mower. Capital
expenditures in 2016 are budgeted at a lessor amount than the current year to match the decrease
in capital funding. Capital projects which are due to be completed in FY 2016 include the
playground replacement at Hessel Park, various replacements of vehicles and equipment, and
ongoing hardcourt replacements at two locations pending outcome of bids. The installation of
lighting and sound at the Virginia Theatre ($750,000) originally scheduled for completion in
summer of 2015 has been indefinitely put on hold due to the budget impasse at the State of
Illinois related to the State’s fiscal year 2016. No further capital grant funding has been allocated
or applied for related to FY'16.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 9 in the Notes to
Financial Statements of this report.

-20-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Long-Term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had long-term debt
outstanding of $4,898,159, including $4,585,000 of alternate revenue debt with a remaining 11-
year payback schedule with the principal payment on the 2013 Series due December 2015. In
addition, the District has $219,890 of compensated absences payable, increase over prior year of
$6,800 and a decrease of $9,649 in unamortized bond premiums leaving a balance of $93,269 at
year end.

The District’s total long-term debt decreased by $447,247 (8.4%) during the current fiscal year
as the District retired $454,047 in debt offset by a $6,800 increase in accrued compensated
absences for increased staffing. Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be
found in Notes 10 and 11 beginning on page 52 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The equalized assessed value (EAV) of taxable property in the District for 2014 levy year was
$1,527,189,530 which represents one-third of the equalized assessed value (EAV). Residential
and commercial properties make up nearly 99% of the EAV for the 2014 levy year, consistent
with the prior year. The EAV increased 1.56% in this last year, nearly making up the 1.67%
decrease last year. With the exception of this year, in the past 5 years the District’s assessed
valuation has decreased at a rate of less than 1% per year.

--Because of the increase in the EAV, the tax rate actually decreased for the first time since tax-
year 2008, FY10. In a, good economy, the EAV  increases each year which helps to offset the
property tax cap limits 1mposed by the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law. This law 11m1ts

_the increase in the District’s annual property. tax - levy to the lesser of 5% or the increase in the
national Consumer Price Index plus any new or improved property within the District
boundaries. Property Taxes account for 77% of the District’s operatmg revenues. The District
does not receive any state or local sales tax revenues.

The focus for budget year 2015/2016 centers on the pr10r1t1es contalned in the District’s strategic
plan along with ensuring sustainability’ of services while contending with uncertainty. The
District’s revenue and expenditures are budgeted to remain conservative. The intent of the
budget is to maintain our current level of standard and service while taking a critical look at
existing services in regard to trends, redundancy, efficiencies, and cost. Much of the budget
focus will be on the continued improvements to the facilities and equipment of the District, as
well as the Board priorities specific to the trails master plan, and improvements in various parks.
It should be noted that the targeted minimum reserve goals (120-day) have been reached in the
operating funds for General, Recreation and Museum funds.

The operating and capital budgets will be tight in the next few years, especially considering the
current uncertainty with property tax freeze being considered at the State of Illinois, combined
with the current suspension of new capital grants, and proposed talks of increased minimum
wage rates. Operating costs such as health benefits, fuel and utility costs and program supplies
continue to rise. The capital program will be limited in future years as a portion of the bond
proceeds that were formerly used for capital purchases must now be used for the debt payment
on the alternate revenue bonds that were issued to fund the construction of the new aquatic
center. The Board of Commissioners has committed to set aside $800,000 of funds to be used for
trails and future park development.

-21-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




There are currently no known contingencies that would force a major change in the District’s
budgeting, spending, or taxation.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Director of Finance, Champaign Park District, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign
IL 61821.

-22-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2015

Primary
Government

Governmental

Activities

Exhibit A

Component
Unit

$

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted

Receivables:
Accounts Receivable
Intergovernmental
Property Taxes
Grants Receivable
Promises to Give
Net Pension Asset
Prepaid Expenses

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Net of. Accixmulated Depreciation

Total Assets

12,781,619
576,681

157,033
57,890
5,804,086
334,997
799,750
8,203
7,840,578
33,844,918

$ 626,401

62,205,755

626,401

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding

LIABILITIES
Accrued Salaries
Accounts Payable | -
Accrued Interest
Unearned Revenue
Short-Term Bond Payable
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For: )
Unspent Tax Levy Allocations
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Donor Restricted Purposes
Other (Non-Expendable)
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

202,174

154,335
596,390

49,092
366,421
1,084,000

629,539
4,268,620

7,148,397

36,593,177

1,370,901
1,867,117
761,218
71,860
250,000
14,345,259

538,983

81,357

55,259,532

$ 620,340

See Accompanying Notes

-23-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip Joy - abueys o) y0algns — aAnejua) g Aeujwiaad

sa10N SurAueduwoooy 995

TES6ST'SS 120X JO puq - UORISOJ JaN

PSYITTTS 129X 30 SuruuISoq - UoHISod 3N

8L0°CHIE uonIsod 1oN ui sfuey)

(009°c6) juareAInby yse) uo sso

wa)[ ATeurpioenxyq

8L0°VLI'TI SONUSATY [LIOUSD) [8JOL

18%°LT1 . 1O X

TTE6T SWOS] 15819)U]

YET'LLT “S)d1o0ay [e10ads

£88°L8T xe], Jusuraoe[day] Ayredold [euosiad 91e1odiory - .

8STTSHI1 saxe], Auadorg

. -S9NUIAIY [eIUaD) .,
(00¥°L£6°8) 966°€0S $  YLLITI $ 6£T68sT §  (6O¥LvITD) $
(1€9°TST) - - - (1€9°1ST)
(69L°58L8)  $ 966°€0S $  YLLITT $ 6cT’68ST §  (8LL'S66'IT) §
SONIATIOY suonnqLIuo)) suonnNqLIuO)) S901AIAS I0] sasuodxyg
[BIUOUITLISAOL) pue sjueIn) puUE sjueID) soS1eyD
[ende) Suneradp
uonIsod 19N SONUAAYY WeIFol]
ur afuey)
PUB SONUSAIY
(esuadxq) 19N

g nquyxyg

S102 “0¢ [11dy pspuy Iesx oy 104
SONIATIOY JO Juotuolels
LOTILSIA IVd NOIVANVHD

muwgwoaﬂ [PIUOWIUISACD) [230],

199(] Uo 1saI9Iu]
UOTJEaI03Y] puE aImynyy
ISANIAIOY [BIUIWIUISA0D)

-24-



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Activities - Component Unit
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Exhibit C

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Support and Revenue

Special Event Revenue $ 32,255 $ - $ - $ 32,255
Less: Costs of Direct Benefits (22,000) - - (22,000)
Net Revenue from Special Events 10,255 - - 10,255
Contributions 13,047 99,087 - 112,134
Contributions - In-Kind 86,708 - - 86,708
Interest and Dividends 3,125 - - 3,125
'Net Assets Released from Restrictions 22,560 . .. (22,560) o ehn ED E -

- Total Support and Revenue 135,695 .= 76,527 s - 212,222

Expenses & - E
Program Services 32,813 - - 32,813
Supporting Services:

Management and General L -32485 . - - 32,485

Fund Raising o . 69376 . o - - 69,376

Total Supporting Services oo 101,861 - 101,861

Total Expenses =~~~ . - 134,674 . .. ¢ - 134,674

Change in Net Assets 1,021 76,527 - 77,548

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 80,336 394,337 68,119 542,792
Net Assets, End of Year $ 81,357 § 470,864 $ 68,119 $ 620,340

See Accompanying Notes

-25.

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - aiuey? 03 393lqns — aaejua]  Ateunwijaid

sojo0N SurAuedurosoy 99g

0Ty L36YT § 678°0TL'S $ 189°9LS $ LTE6ETT § 198°L£9°C $ 89L°TT0°Y § $S6°68L°6 § seoueeq pun, pue ‘sa0Iosay Jo
SMOTFU] PALIa(T ‘SIUINIel] [e0],
SYTTITLL 0€S°129'Y (SSL°6¥S) LTY'T06°'T £69°50L°T TLYS19°T 9.9°988°9 ssouerey pund [elo],
T8E'6SL'S - (9ct'9TI’1) - - - 818°¢88°9 pausisseuq)
LYY'608°L 000°€65°1 - LTIT06°1 096°00L°T 09€°€19°C - paudissy
96L°ThY 96LTYY - - - - - ' paprIwon)
SIY'TI6T PEL'SEET 189°9LS - - - - papmsoy
000°05¢ 000°0ST - - - - - puny JUoUeISg
£0T°8 - - 00€ €ELY rAE 4 858 sty predaig
:91qepuadg-uoN
SHONVTVE ANNd
806°85ST°S 00£°106 - 36£°68C 695°TT9 T6S°116 6v0vES T soxe, £119d014 - aNUSASY J[qe[reAr]
SHOANOSTY 40 SMOTANI ATIIF4dA
69T°9%S°T 666°L61 9EY 9TI°T T0S°LY 665°60€ $0S°S61 67T 69€ SoyITIqery [ejo L
12¥°99¢ €81°1 - 763°8 £05°8Y 19t°66C '8 9NUDASY pPauredu(]
000°€hE 3YLvE - - TIEEL 889°9L 7687851 spuny 1910 oL, 2ang
000480°T - 000°780°T - TSI . - - . d[qeded spuog
£TIT - £T1°T - - - - 15919)u] PanIddy
06£°965 87916 A f 114 820°S¢E 9LTLL 8€9°96 120°091 S[qeded s)unoooy
SEEYST $ Ov0°IL $ - $  Teoe $ Teost . $ LiLTe $  vE6'IH $ s[qeded saue[es Parooy
SHILITIGVIT
STONVIVE ANNA ANV ‘STOYN0STY 40 SMOTINI ANIIAIAA ‘SALLITIIVIL
0TY'L36'VT § 673°0TL'S $ 189°9LS $ LTE6ETT~-§  T98°LEYT $ 89L°T20'y $ $S6°68L°6 § §]assy [e10],
€0T°8 - - 00€ i €ELY TIET 858 S| predad
000°€YE 000°€PE - = - R - - - . spun,{ I Wol] ancg
$66°T90°T1 611°968°1 - 961°609 [LL°60E°T L6 Por 0EE’s soxe], Alradoig
068°LS 068°LS - - - - - [PITATIII A0S IoY]
€E0°LST 90619 - - - L19°9L 015°ST 9[qRAII0IY SIUNOOOY
'S9[qBAINNY
18999LS - 189°9LS - - - - pa1oIsay - sjuafeAmby gsey pue gse))
619°18LC1  § $16°85€°E $ - $ 1€8°679°1 $ LSE'ETET $ S6€°970°T $ (44834 a4 $ sjuarealnby yse) pue yse)d
SLASSV
spun,{ spung punyg pung pung pung pung
[IUSWIISAOL) ﬂmwﬂoaﬂuo>oo §paadold TOoNeaIIY Wn3asny QoﬁMOHOOM [elotuan)
E0L, (tofeN-uoN) puog Teroads
[/q0 IV
. spuny IofelN
10T ‘o€ [udy
spuny [BJUSUILIA0D)
100yUS soue[eg
LOTALSIA VA NOIVAANVHD

a nqmyxyg

-26 -



Exhibit D-1

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position

April 30,2015

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds $ 17,182,243
Grants Receivable from Other Governments 334,997
Property Taxes Receivable, Not Earned and Not Received (5,258,908)
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation Used in Governmental Activities 41,685,496
Accrued Interest on Long-Term Debt (46,969)
Uﬁavailable Revenué ffor‘P,ropie'rty Taxé:s Not Redéivje’d 5,258,908
Net Pension Asset 799,750
Bonds Payable (4,585,000)
Unamortized Premium oh BéndS»' B (93,269)
Deferred Outflow of Resources - Deferred Charge on Refunding 202,174
Accrued Compensated Absences Related to Governmental Activities (219,890)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 55,259,532

See Accompanying Notes

-27-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Auo sasodind uoissnasip m%mﬂwwwmm%%ow@ooﬂm:m = dAeUR) ¥ Aueujwjaid

SAION

EPTTRILT §  0ESIT9Y §  (sSL'6¥S) $§  LTHFT06T §  €69°S0LT §  TLYSI9T $  9L9'988°9 $
T8TBLE YT 621'P0T'E (1%T'v06) 622'901°C €LT°98C°1 TSHTITT oPP'ELY'9
196°€08°C 10V°LIY'T 98%'vSE (Z08°c0?) ozr'ely 0TT'cop 9ETEIY
(009°¢6) - - - - - (009°¢6)
- 00Z €hb'T 008,01 - (T6E"16) (865¥81) (010'6£2°C)
(06L°12L°E) (008'7L0°T) - - (T6£°P6) (865¥381) (000'89¢°C)
06L°1TL'E 000°81S°C 0087LO°T - - - 066°8T1
195°L68°C (66L°57) (P1€°0TL) (208°€0T) TISCIS 818°L8S 9P8°SHL'T
LEOT08'ET 0L9°106C TOE001°T £08°8€1°1 917°965°1 SSOTIIE 166°756°C
YITSHl - YITSHI - - - -
000°58€ - 000°$8€ - - - -
TTI9PST SIL'L96 199795 810°T19 e - 809°¢IE .0Z1'68
10L°%2L 01 SS6°€E6T LTS S8LLTS 91Z°965 "] Ly L6LT 1£8°€98°¢C
$90°TS6'l 816°9LT LTY'S 065°6L 9%0°01S 0ISPLE PLS'SOL
0£€°€59°T T66'LY - 0€1°sE 980°0€T - 9pLsI9 9LEVTL
L66°€60°T £EP°895°1 - $91°69 sLe'oL B4 G “$T0'18T
60£°520°S [4CNI - 006°€HE 601°58L 16L°T0LT L68TSIT
865°869°91 1L8°SL8T 886°6LE 100°S£6 820°0L1°C £.8°869°C L£8°869°9
18%°LT1 - - 00§°1 LIETS 60T°CL SSH1
YEL'LLT zor‘ozt - 00t ¥90°sT 9€L°TT1 76881
TTE6T S90°t LLY L96°T 78T sTI‘9 991°¢1
EPP eS8l 966381 1IS6LE 00t°1 00€°L 9€T9C 000°0SZ'1
0SZ'T0T - - - 669101 1SS°001 -
3¢8°18 TIL'Ey - - 9Z1°8¢ - -
686'98¢°C oro'y - TITTII vSTTES 10S°L0S'[ £80°I€I
£88°L8C £88°L8T - - - - -
8STTSY'I1 §  €L0°LTTT $ - §  £29918 $  9pL'19T1 §  S1§°T98T $  [0EY8TS $

spung spung TEIUAUINIIA0D punyg putyg pung pung punj
[eJUSUWIUISA0D) (rofep-uop) SPa3301d uoyearday WNasn uonearsnsy [e1susn

[el0L PQO NV puog [eroadg

spung Iofey

T 191Xy

S10T ‘0¢ [11dy papuy Ieax oy Iog
Spun, [BIUSWILISAOL)
saoue[eq pung ul sagueyy) pue ‘sermipuadxy ‘SoNUSASY JO JUSWSIL]S

LOTILSIA IVd NOIVANVHD

VIAX 40 ANT ‘TONVTVE ANNI
AVAX 40 ONINNIOTFL ‘YONVTIVE ANNA
SIONVTVA ANNA NI ADNVHD LAN

Juseamby yse)) uo ssoy
WILT AAVNIQIOVILXE

(sas()) seomog Suroueur,] I9G0) 19N
mQ s1zjsuer],
uJ sI19]Jsuer],
(SESN) SADANOS ONIDNVNIL HAHLO

SamyIpuadxy 19AQ) SINUSAIY JO (JIOLA(T) $590%T J9N

sermy1puadxy [ejoL
$93 pue }s319)u]
Tedroutrd
1991AISS 192
KepnQ repnde)
JUL1INY) [Rl0],
$90[A10S [enjoRnUO))
satppounuo)
spyeuag sFuLrg
safep| pue ssrefes
{UONBAINAY PUE 3NN
Juarmy)
STIALIANIIXT

SAMUIAY [eI0L
SNOSUR[[IOSIA
51dra09y] [eroadg
AuWooUT JSAIIU]
SpeID
S5O[RS UOISSIOUO]) PUB SSTPURYIISIA
sdrysiosuodg pue suoynqruwo))
SW3)] PAJE[oY Pue ‘S[eIUSY WeIS01d ‘S9o1AI9S 10§ sagIey)
SONUIAY [eSWIAA0TISIU]
saxe], Apadoid
SANNIATI

1

o0

(o]
]



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds
Accrued Grant Revenue Change from Beginning of Year

Contributed Capital Assets Do Not Provide or Utilize
Current Financial Resources

Rcm;j\}e lf?)xpéﬁditu;es for Cél;ital Assée:ts a

WLzoss on ]Sispdsal of :Capiv:t‘al vA:sse'tsrv |

Include Depreciation Expenﬁse

Increase in Net Pension Asset

Remove Expenditure fo; Bond Payment -

Accrued Interest on Long Term Debt Change from Beginning of Year

Amortization of Premium on Bonds and Deferred Outflow
of Resources - Deferred Charge on Refunding

Accrued Compensated Absences Change from Beginning of Year

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See Accompanying Notes

-29-

$

Exhibit E-1

2,803,961

(1,329,511)

15,000

2,133,068

(4,055)’
(1,706,313)
859,148
385,000

5,216

(11,633)

(6,800)

$

3,143,078

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget

General Fund

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Exhibit F

Actual Variance
(Budgetary Budget Budget (Actual -
Basis) (Final) (Original) Final Budget)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 5247044 § 5261513 $ 5261513 $ (14,469)
Intergovernmental Revenues - - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and
Related Items 131,083 131,560 131,560 477
Contributions and Sponsorships - - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - - -
Grants 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
Interest Income 13,166 10,000 10,000 3,166
Special Receipts 18,832 29,000 29,050 (10,168)
Miscellaneous 1,455 1,200 1,150 255
Total Revenues 6,661,580 5,433,273 5,433,273 1,228,307
EXPENDITURES
- Current: | ;
Culture and Recreation: y - S L SRS s
Salaries and Wages 2,243,112 2,306,770 52,285,485 . 1(63,658)
Fringe Benefits 281,024 300,045 - ©364,327 - (19,021)
Commodities 724,376 936,634 622,115 (212,258)
Contractual Services 705,574 924,403 880,015 (218,829)
Total Current 3,954,086 4,467,852 4,151,942 (513,766)
Capital Qutlay R _ : 89,120 . 194,400 2,542,000 (105,280)
Total Expenditures - - 4,043,206 ::4,662,252 6,693,942 (619,046)
Net Excess'(l:)eﬁci,t) of Ke?enue; : E B , ke
over Expenditures 2,618,374 771,021 (1,260,669) 1,847,353
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 128,990 137,100 - (8,110)
Transfers Out (2,368,000) (1,118,000) (1,118,000) (1,250,000)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,239,010) (980,900) (1,118,000) (1,258,110)
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Loss on Cash Equivalent (93,600) - - (93,600)
Net Change in Fund Balances 285,764 (209,879) (2,378,669) 495,643
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 6,473,440 6,473,440 6,473,440 -
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 6,759,204 $ 6,263,561 $ 4,094,771 $ 495,643
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes 37,257
Expenditure Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable 90,215
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 6,886,676
See Accompanying Notes
-30-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Recreation Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Exhibit G

Actual Variance
(Budgetary Budget Budget (Actual -
Basis) (Final) (Original) Final Budget)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 1,806,998 $ 1,811,981  $ 1,811,981  $ (4,983)
Intergovernmental Revenues - - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals and
Related ltems 1,507,501 1,547,688 1,547,688 (40,187)
Contributions and Sponsorships - 2,500 2,500 (2,500)
Merchandise and Concession Sales 100,551 : 99,432 99,432 1,119
Grants 26,236 17,856 16,856 8,380
Interest Income 6,125 3,000 3,000 3,125
Special Receipts 122,736 36,981 37,981 85,755
Miscellaneous 73,209 83,860 83,860 (10,651)
. Total Revenues 3,643,356 .. 3,603,298 3,603,298 40,058
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and Recreation: ‘ i P , . :
Salaries and Wages 1,741,337 1,910,477 1,643,618 " (169,140)
Fringe Benefits 104,400 109,320 148,300 (4,920)
Commodities 615,746 802,378 778,171 (186,632)
Contractual Services. .- - Ces e 374,510 - .-600,033 . 327,840 (225,523)
Total Current i s S tEL 42,835,993 . 3,422,208 C2,897.929 (586,215)
Capital Outlay . P 313,608 313,608 4,158,000 -
Total Expenditures 7 L 3,149,601 3,735,816 ©, 7,055,929 (586,215)
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues
over Expenditures 493,755 (132,518) (3.452,631) 626,273
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out (184,598) (191,500) (191,500) 6,902
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses): (184,598) (191,500) (191,500) 6,902
Net Change in Fund Balances 309,157 (324,018) (3,644,131) 633,175
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2,212,452 2,212,452 2,212,452 -
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 2,521,609 § 1,888,434 $§ (1431679 § 633,175
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes 55,517
Expenditure Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable 38,546

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 2,615,672

See Accompanying Notes

-31-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget

Museum Fund

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and
Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Corrent:' | s
;. Culture and Récreation:
£ Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current :
Capital Outlay o
Total Expenditures "

Net Excess (Deﬁéit) of Reveniles
over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Expenditure Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

See Accompanying Notes

Exhibit H

Actual Variance

(Budgetary Budget Budget (Actual -
Basis) (Final) (Original) Final Budget)
$ 121,663 $ 1215005 § 1215005 § (3,342)
632,254 811,436 811,436 (179,182)
38,126 49,863 49,863 (11,737
101,699 78,537 78,537 23,162
7,300 8,950 8,950 (1,650)
2,522 1,500 1,500 1,022
15,064 17,284 17,284 (2,220)
51,317 95,560 95,560 (44,243)
2,059,945 2,278,135 2,278,135 (218,190)
""" 812718~ 821,288 712,380 L (8570)
70,975 " 74,363 78,105 (3,388)
230,086 257,707 248,066 (27,621)
510,046 632,754 621,346 (122,708)
1,623,825 1,786,112 1,659,807 (162,287
; i T 90,000 -
7 1,623,825 1,786,112 1,749,897 (162,287)
436,120 492,023 528,238 (55,903)
(94,392) (95,600) (95,600) 1,208
(94,392) (95,600) (95,600) 1,208
341,728 396,423 432,638 (54,695)
1,286,273 1,286,273 1,286,273 -
1,628001 $ 1,682,696 $ 1718911 § (54,695)

50,083
27,609

$ 1,705,693

-32-

preliminary & tentative ~ subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Exhibit 1

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget

REVENUES

Property Taxes

Intergovernmental Revenue

Charges for Setvices, Program Rentals, and
Related Items

Contributions and Sponsorships

Merchandise and Concession Sales

Grants

Interest Income

Special Receipts

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current: | ' :
:Culture and Recreation:
" Salaries and Wages-
- Fringe Benefits

Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current

Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Net Excess (Deficit) of Révenues
over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Special Recreation Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Actual Variance
(Budgetary Budget Budget (Actual -

Basis) (Final) {Original) Final Budget)
$ 812,368 $ 813,788 $ 813,788 $ (1,420)
112,111 105,657 105,657 6,454

1,400 - - 1,400
2,967 3,000 3,000 (33)

400 209 209 191

1,500 900 900 600
930,746 923,554 923,554 7,192
Coasas34 0 3MB0L o 3TIAS 4,857)
69,165 - T 78,266 < 77,550 : - (9,101)
35,130 41,627 47,599 (6,497)
79,590 95,239 90,229 (15,649)
536,419 502,523 592,829 (56,104)
. 611,018 997,000 = 1,391,333 (385,982)
1,147,437 o, 1,589,523 © 1,984,162 (442,086)
(216,691) (665969)  (1,060,608) 449278
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - -
(216,691) (665,969) (1,060,608) 449,278
2,106,229 2,106,229 2,106,229 -

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

TFund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Expenditure Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Salaries and Wages Payable

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

preliminary & tentative —

1,889,538  § 1,440,260 § 1,045,621 § 449,278

4,255
8,634

$ 1,902,427

See Accompanying Notes
-33-

subject to change - for discussion purposes only




ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:.
 Accounts Payable
" Due to Affiliated Agencies
: " Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
April 30, 2015

See Accompanying Notes

-34 -

Exhibit J

Agency Fund
$ 44,347
o571
43,776
44,347

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30,2015

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Champaign Park District (the District) are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments. GAAP includes all relevant GASB
pronouncements plus other sources of accounting and financial reporting guidance noted
in GASB Statement 55, The Hierarchy of GAAP for State and Local Governments.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The District was organized in November 1911 and was established as a separate unit
of local government in 1955. The District is a municipal corporation which operates
under the statutes of the State of Illinois. It is governed by a five member Board of
Commissioners elected to six-year terms in biennial public elections. The District is
- composed of over 70 parks and facilities des1gned to help meet the le1sure needs of
- the people in the Champalgn Illln01s area. i : :

& The deﬁnltlon of what constItutes the entlty of the D1strlct is based on the guldehnes
set forth in GASB Statement Number 14, as amended by GASB Statement 61. The
primary government of the District consists of the funds presented herein as
governmental funds, a debt serv1ce fund capltal prOJect funds, a permanent fund, and
an agency fund ‘

According to GASB Statement Number 14, as amended by Statement Number 61, a
legally separate organization should be included as a component unit of the primary
government if the primary government is financially accountable for the legally
separate organization. Financial accountability is determined as follows:

1. The organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or

impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or

2. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing body, and:

e It is able to impose its will on the organization, or

o There is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government

-35-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the financial reporting
entity of the District, including the Champaign Parks Foundation (the
Foundation), a discretely presented component unit. The Foundation is a
discretely presented component unit because the resources received and held by
the Foundation are entirely for the direct benefit of the District, the District has
the ability to access those resources, and those resources are significant to the
District.

The assets, liabilities, net assets, revenue, and expenses of the Foundation are
included in the basic financial statements presented in Exhibits A and C. There are
no other entities for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
District are such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements to be
materially misstated or incomplete. The Foundation issues publicly available
financial statements, which may be obtained by contacting the Champaign Parks
Foundation, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois 61821-4112.

Related organizations for which the Commissioners appoint a voting majority of the
governing body, but for which the District is not financially accountable, are not
included in the reporting ent1ty

T omtly governed orgamzatlons are those for whlch the Dlstrlct does not have an on- e
. 'going financial interest or respons1b111ty J omtly governed orgamzatlons are not il
 included in the reporting entity. i -

b. Basic Financial Statements

Government— Wlde F manczal Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Act1vit1es dlsplay information about

the District as a whole. They include all funds of the District and the discretely

presented component unit, except the District’s Agency Fund. The Statement of Net

Position and the Statement of Activities include the governmental activities and the

discretely presented component unit. Governmental activities generally are financed
~ through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.

-36 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Internal balances and activities within the District’s funds are eliminated in the
government-wide financial statements. Activities between the District’s primary
government and the discretely presented component unit are not eliminated.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting (as described in Note 1.c).

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the District are organized into funds, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitutes its assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures/expenses. The District’s funds are
organized into two major categories: governmental and fiduciary funds. An emphasis
is placed on major funds within the governmental category. A fund is considered
major if it is the primary operating fund of the District or meets the following criteria:

1. Total assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plus deferred inflows
of resources, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
fund are at least 10 percent of the correspondlng total for all funds of that

B category or type

2. Total assets plus deferred outﬂows of resources 11ab111t1es plus deferred 1nﬂows
of resources, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund are at least 5 percent of the correspondmg total for all governmental funds
combined o

Governmental fund fin’ancial statements are reported using the current ﬁnancial

described in l.c).

The fiduciary fund financial statement is reported on the accrual basis of accounting
(as described in Note 1.c).

The fund types of the District are described below:
Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund financial statements)

is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources,
uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following
is a description of the governmental funds of the District:

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District and is
always classified as a major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those
legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

-37-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
of the specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for
specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The reporting entity of
the District includes the following special revenue funds:

» Major Special Revenue Funds

Recreation Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund, along with fees from
participants, provide the funds necessary to pay for recreational programs.

Museum Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund along with fees from patrons
provide the funds to acquire, maintain, improve, and operate the museum facilities
and programs including activities related to the cultural arts, nature, zoos, and arts
and crafts.

Special Recreation Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund along with fees from
participants provide the funds necessary to pay for recreational activities for the
handicapped, which is a cooperative program with the Urbana Park District.

> Non-MaJor Spe01al Revenue Funds

e L1ab111ty Insurance Fund Property taxes levred for th1s fund provrde the funds
necessary to pay the premiums for District insurance and a portion of the
administrative and risk management services needed to secure and implement these
insurance coverages. Insurance includes, but is not limited to, general liability,
umbrella habrhty, fire and extended coverage, burglary, theft, employee and
commissioner bonds, worker’s COmpensatron unemployment compensation, and
insurance on District vehicles and equipment. Premiums on health and life
insurance are not paid from this fund. ' :

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) Fund - State law requires all permanent
employees of the District to participate in a mandatory retirement plan through
payroll deduction, and the District as an employer also makes contributions to the
State plan. The property taxes levied for this fund are used to pay the employer
contribution to the plan.

Audit Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund are used to pay the expense of the
state-mandated independent annual audit of the District’s financial statements.

Social Security Fund - District employees make mandatory contributions to the
Social Security System as a payroll withholding, and the District as employer makes
matching contributions. Property taxes levied for this fund are used to pay the
employer contributions.

Police Protection Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund are used to pay
for the contracted police services provided by the City of Champaign.

-138 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Special Donation Fund - Is funded by donations from individuals and
organizations, which are restricted as to use as specified by the donor.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditures for principal and interest. The reporting entity includes one
debt service fund, which is the Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund.
This is a non-major governmental fund.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report
financials resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and
other capital assets. The reporting entity includes the following capital projects
funds:

» Major Capital Projects Fund

Bond Proceeds Fund - This fund accounts for the money generated by the sale
of general obligation bonds and the related disbursement of the funds for the
repayment of 1ong-term debt and capltal pI‘O_]CCtS as 11sted in the bond
~ord1nance - ; : 8

> Non-MaJor Capltal Projects Funds G

Paving and Lighting Fund - Property taxes levied for this fund are used to pay
for the construction, maintenance, and lighting of streets, roadways, bike paths,
sidewalks, and parkmg lots within the parks and fa0111tles maintained by the
District. ,

Capital Imnfonornénts and Repair Fund - 1ntefgovefnnlenfal revenues, special
receipts and transfers from other District funds are used to pay for capital
improvement and repair projects not funded by other District funds.

Land Acquisition Fund - Intergovernmental revenues, special receipts and
transfers from other District funds are used to pay for land purchases not funded
by other District funds.

Permanent Funds - Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used to support
the District’s programs. The District has one permanent fund, the Working Cash
Fund, which is a non-major fund.

-39 .

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held by the District in a trustee or agency
capacity for others and therefore cannot be used to support the District’s own
programs. The District has one fiduciary fund, the Activity and Affiliates Fund, which
provides administration for the funds from recreation centers, senior citizen programs,
adopt-a-park groups, and District co-sponsored affiliate programs.

c¢. Basis of Accounting
Accrual

Both governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the
fiduciary fund financial statement are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

L Modzf ed Accrual

5 The governmental fund ﬁnanmal statements are presented on the modlﬁed accrual

" basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue is
recognized when it becomes both measurable and available. Revenue is considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The District considers receipts
within 60 days of year—end to be available. Expendltures generally are recognized
under the modified accrual basis of accountlng ‘when the related liability is incurred.
The exception to this general rule is that principal and ‘interest on general obligation
long-term debt, if any, is recognized when payment is due.

Property taxes, corporate personal property replacement tax, and grants are considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measured and available only when
cash is received by the District.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes deposits at financial institutions, non-negotiable
certificates of deposit, and funds held in money market mutual funds or similar pooled
investments such as the Illinois Park District Liquid Assets Fund, the Illinois Funds, and
the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund.

- 40 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




e. Investments

Under Illinois law (30 ILCS 235/2), the District may invest excess funds in interest
bearing deposits at federally insured banks and savings and loans, commercial paper,
short term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, and
securities issued by the U.S. Treasury or other federal agencies. At April 30, 2015,
the District’s primary government has no investments.

f. Receivables

Receivables are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from third-party
payers and others for services rendered. Receivables are stated at the amount
management expects to collect on outstanding balances.

g. Interfund Balances

Short-term receivables and payables between funds are reported as due from and due
to other funds, respectively. Non-current amounts are reported as advances to/from
other funds. In governmental funds, advances to other funds as well as other long-
term receivables are offset by non-spendable fund balance because they do not
represent expendable avallable fman01al resources.

h. Prepald Expendltures/Expenses

Prepaid expenditures/expenses such as for insurance or service contracts are deferred
and expended/expense‘d over the term when the services are received.

i. Capital Assets
Capital assets purchased for use in govemmental act1v1t1es are recorded as
expenditures in governmental funds at the time of purchase. Governmental capital
assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements offset by accumulated
depreciation. Capital assets are valued at actual or estimated historical cost while
donated capital assets are valued at their fair market value on the date donated.
Equipment valued at or above $10,000, buildings and improvements valued at or
above $20,000, land improvements and infrastructure valued at or above $20,000, and
land of any value are capitalized. Assets that appreciate in value are capitalized if
valued at more than $10,000. Depreciation is calculated on all assets other than land
and assets that appreciate in value using the straight-line method, mid-month
convention with the following estimated useful lives:

-4] -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Years

Building Improvements 15
New Construction 40
Land Improvements 15
Computers and Office Equipment 5
Infrastructure:

Roads and Paved Surfaces 15

Bridges 50
Furniture 7
Other Equipment 5
MajorAppliances 7
Park and Recreation Features 12
Playground Equipment 12
Vehicles 5

j- Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

‘ The ﬁnanclal statement element deferred outflows of resources, representsa
- .recogmzed as an 1 outflow of resources (expense/expendlture) untrl then. The DlStI‘lCt
~ has only one item that quahﬁes for reportlng in thls category as of Aprll 30, 2015.
The item, deferred charge on refunding, is reported in the Statemient of Net Pos1t10n
The amount represents the excess of cash paid to the refunded bond escrow agent
over the amount of refunded principal payments. The amount is deferred and
recognized as an outﬂow of resources, (expense) over the shorter of the remaining life
of the refunded debt or the 11fe of the refundlng debt

acquisition of net position that apphes to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has only
one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category at April 30, 2015, which
arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenue from property taxes. This amount is
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the
property taxes become available.

k. Restricted Net Position

Assets that are not available to finance general operations of the District are reported as
restricted on the statement of net position. The District’s policy is to apply restricted
resources first when an expense is incurred for a purpose for which restricted and
unrestricted net position is available.

42 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




1. Fund Balance
Fund balances are classified as follows:

Non-Spendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the
District Charter, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or
creditors

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal resolution of the District Board of Commissioners

Assigned — Amounts that are constrained by the Board of Commissioners’ intent to
be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed

Intent is expressed by (a) the Board of Commissioners itself or (b) a body or official
~~to which the Board of Commrssroners has delegated the authority to assign amounts
| to be used for specific purposes The Drstrrct ] hlghest level of de0151on-mak1ng
) authorrty is the Board of Commlssmners whlch Is authorlzed to a551gn amounts to a
" _specific purpose through its appropriations power. : : i

Unassrgned All amounts not 1ncluded in other spendable clasmﬁcahons

When an expendrture is 1neurred for purposes for: whlch both restrlcted and
unrestrlcted (commltted a551gned or una551gned) fund balance is available, the
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available,
the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of
Commissioners has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

-43 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




m. Program Revenues
Program Revenues on the statement of activities include the following:
Governmental Activities

Charges for Services Fees paid by the public for the use of District facilities, District
Programs, and miscellaneous food and beverage vending

Operating Grants Funding used to support culture and recreation programs
and Contributions :

Capital Grants Funding used to construct facilities and develop properties owned
and Contributions by the District
n. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick
. leave since the District does not have a policy to pay sick leave amounts when - _
e employees separate from serv1ce w1th the Dlstrlct All vacatlon pay is accrued when
reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured for example, as a result
of employee resignations or retirements.

o. In-Kind Contributions-

Contrlbutlons of fa0111t1es and setvices are recogmzed by the Dlstrlct if the benefit
received (a) creates or enhances non-financial assets or (b) requires specialized skills,
provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased by the District if not provided by donation.

The District has various agreements with local media companies that provide
publicity for the District’s events in return for recognition at the District’s events and
in District publications. The District does not record in-kind contribution revenue or
expense related to these agreements. :

p. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

-44 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Reconciliation of Fund Statements to Government-Wide Statements

A reconciliation is provided with the balance sheet - governmental funds (Exhibit D-1) to
explain the differences between total fund balances in the balance sheet - governmental
funds and net position for governmental activities on the government-wide statement of
net position.

The major differences are due to:

a.

g.

Grants receivable from other governments for which funds were received subsequent
to 60 days after fiscal year end

Property taxes receivable and an equivalent unavailable revenue for 50 percent of the
2014 tax levy, which will be received and recorded as revenue in the next fiscal year

The value of capital assets, which are not reported in governmental funds

Accrued interest on debt, which will be paid during the second half of the next fiscal
year

; The net pen51on asset resultlng from pen510n contrlbutlons in excess of the annual
i ’requ1red contrrbutron whrch is not reported in governmental funds

The Value of long term 11ab111t1es 1nclud1ng premlums on bond issues, Wthh are not
reported in governmental funds

Unamortlzed deferred charge on refundlng

A reconcﬂlatlon is prov1ded with the statement of revenues, expendltures and changes in
fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit E-1) to explain the difference between the
change in fund balances in the governmental funds and the change in net position for
governmental activities on the government-wide statement of activities.

The major differences are due to:

a.

The change in accrued grant revenue does not impact governmental fund revenue,
while it impacts revenue on the statement of activities.

Capital outlay expenditures are not reported in the statement of activities, while
depreciation expense and gains/losses on disposal of capital assets are not reported in

governmental funds.

The change in net pension asset is part of the governmental activities but does not
impact governmental fund expenditures.

- 45 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




d. Bond proceeds are not revenue and bond payments (including bond refunding
payments) are not expenses on the Statement of Activities and the change in accrued
interest on bonds does not impact governmental fund expenditure.

e. The change in accrued compensated absences is not a governmental fund expenditure,
while it is an expense on the statement of activities.

Budgets and Budgetary Basis of Accounting
a. Budgetary Process

A proposed budget and appropriations ordinance is developed and made available for
public hearing at least 30 days prior to final approval. Upon approval, the Board of
Commissioners of the District legally enacts an annual operating budget through
passage of an ordinance. The appropriations ordinance is prepared by fund,
expenditure object (i.e. salary and wages), and expenditure sub-object (i.e. salary and
wages — full time personnel).

b. Legal Level of Budgetary Control

The budget is prepared by fund department program act1V1ty, object and sub object,”

: The District’s management may make transfers of budgeted amounts up to and

" including the department level. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the fund level The
budgetary expenditure comparisons in the basic financial statements are presented at
the fund level with summarizations at the object level (i.e.; salary and wages, fringe
benefits, commodities, and contractual services). The Drstrlct had no funds with
expendltures over budget for the year ended Aprll 30, 2015

c. Amendments to the Budget

Throughout the year, the Board can make amendments within each fund, not to
exceed an aggregate of 10 percent of the total appropriated amount of that fund.
Likewise, after the first six months of the fiscal year have elapsed, the Board may, by
two-thirds vote, transfer from any appropriation item, its anticipated unexpended
funds to any other item of appropriation. The budgeted financial statements
represented in this report reflect the final budget authorization. All budget
appropriations including project budgets lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

d. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for all funds of
the District, and legal budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds,
capital projects funds, debt service funds, and trust and agency funds. Budgets are
adopted on a modified accrual basis, except for property tax, which is on the cash
basis, a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP.

- 46 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




e. Budget Performance

The General Fund exceeded its transfers out budget for the year ended April 30, 2015
because $1,250,000 of grant revenue that was budgeted for receipt in the Capital
Improvements and Repair Fund was actually a revenue of the General Fund in fiscal
year 2015. Based on the Board of Commissioner’s intention in the approved budget,
this amount was transferred to the Capital Improvements and Repair Fund.

f.  Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting is not used by the District.
Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis

The budgetary comparison statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis, except
for property tax, which is on the cash basis, a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than GAAP. Each budgetary statement has a reconciliation at the bottom of the statement
showing the items needed to convert from the budgetary to the GAAP basis.

‘Deposits and Investments . ..
Cash — Reétricied

At April 30, 2015, the Districf’é éo?erhrriéntalb écti\}ities hold $ﬂ576,6vS.1 of cash éhd caSh
equivalents restricted for capital projects.

Custodial Creq’ft RiSk - Bank l\)epTéSit:;*r

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The District’s investment policy addresses custodial credit risk
by requiring that all deposits in excess of federal depository insurance are to be
collateralized by a pledge of securities from the depository bank at 110 percent of the
uninsured amount. At April 30, 2015, $317,169 of the District’s bank deposits of
$4,354,703, which reconciled to a book balance of $4,128,437, was exposed to custodial
credit risk. The $317,169 balance exposed to custodial credit risk was collateralized by
securities pledged by Central Illinois Bank held in the District’s name. The pledged
securities had a market value of $917,370.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk — External Investment Pools

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a bond or note security will not repay the principal
or pay the interest due on the debt. Interest rate risk is the risk that a change in the
market rate of interest for a category of debt securities will negatively impact the market
value of a debt security.

-47 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




The credit risk of investments is addressed by the District’s investment policy by limiting
investments to: 1) debt issued by the U.S. Government and its direct agencies, 2) short-
term obligations of U.S. corporations with assets exceeding $500,000,000, credit ratings
within the three highest levels of two standard rating services, and maturities no later than
180 days from purchase, and 3) money market mutual funds registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940.

Interest rate risk is not directly addressed by the District’s investment policy other than
the policy’s general guidelines to “remain sufficiently liquid” and “achieve market
yields”.

At April 30, 2015, the District held a total $46,963 in the Illinois Funds Money Market
Fund, which reconciled to a book value of $156,963. The fair value of the District’s
position in this fund is equal to the value of the District’s fund shares. The portfolio is
regulated by oversight of the Treasurer of the State of Illinois and private rating agencies.
The portfolio has AAAm ratings from Standard and Poor’s. The assets of the fund are
mainly invested in securities issued by the United States government or agencies related
to the United States. Assets of the fund not invested in United States government
securities are fully collateralized by pledged securities. The time to maturity of the
mvestments in this external 1nvestment pool averages less than one year

At ApI‘ll 30, 201 5, the Dlstrlct held $950 570 in the Ilhn01s Park DlStl‘lCt L1qu1d Asset i
Fund. The fair value of the District’s position in the Tlinois Park District Liquid Asset
Fund is equal to the value of the District’s fund shares. The Illinois Park District Liquid
Asset Fund is regulated by private rating agencies. The fund has AAAm rating from
Standard and Poor’s. The assets of this fund are mainly invested in securities issued by
the United States govemment or agencies related to the United Statés. Generally, assets
not invested in United States government securities are fully collateralized by pledged
securities. The time to maturity of the investments in this external investment pool
averages less than one year.

At April 30,2015, the District held $7,552,599 in the Illinois Metropolitan Investment
Fund (IMET) 1-3 Year Fund and $516,343 in the IMET Convenience Fund. These funds
are regulated by private rating agencies. The IMET 1-3 Year Fund has a floating net asset
value based on the value of the portfolio’s securities. The fund has Aaa/MR1 rating from
Moody’s Investors Service. The assets of this fund are invested exclusively in securities
issued by or guaranteed by the United States Treasury. The time to maturity of the
investments in this external investment pool averages one to three years. The fair value of
the District’s position in the IMET Convenience Fund is equal to the value of the District’s
fund shares. The IMET Convenience Fund is not rated by the nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The assets of the IMET Convenience Fund are invested in
fully collateralized certificates of deposit. Generally, assets not invested in certificates of
deposit are fully collateralized by pledged securities. The time to maturity of the
investments in this external investment pool averages less than one year.

-48 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




As discussed in more detail in Note 20, the IMET Convenience Fund disclosed a loss in
in October 2014 that impacted approximately $201,000 of the District’s investment in the
fund. IMET’s management segregated this balance in a fund separate from the normal
IMET Convenience Fund discussed in the previous paragraph. At April 30, 2015, the
District had a balance of $97,735 in this separate fund, which is included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Property Tax Cycle
a. Assessments

Property is assessed by elected township assessors at one-third the market value as of
January 1 each year. This is the date, called the lien date, on which property taxes
“attach” to the property. The township assessors’ books are turned into the County
Supervisor of Assessments by April 15. The Board of Review, a three-member panel
appointed by the County Board, takes action on assessment complaints and applies
individual township multipliers to those townships, which are not assessed at one-
third. This process equalizes the average ratio of assessments to market value among
townships. The Illinois Department of Revenue analyzes the work of the Board of

_ Review and may assign a countywide multiplier to brrng the entire County’s ratio into .

N hne with other counties throughout the state ' : : ‘

b. TaxpayerAppeals S

Taxpayers may file a complaint with the Board of Review if they believe assessments
are too high and may make further appeal to the state Property Tax Appeals Board.
However, tax lev1es are determmed by local governments not by assessors.

c. Property Tax Lev1es

Fifty percent of the calendar 2013 levy passed in November 2013 and 50 percent of
the calendar 2014 levy passed in November 2014, less allowances, related to fiscal
year 2015. Both levies were adopted within the Illinois statutory deadline (the third
Tuesday in December). Property tax levies are reported as receivables, net of an
allowance for uncollectible amounts, in the year in which they are adopted. Property
tax distributions received within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year are recognized
in that fiscal year as revenue in the governmental funds. The balance is unavailable
revenue to the next fiscal year for the governmental funds and eliminated for the
governmental activities.

Fiscal year 2015 property tax revenue on the statement of activities consists of 50
percent of the calendar 2013 levy and 50 percent of the calendar 2014 levy, less
allowances, however, for fiscal year 2015 the property tax revenue on the statement
of activities (on the accrual basis) and the property tax revenue on the statement of
revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (on the modified accrual basis)
have been left as equal as actual revenue recognition differences are immaterial.

- 49 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




d. Tax Bills

Illinois statutes require the payment of property taxes in two installments due June 1
and September 1 and require that tax bills be mailed 30 days prior to the first
installment. Property tax bills mailed in 2015 were based on equalized assessed value
as of January 1, 2014 and on tax levies set in November 2014.

e. Tax Distributions

The County Treasurer is also the County Collector and is in charge of collecting and
distributing property taxes. The Collector generally distributes taxes to the taxing
bodies shortly after taxes are paid. The County may not keep tax receipts on behalf
of other units of local government beyond 30 days. In 2014, all property taxes were
distributed by November 2014. Interest earned on taxes before distribution goes to
the local governments.

Property Taxes Receivable

Property taxes receivable for the governmental funds consists of property taxes levied in
2014, for which a legal claim exists in 2015. The revenue associated with the 2014 levy
is recognized in the governmental funds if received within the 60 day period following

the fiscal year end. The property taxes received beyond the 60 day period are deferred
until the fiscal year ending Apr11 30,2016, A summary of property taxes receivable by
fund type at April 30, 2015 is shown below:

S .. .. Property . Property Taxes Unavailable
Fund Type .+ . TaxesLevied = Receivable Revenue
General f i - $ 5,345,163 $ 5,330,464 $ 2,534,049
Recreation ‘ 1,922,732 1,917,444 911,592
Museum 1,313,383 1,309,771 622,569
Special Recreation 610,876 609,196 289,398
Non-Major
Special Revenue 1,091,939 1,088,935 517,807
Debt Service 733,051 731,035 347,389
Capital Projects 76,359 76,149 36,104
Total $ 11,093,503 $ 11,062,994 $ 5,258,908

Based on past collection experience, the District has applied an allowance for doubtful
collections against the property tax receivable of $30,507 at April 30, 2015.

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue for governmental activities on the statement of net position and for

governmental funds on the balance sheet — governmental funds for $366,421 consists
only of Unearned Program Fees at April 30, 2015.

-50 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Capital Assets

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets of the governmental activities
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015:

April 30, April 30,
Capital Assets 2014 Additions Deductions 2015
Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements $ 47,695,336  $ 1,045,161 $ (36,001) $ 48,704,496
Equipment 5,105,086 1,102,907 (152,040) 6,055,953
Not Being Depreeiated:
Land 7,840,578 - - 7,840,578
Total $60,641,000 $ 2,148,068 $ (188,041) $ 62,601,027
Accumulated Depreciation:
Infrastructure $ 8,336,236 $§ 921,249 §$ - $ 9,257,485
Buildings and Land
) Improvements 7,474,986 - 387,367 (36,001) 7,826,352
; Equlpment o ‘ 3 581 979, i: 397 697 . (147 982) 3,831,694
Total = |- A $ 19 393!201 $ 1,706, 313 $ (183 _Zﬁl $20,915, 531

Current Year depreciation expense was charged to the following function:
Culture and Recreation » $ 1,706,313

The additions total of $2 148 068 mcludes $15, 000 of capltal assets prov1ded by the
Foundation.

i

Certain amounts have been reclassiﬁed among the categories of cost and accumulated
depreciation for April 30, 2014 in the table above to be consistent with the groupings
used for April 30,2015. The reclassifications had no impact on the total cost or total
accumulated depreciation previously presented for April 30, 2014.

-51-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the District’s long-term debt of the
governmental activities for the year ended April 30, 2015:

April 30, April 30, Due Within
2014 Issued Retired 2015 One Year
Alternate
Revenue
Bonds $4,970,000 $ - $ 385000 $4,585,000 $ 400,000
Accrued
Compensated
Absences 213,090 6,800 - 219,890 219,890
Net Pension
Obligation 59,398 - 59,398 - -
Unamortized
Bond Premiums 102,918 - 9,649 93,269 9,649
Total Long-

TermDebt $5345 406 3 6,800 $ 454 047 $4898 159 $ :629;539

The ent1re balance of compensated absences at Aprll 30 2015 has been presented as due
w1th1n one year as management believes the actual amount that will be used within the:
next fiscal year will not be 51gn1ﬁcantly lower than this amount based on past usage
patterns. In fiscal year 2015 and prior years, accrued compensated absences have been
liquidated by the followmg funds General Recreatlon Museum L1ab111ty Insurance, and
Special Recreation. S E

Alternate Revenue Bontls ’
Series 2005 Bonds

On September 1, 2005, the District issued $6,950,000 of general obligation bonds
(alternative revenue source) to defray the costs associated with the District’s aquatic
center. These bonds, except for $675,000, were advance refunded on July 2, 2013.
The non-advanced refunded bonds were paid off in fiscal years 2014 ($330,000)
and 2015 ($345,000) under the bond’s stated maturity schedule.

A deposit was placed into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for
future debt service payments on the advance refunded 2005 bonds. As a result, the
bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has been
removed from the District’s liabilities. At April 30, 2015, $4,345,000 of debt
principal is considered defeased.

The advance refunding transaction resulted in an expense of $244,738, which
equals the amount placed in escrow less the carrying amount of the defeased bonds
including accrued interest to date of redemption. This expense has been capitalized
on the statement of net position as a deferred outflow of resources deferred charge

-52-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




on refunding. The balance at April 30, 2015 was $202,174, which is being
amortized through fiscal year 2025 in annual amounts of $21,282 through fiscal
year 2024 and $10,636 in fiscal year 2025.

Series 2013 Bonds

On July 2, 2013, the District issued $4,670,000 of general obligation bonds
(alternate revenue source). The proceeds of the bond issue were used to advance
refund the Series 2005 bonds, which were scheduled to mature on and after
December 15, 2015.

These bonds mature serially on December 15 of each of the calendar years 2013 to
2024 in amounts ranging from $45,000 to $525,000 and bear interest ranging from
2.0 percent to 3.0 percent payable June 15 and December 15 annually. Bonds
maturing on and after December 15, 2022 are subject to early redemption as of
December 15, 2021 at the District’s discretion. These bonds are to be repaid from
the revenue generated by the District’s aquatic center, which is included in the
activities of the Recreation Fund. However, the bond ordinance created an annual
tax levy sufficient to repay the principal and interest through 2024 if the revenue of
.. “the aquatic center is insufficient to repay the debt. This levy was abated for fiscal
- year2015. The Dlstrlct is currently using 1 funds from the annual general obllgatlon
bond issue to repay the prmcrpal and 1nterest i
Aggregate future pr1n01pal matur1t1es and 1nterest payments requlred on these bonds
are as follows

Fiscal Year Ended ‘ E o ; : ’

April 30 o Principal - . Interest Total
2016 R T ) 400,000 $ 125250 $ 525,250
2017 410,000 117,250 527,250
2018 420,000 109,050 529,050
2019 435,000 100,650 535,650
. 2020 ‘ 445,000 87,600 532,600
2021-2025 2,475,000 227,700 2,702,700
Total $ 4,585,000 $ 767,500 $ 5,352,500

The District has pledged future revenue from the Sholem Aquatic Center as a source of
funding for the repayment of these bonds. Principal and interest on the bonds are payable
through 2024 and it is management’s intention to use funds from the annual general
obligation bond issue to make all debt payments rather than the pledged revenue. Annual
principal and interest on the bonds would require an amount greater than the expected
revenue from the operation of the Sholem Aquatic Center; however, the debt service will
utilize approximately 50 percent of the proceeds of the general obligation bond issued.

-53 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




12.

13.

Principal and interest paid for fiscal year 2015 was $166,050. The Sholem Aquatic
Center’s revenue totaled $335,459 for fiscal year 2015. The proceeds from the
general obligation bond issued in fiscal year 2015 was $1,084,000. At April 30,
2015, pledged future revenues totaled $5,352,500, which was the amount of the
remaining principal and interest on the bonds.

The 2013 bond ordinance calls for a funded reserve to pay principal and interest.
The bond fund reserve requires the next principal and interest payment amounts to
be set aside by each December 1, but requires no specific monthly set aside amount
before that date. At April 30, 2015, the required balance in this reserve was $0 and
$0 was held in the reserve.

General Obligation Bond

On December 2, 2014, the District issued $1,084,000 of general obligation bonds
(limited tax) to defray the costs associated with various capital projects and for
paying the principal and interest on the District’s alternate revenue bonds. The
registrar and paying agent is Busey Bank for this bond issue, which is known as
the General Obligation (Limited Tax) Park Bond, Series 2014. These bonds

... mature November 30, 2015 and bear interest of 0.47 percent. The bond principal
- of $1,084, 000 and interest of’ $4, 854 will be pa1d ﬁom property taxes levred

spe01ﬁcally for this bond repayment

rThe followmg isa summary of changes in the Dlstrlct ] short-term debt of the
governmental activities for the year ended Apr11 30, 2015

Apr1130 T apil3o,

L2014 " Jssued _  Retired 2015
General Obligation R o e
Bonds $ 1,068,000 $ 1,084,000 _$ 1,068,000 _§ 1,084,000
Legal Debt Margin

At April 30, 20135, the estimated legal debt margin was determined as follows:

Assessed Valuation (Tax Year 2014) $ 1,527,189,530
Statutory Debt Limitation (2.875 Percent of $ 43,906,699
Assessed Valuation)

Total General Obligation Bond Indebtedness
at April 30,2015 (1,084,000)

Legal Debt Margin $ 42,822,699

-54 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




14.  Restricted Net Position

At April 30, 2015, the District has restricted net position that is restricted due to enabling
legislation as follows:

Tax Levy Allocations for:
IMRF Expenditures $ 306,863
Audit Expenditures 22,312
Social Security Expenditures 439,410
Liability Insurance Expenditures 552,559
Police Protection Expenditures 49,757
Total $ 1,370,901

15. Non-Spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Deficit Fund Balances
a. Non-Spendable, Restricted, Committed, and Assigned

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report non-spendable,
.- restrictions of, commitments of, and ass1gnments of fund balances for amounts that
~_are not available for approprlatlon are restricted: by outside partles foruse fora
. specific purpose, are committed for a specific purpose by an action of the Board of -

* Commissioners, or are assigned by the Board of Commissioners’ intent to be used for
specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed, respectively. Intent is
expressed by (a) the Board of Commissioners itself or (b) a body or official to which
the Board of Commissioners has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used
for specific | purposes As of Apr11 30 2015 such fund balances are composed of the
following: .

-55-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Other Major ~ Non-Major Total

General Governmental Governmental — Governmental
Fund Funds Funds Funds
Non-Spendable:

Prepaid Items $ 88 §$ 7,345  $ - 3 8,203
Permanent Fund - - 250,000 250,000
858 7,345 250,000 258,203

Restricted:

Tax Levy
Expenditures - - 1,370,901 1,370,901
Capital Projects - 576,681 131,755 708,436
Debt Service - - 761,218 761,218
Scholarships - B 71,860 71,860
- 576,681 2,335,734 2,912,415

Committed:
Capital Projects - - 142,362 142,362
Land Acquisition - - 300,434 300,434
: , : T - - 442,796 442,796

Assignéd: _ E S - £ ‘ S
' Culture and o Co o R ¥

" Recreation - - 4314320 o 4,314,320
Capital Projects - - 1,593,000 1,593,000
Special Recreation , - 1,902,127 - 1,902,127
- 6216447 1,593,000 7,809,447
Total ) 858 '$6,800,473 - $4,621,530 $11,422,861

b. Deficit Fund Equity

As of April 30, 2015, the Bond Proceeds Fund had a deficit fund balance of
$549,755. This deficit will be eliminated in fiscal year 2016 by the transfer of funds
from the Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund as part of the repayment of the short-
term bond debt.

-56 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




16.

17.

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund receivables and payables at April 30, 2015, are summarized below:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Capital Improvements and Repair Fund $ 343,000 $ -
General Fund - 158,852
Recreation Fund - 76,688
Museum Fund - 73,312
IMRF Fund - 34,148
Total $ 343,000 $ 343,000

The amounts due among the funds relate to working capital loans. The amounts due have
no specific repayment date scheduled, however, repayment is expected within the next
fiscal year.

Interfund transfers made during the year ended April 30, 2015 are summarized below:

Transférs Tn | Transfers Out.

Bond ProceedsFund . 7 1§ 1074800 § -
“IMRF Fund o I ) 825,000 .
Capital Improvements Fund 1,593,000 -
General Fund ' B ) 7 o 128,990 2,368,000
Land Acquisition Fund . = 100,000 -
Recreation Fund o ‘ ' o 184,598
Museum Fund o ' v - 94,392
Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund , - 1,074,800

Total $ 3,721,790 § 3,721,790

The transfer from the Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund into the Bond Proceeds Fund
was related to the redemption payment and related interest of the 2013 G.O. bond. The
$100,000 transfer from the General Fund to the Land Acquisition Fund was to support that
fund’s future capital projects as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners. The
transfers into the IMRF Fund from the General Fund, Recreation Fund, and Museum Fund
were related to the additional IMRF payment made in fiscal year 2015 as discussed in Note
17. All other transfers in and transfers out were to support operations of the various recipient
funds as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioner.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The District’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees
provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The District’s plan is affiliated with the
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan.
Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the

-57-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy - As set by statute, the District’s Regular Plan members are required to
contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers
to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the
retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution
rate for calendar year 2014 was 10.56 percent. The District also contributes for
disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which
are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are
set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is
set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost - For fiscal year 2015, the District’s annual pension cost was
$369,893 for the Regular Plan. The District’s actual contribution for fiscal year 2015
was $369,893. In December 2014, the District made an additional payment in the
amount of $859,148. Through April 30, 2015, the District’s net pension asset was
$799,750. The net pension asset is recorded as an asset on the government-w1de
‘statement of net p051t10n as of Apl‘ll 30, 2015

Three—Year Trend Informatlon for the Regular Plan

Annual Percentage

Fiscal Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
Year Ending . . (APC) Contributed Obligation (Asset)
4/30/15°  $ 369,893  100%  $§  (799,750)
453014 . 351,766 100% 59,398
430137 322,367 C100% 59,398

The net pension asset for the District is as follows:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 365,438
Interest on the NPO 2,970
Adjustment to the ARC 1,485
Annual Pension Cost 369,893
Actual Contribution 369,893
Increase to the NPO ‘ -
Payment in Excess of ARC (859,148)
Beginning of Year NPO 59,398
End of Year Net Pension Asset $  (799,750)

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012,
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions at December 31, 2012, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net
of administrative and direct investment expenses); (b) projected salary increases of 4.0

-58-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




18.

percent a year, attributable to inflation; (c) additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.4 percent to 10.0 percent per year depending on age and service, attributable to
seniority/merit; and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3.0 percent annually. The
actuarial value of the District’s Regular Plan assets was determined using techniques that
spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-
year period with a 20.0 percent corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets.
The District’s Regular Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2012
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 29 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of December 31, 2014, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the Regular Plan was 90.94 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $8,814,03 1 and the actuarial value of assets was
$8,015,243, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $798,788.
The covered payroll for calendar year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered
by the Plan) was $3,391,160 and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 23.56
percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreas1ng over tlme

: relat1ve to the actuarlal accrued 11ab111ty for beneﬁts '

) :

The D1strlct prov1des no other'postemployment beneﬁts to empieyees.i g
Joint Risk Management Pool

The District is exposed to various l‘lSkS related to: torts theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errots and omissions; injuries to employees; and net income losses.
Since May 1, 1993, the District has been a member of the Park District Risk Management
Agency (PDRMA) Property/Casualty Program. Since October 1, 2010, Champaign-
Urbana Special Recreation has been a member of the PDRMA Property Casualty
Program. PDRMA is a public entity risk pool consisting of park districts, forest preserve
districts, special recreation associations and certain nonprofit organizations serving the
needs of public entities formed in accordance with the terms of an intergovernmental
cooperative agreement among its members.

-59 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




The following table is a summary of the property/casualty coverage in effect for the
period January 1, 2015 through January 1, 2016.

PDRMA
Member Self-Insured Insurance
Coverage Deductible Retention Limits Company Policy Number
1. Property:
PDRMA P070114
All Losses per Occurrence $ 1,000 § 1,000,000 $1,000,000,000/all ~ Reinsurers:
members Various
Flood/Except Zones A & V $ 1,000 $ 1,000,000 $250,000,000/ Reinsurers
Occurrence/ through the
Annual Aggregate Public Entity
Flood/Zones A & V $ 1,000 $ 1,000,000 $200,000,000/ Property
Occurrence/Annual Reinsurance
Aggregate Program (PEPIP)
Earthquake Shock $ 1,000 $ 100,000 $100,000,000 /
Occurrence/Annual
Aggregate
Auto Physical Damage
Comprehensive and $ 1,000 $ 1,000,000 Included
Collision
Course'of Con§truction $ 1,000 Included $25;000,000
ﬁusin'ess Interruption, R,ental ‘ EE : : .
Income, Tax Income $  1,000° ’ $100,000,000 /
Combined Reported Values
$500,000/
$2,500,000 / Non-
Reported Values -
. Other Sub-Limits
Apply = Refer To
Coverage Document
Service Interruption 24 Hours N/A $25,000,000
Other Sub-Limits
Apply - Refer To
Coverage Document
-60 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Member Self-Insured Insurance
Coverage Deductible Retention Limits Company Policy Number

Boiler and Machinery
Property Damage $ 1,000 $ 9,000  $100,000,000 Travelers - BME105251.478
Equipment Indemnity Co. of
Breakdown Illinois
Property Damage -
Included

Business Income 48 Hours N/A Included
Other Sub-Limits
Apply - Refer To
Coverage Document

Fidelity and Crime $ 1000 § 24000 $2,000,000/ National Union
Occurrence

Seasonal Employees $ 1,000 § 9,000 $1,000,000/ Fire Insurance 02-306-54-93
Occurrence Co.

Blanket Bond $ 1,000 § 24,000  $2,000,000 /
Occurrence

2. Workers Compensation:

Employer's Liability N/A § 500,000 Statutory PDRMA
e 8 500000 ;83500000 - Covemment g0l
EmP1§YCES Liabjlity Entities MuFual hE GEM—0003:-
‘ T ;‘ (S(:fcht;f)Nalional A AISOZO!
SR SP4052469
3. Liability:
General C ;woNone . - § 500,000 - $21,500,000/ -+ PDRMA
R e o o ‘Qccurrence Reinsurers: Lo10115
t
. S , , GEM/Grea GEM-0003-
: o : g ‘ - American/
Auto Liability . % None ' § 500,000 - $21,500,0007/ . Genesis A15001
Occurrence C501
Employment Practices None § 500,000  $21,500,000 /
Occurrence
Public Officials' Liability None § 500,000  $21,500,000/
Occurrence
Law Enforcement Liability None $ 500,000  $21,500,000/
Occurrence
Uninsured/Underinsured
Motorists None $ 500,000  $1,000,000/O0ccurrence
4. Pollution Liability
Liability - Third Party None $ 25,000  $5,000,000 / XL PEC 2535805
Occurrence Environmental
Insurance
Property - First Party $ 1,000 $ 24,000 $30,000,000 3 yr.
Aggregate

-61 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




PDRMA

Member Self-Insured Insurance
Coverage Deductible Retention Limits Company Policy Number
5. Outbreak Expense 24 Hours N/A  $15,000 per day Great American OBO10115
$1,000,000
aggregate policy limit
6. Information Security
and Privacy Insurance
with Electronic Media
Liability Coverage
Information Security & None 100,000  $2,000,000 / Beasley Lloyds C121280
Privacy Liability Occurrence / Annual Syndicate
Aggregate
Privacy Notification None 100,000  $500,000 / Occurrence/  AFB 2623/623
Costs Annual Aggregate through the
PEPIP program
Regulatory Defense & None 100,000  $2,000,000/
Penalties Occurrence / Annual
Aggregate
Website Media Content: None 100,000 $2,000,000/:
- Liability ¥ P . Occurrence / Annual
o ) : o Aggregate -
Cyber Extortion None 100,000  $2,000,000 /
Occurrence / Annual
Aggregate
Data Protection & $ 1,000 " 100,000 $2,000,000/
Business Interruption : : ' “ Occurrence / Annual
i Aggregate
First Party Business 8 hours 100,000  $25,000 hourly
Interruption sublimit/ $25,000
forensic expense/
$100,000 dependent
business interruption
7. Volunteer Medical None 5,000  $5,000 medical expense  Self-insured
Accident and AD&D excess of any
other collectible insurance
8. Underground Storage None N/A  $10,000, follows Illinois ~ Self-insured
Tank Liability Leaking Underground
Tank Fund
9. Unemployment N/A N/A  Statutory Member-funded
Compensation
-62 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes -only




Losses exceeding the per occurrence self-insured, and reinsurance limit would be the
responsibility of the District. During the year ended April 30, 2015, there were no
significant reductions in coverage. Also, there have been no settlement amounts that
have exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.

As a member of PDRMA’s Property/Casualty Program, the District is represented on the
Property/Casualty Program Council and the Membership Assembly and is entitled to one
vote on each. The relationship between the District and PDRMA is governed by a
contract and by-laws that have been adopted by resolution of the District’s governing
body. The District is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to PDRMA, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with PDRMA, its
claims administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow
risk management procedures as outlined by PDRMA.

Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of PDRMA attributable to a
membership year during which they were a member.

PDRMA is responsible for administering the self-insurance program and purchasing
excess insurance according to the direction of the Program Council. PDRMA also

- “provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and -

- settlement of claims, and establishes reasonable and necessary loss reduct1on and
preventron procedures to be followed by the members : - »

The following represents a summary of PDRMA S balance sheet at December 31 2014
and the statement of revenues and expenses for the period ending December 31, 2014.
The District’s portion of the overall equity of the pool is 0.788 percent or $325,507.
Champaign-Urbana’s Specral Recreation’ s portion of the overall equ1ty of the pool is
0.015 percent, or $6 lSl .

Assets S ” $ 62,397,015

Liabilities $ 21,080,991
Member Balances $ 41,316,024
Revenues $ 20,548,979
Expenditures $ 19,517,301

Since 96 percent of PDRMA’s liabilities are reserves for losses and loss adjustment
expenses, which are based on an actuarial estimate of the ultimate losses incurred, the
Member Balances are adjusted annually as more recent loss information becomes
available.

-63 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




19.

20.

21.

22,

Contingent Liabilities

The District participates in a number of state and federally assisted programs. Under

the terms of the programs, periodic audits are required, and certain costs may be
questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of these programs.

Such audits could lead to reimbursements to grantor agencies. Based on prior
experience, the District believes examinations would not result in any material disallowed
costs for grant revenue recorded in these financial statements or from prior years.

In the normal course of events, the District makes various commitments and incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. Additionally, various legal proceedings are pending against the District.
Management believes that the aggregate liability, if any, resulting from these will not be
material after insurance coverage.

Extraordinary Item
In October 2014, the IMET Convenience Fund disclosed a loss in excess of $50 million

related to a fraudulent loan scheme. The District had approximately $201,000 invested in
the fund assets that incurred the loss. As of the date of the auditor’s report,

o approx1mately $10,000 of the Dlstrlct’s loss has been recovered and IMET’s rnanagement'

believes that investors will receive approx1mately 53.5 percent of their orlgmal

investment; therefore in fiscal year 2015, the District wrote off'approximately 46.5

percent, $93,600, of its original investment amount. This loss is unusual and infrequent
in nature resu1t1ng in the Extraordlnary Item presentatlon

Subsequent Events and Future Com mltments

Through the date of the Independent Audltor S Report the District has various
construction projects in progress or pending with commitments totaling approximately
$1,172,000. These commitments are expected to be paid in fiscal year 2016 using funds
from the General Fund ($292,000), Bond Proceeds Fund ($232,000), Special Recreation
Fund ($84,000), Capital Improvements Fund ($454,000), and Recreation Fund
($110,000).

The District has a contract for the purchase of electricity through June 2016. The
contract contains set rates for kilowatt hours and calls for base consumption quantities.
Total payments under the contract for fiscal year 2015 totaled approximately $234,000.

Adoption of GASB Standard
The District will adopt GASB Statement 68 (4ccounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27) in fiscal year 2016. The District’s

management has not yet determined the impact of this new standard on the reported
amount of net position as of April 30, 2015.

-64 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




23.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The following notes are provided for the District’s component unit, the Champaign Parks
Foundation:

A. Nature of Foundation

The Champaign Parks Foundation (the Foundation) is a nonprofit corporation
organized under the laws of the State of Illinois to develop philanthropic support
for the Champaign Park District (the District). The Foundation is considered a
component unit of the District under the accounting standards followed by the
District; however, the Foundation is a separate legal entity. The Foundation’s
only program relates to the support of the operational and capital needs of the
District that lack adequate funding through the District’s available resources.

The Foundation’s major sources of revenue and support are contributions from
donors, grants, and interest income.

B. Summary of Slgmﬁcant Accountmg Policies
I Followmg is a summary of the 31gn1ﬁcant accountlng pohc1es of the Foundatlon _

“a. ' The Foundatlon S ﬁnanmal ’statements have been prepared in ac'cordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). Net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are

- classified and reported as follows

> Unrestrtctea’ Net Assets Net assets that are not subject to donor-
© imposed stipulations. . I

> Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-
imposed stipulations that may or will be met, either by actions of
the Board of Directors and/or passage of time. When a restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

> Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-
imposed stipulations that must be maintained permanently by the
Foundation. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the
Foundation to use all or part of the income earned for general or
specific purposes.

b. Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits in checking accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with maturities less
than three months. These certificates of deposit are carried at cost.

-65 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




c. Investments consist of certificates of deposit with maturities greater than
three months. These certificates of deposit are carried at cost.

d. Contributions of facilities are capitalized if the appraised value of the
property exceeds the Foundation’s capitalization threshold of $5,000.
Contributed services are reported as contribution revenue and as assets or
expenses only if the services create or enhance a non-financial asset (for
example, property and equipment) or:

> Would typically need to be purchased by the Foundation if the
services had not been provided by contribution

> Require specialized skills
> Are provided by individuals with those skills

e. Promises to give consist of unconditional promises to give to the
Foundation. The carrying amount of promises to give may be reduced by
a valuation allowance based on management’s assessment of the
collectability of specific pledge balances. Management has provided no
allowance for uncollectlble promises to give based upon management’
assessment of the collectablllty of the ex1st1ng spemﬁc promlses to glve

f. | The Foundatlon is exempt from federal income taxes under Sectlon
501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code

. The costs of prov1dmg the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities.
. ‘Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

h. As of April 30, 2015, the federal and Illinois tax filings that fall within the
applicable statutes of limitation remain open for review by tax authorities.

i. The Foundation’s management has reviewed subsequent events from April
30, 2015 to August 13, 2015, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

J- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

k. Certain reclassifications have been made to the amounts presented on the
financial statements for April 30, 2014 to conform to the presentation for
April 30, 2015. The reclassifications had no impact on the net assets or
change in net assets previously reported for the year ended April 30, 2014.

- 66 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at April 30:

2015 2014
Cash $ 181,874 $ 163,085
Money Market 86,014 85,906
Certificates of Deposit 100,365 100,037
Total $ 368,253 $ 349,028

D. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at April

30:
2015 2014

Virginia Theatre Restoration $ 204,840 $ 137,252
 WestSide Patk Sculptares =~~~ 57867 57,867
~ CUSR T I O R (LT 26,344
© MemorialTree .~ =~ 1 C 288524 29,152
Prairie Farm ' ' 18,693 15,652
William Wagner Trust 18,356 18,356
West Side Park ;. o i b -16,853 16,853
Ambocs Project = = ' 14,445 14,445
Meditation Gardens foom 11,481 11,481
Leonhard Recreation Center 110,986 10,732
Various - Under $10,000 51,522 56,203
Total "$ 470,864 ' $ 394,337

E. Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the H.E. Moore Trust of $68,119 as of
April 30, 2015 and 2014,

F. Endowment

The Foundation is following the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act adopted by the State of Illinois. As a result, the Foundation classifies
as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time

-67 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-
restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net
assets should be classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those assets are
appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation’s Board of Directors. However,
because the endowment donor has not placed restrictions on the use of the
investment income or the net appreciation resulting from the donor-restricted
endowment funds, and because the investment income is not a significant amount
annually, all endowment income and appropriation activity is presented in the
unrestricted column on the statements of activities.

The Foundation has not adopted an investment policy or spending policy related
to the endowment; however, the objective of the Foundation is to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets are invested in
cash equivalents. The investment policy of the Foundation is to invest cash
equivalents into high-quality instruments with high liquidity and current maturity
of one year or less. Actual returns in any given year may vary. Investment
income earned from the endowment is spent in accordance with the Foundation’s
mission.

_ Total endowment net assets of $68,119 at April 30,2015 and 2014 were
: permanently restricted and had no change in Value dur1ng the years ended Aprll f'
- 30,2015 and 2014 ' ‘ . : £

G. Related Party Transactlons

The District provided donated services to.the Foundation. Donated services
consist of salaries of District personnel assngned to perform management and fund
raising services for the Foundation. For the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014,
the amount contributed and included as in-kind revenues totaled $86,708 and
$64,337, respectively. An equivalent expense is included in the statement of
activities. Of the $86,708 and $64,337, approximately $66,500 and $51,000,
respectively, was allocated as fundraising expense; therefore, the Foundation only
used approximately $7,000 and $5,000, respectively, of its own funds towards the
fundraising expenses on the statement of activities.

For the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, the Foundation also received
$55,780 and $44,158 from the District in contributions, of which $10,916 and
$41,544, respectively, was transferred back to the District. The Foundation also
transferred $6,107 to the District in fiscal year 2015, which represents the net
proceeds, after the cost of direct benefits and specific fundraising costs, of the
special event (car raffle) held during the year.

For the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, the District’s contributions of
$55,780 and $44,158, respectively, consist of funds contributed directly to the
District that have been transferred to the Foundation for maintenance of the
contributions until the funds are needed by the District. The contribution amounts
are 26 and 22 percent of the Foundation’s total support and revenue for the years
ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

- 68 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




fjuo sesodind uoissnasip 1o} - abuey? o3 323lqns — aAeud) % Ateujwijaad

"popuny 1us019d (1 ST S9I1aI 10] AIIqe]] POTLIOoR [BIIBN)OR O], "SS9SI 0] SJUNOUre opn[oul

10u 0p ASYJ, “WLUSICT 9Y} YIM JIPIIO S0IAISS JARY OUM SISQUISUI SALJOBUT PUR SALOR ISA0D ANIRI[ POTLIOOE PUE S1OSSE JO SN[RA [RLIBNIOR O],

Jueared €/°901
. 99 P[noM OWeI PIpUNY 31 “SISeq JONIBWI B UQ "679°LOY 6$ Sem $10T ‘1€ IOQUIdA(T JO SE S]OS5E JO MN[eA [ELen]or ) ‘SISeq Sn[eA JadIeu & U0

%8%'8€ 0$0°TS0°€ %9798 €8THLI 886°0L9°8 SOL96Y L TIoT/1€/21
%9T LT TITTSIE - %TT06 - 871658 . LE6°S8L8 68L°9T6°L €10Z/1€/21
%9S°€T 091°T6€°C  § %606 88L°86L $  1€0%I88 §  €HTSIO8  $ v10T/1€/21
9/(e-q) (0) (q/e) (e-q) @ (®) aeq
[[oKked [[014eg oney (Tv v 98y Anuy - 51988V uoyenfeA
pa1aa0) jo pa1sa0) pspung VYV (TVV) Apiqer] JoonfeA [eLenOY
d3ejuaorog papunjupn) pannay [eLIen)oy
eseTvvN [eLenioy

puny JuswaIney fedouniy siouty

. (psupneup)
ssa1801g Surpungd Jo o[npayos

JOTILSIA YAVd NOIVAANVHD
uonyeuriojuy Areyudurdjddng pasmbay

-69 -



COMBINING STATEMENTS

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




AJuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - abueys o} 103fqns — aAneyua) p Aeuiwiaid

6Z8°0TL'S $ 000°052 $ PeP00€ $ PeSPSLT  § 98L°661 $ L09°80T°1 $ 098°1L $ ILYVL $ 0I€°LI9 $ $99'1¢ $ 6LT'8LS $ 818°€EL $ Sdaueied puny Put "ssoInasay Jo
SMO[UT paLIJa(] 'SRLIqRLT [BI0L

0£5'129'y 00005 PEP'00E Z9E'SELT SSL'IEL 81T'19L 098'1L LSL'G 01¥'6EP TIE'TT £98'90¢ 65S'TSS seourced puny [eioL,
- - - - - - - - - - - - paudissoup
000'€6$°T - - 000'€65'1 - - - - - - - = paudissy
9GL'TYY - YEF'00€ 9eTVL - - - - - - - - PRpruwon
PEL'SEET - - - SSL'TEL 81TI9L 093°1L LSLGY [Uea334 TIETT £98'90€ 655°TSS papmsay
000°08¢ 000°0$Z - - - - - - - - - - pun JusueuLad ‘9[qepuads-uoN

SHONV'TVE ONNA
00£'106 - - - POT'9€ G8E'LYE - £5€'6 0SL'TLL £5€'6 GEO'ELL TEEYST saxe], Auadoiq - anuaAYy Jqe[reAtur

SHDUNOSTYA 40 SMOTINI ATNAFAIQ

G6G'L61 - - CETGL LT6'1E - - 99¢'S1 0L1'9 - LLE'86 L26'9T SaM(IqerT [I0L

8P1'vE - - - - S el e - I - 8p1'vE - spung Jagig oL anq

€q1'L - - - - - - - - - - £3T'1 anusAsy pawreaun

82916 - - TET6L LT6'1€ - s 99€'ST b - = £01'sT a|qedeq sjunody

0v0'1L s - 5 - 5 - § - $ - § - § - § oLl's $ - § 6Ty $ w9 $ 3|qeded saue[es panmoy
SHLLITIEVIT

SIONVTIVE NN ANV ‘STOANOSTY 10 SMOTINI ATHAAIAQ ‘STILITIIVI'T

98L°661 $ now.woﬁ.ﬁ, $. 098°1L $  oLv'pL $  0I£'Ll9 §  599'l¢ $ - 6LT'RLS S sI8'tEL $ SessY [I0L

6e8'0zTL'S $ 000057 $  vev'ooe $  veSYSLT $

000'sve - - 000°ePE - - - - - - - - Spun 13y1Q Wol4 anc
611'968'T - - - GPI'9L. - SEO'IEL - _86L'61 6bG'09€ - 86L'GL PG6'E9E 96£'vTE saxe], Apnadorg
068°LS - - 068°LS - - - - - - - - TeusLuraaofIajuy
90679 - - 90609 - - - - - - - - Q[qRAIRITY SIMOIDY
1S9[qEAI0Y
P16°85E°E $ 000052 $ bep'00e $ 86L'88T°T § LE9'ETL $ TUS'LLE g 098°1L $ 8L9'YS $ 19€°95T $ L98°11 $ S8TYIT $ Y60 $ siusreamby yse) pue ysen
SLASSY
spuny yse) uonismbay Treday pue Sunuiry IS 19aq uonEuoq uoydaoIg Amoag upny AT ‘aoummSsuy
[BIUSUILIZACE) Jurjrom pue sjuawasordory puwe juonezyIOUry eioadg aotjod Eog Anpqery
lofey-toN Eydey Suiaeq puog
[B0L pum JUSUCULIS § spunj sjoalold [ede)) pumg 391413 193q SpunJ anuaAay [2i0adg
‘o¢ ud
S10T 0¢ [Hdy

spun,J [eJUSWIILISAOLD) JO[BA-UON
- 193§ 20up[Rg SUMIqUO)
LOMILSIA dVd NDIVIAVHD

[ 3|mpayas

-70 -



Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - abueys o0} Joalqns — aApejua} R Aeuiwiaid

0£S°1Z9Y  $ 000°0ST $  PEY0OE $  Tog'seL’l §  SSLIEL S1T19L $  098°IL [ITIN $ ol¥'esyr §  TIETT $  £98'90¢ 65575 §
GZI'POT'E 000°05T SI1°002 SSLVLE €€0°812T PTI'99L £1E'99 ovL'vy 16S'SEY 15952 918'YTE $36'86Y
1W0FLIPT - G1£°001 L09'09€T (8L798) (906'%) LyS's L108 £18'€ (65€7) (€s6°LD) PLSES
00Z'€rH’ L - 000°001 000°€65'1 - (008L0°'T) - - - - 000’528 -

(008720 - - - - (008'5L0°T) - - - - - -
000°815°C - 000°001 000'€68"T - - - - - - 000'5Z8 -

(66L°ST) - GIE (€6€72€2) (8L2'98) $68°690°'T LyS's L10'S £18'¢ [G3%4] (£56°TY8) PLS'ES
0L9'T06'T - - 80£' 179 L98°0S€ - 052°3€ 11691 $59'15€ 009°22 £L2'60T'T 908'0L7
SIL'L9G - - 30€' Y9 S06°€0€ - - - - - - 205°22
SSG'EE6'( - - - 296'9b - 057'8 11691 $S9'ISE 00922 £LT'60TL $0£'8YT
816°9L7 - - - - - - 0ST'8E 01691 - ~009'22 - 8S1°661
T66'LY - - - 296'9Y - - 1 . - - - 620'1L
££1°895°T - - - - - - L - $S9'ISE - €LT'GOZ'T S0s'L
TI9'0p - - - - - - - - - - zI9'0p
1.8°518°C - GIE S16'801 685 v9T $68690°1 LOL'SY 826'1 89p'SSE 19202 0ZE'99€ 08E'PTE
Z01'0Z1 - - Z01'0Z1 - - - - - - - -
$90°y - 61€ [ 0T sI8 . 4 oL 89% [x4 13 908
966'881 - - - 966'881 - - - - - - -

TILEY - - - - - TIL'EY - - - - -

(11434 - - - - - - - - - - vt

£88'L87 - - £88°28¢C - - - - - - - -

£L0LTTT § - § - 5 - §  88E'SL 6L0'690'T § - § 858’1z § 000sS€ §  8£T0T $  9L6's9< pes'ele §
spung yse) uomsbsy redsy pue Sunydry IULAIIS 199Q uogguo(q uonv9l0Ig AUNd3§ Hpny DINT soueInsuy

[BIUARQUIIACY Jurirop pueT sjuatuasorduy pue uonRZIIoUry mwads sa1[0d 208 Anqery

Io{BN-UON Tande) Suiaed puog
oL pun JUIUCULIS spun spalorg reude) pun g 3914128 1q3Q Spun IR [eroads

C 2pmpayog

S10T ‘0¢€ Mdy papug Teax oy 1oy
SpuI,] [BIUSUIWLISAOL) J0fJA-UON

- seoueed puny ul ssuey) pue ‘sarmIpuadxy ‘sanueAdy Jo Juswsiels Surmquio)

JLONIISIA IV NOIVIAVHD

Je3aX Jo pug ‘sauefeyq punyg
JE3X Jo Suruuidag ‘vuejeg pung
sadue[Eg puny ul 33uey ION

(s3s11) seomog Surouwur] JayQ BN
INQ SIBSUBLL
u[ SX9JsuwI],
(59571) 593an0g urourul JAY}Q

samyIpuadxy 1340 SINUIATY
Jo (31ayaq) sseaxy N

seanipuadyy rejo],
&epnQ [ende)
uaImy) [R}0L

SIIAIIS [CTIRLUOD

SIYIpoWo)

syjeuag Suug

saftpy pue sauces

1UoNTaINTY PUE A M)
‘JuaImy)
saamipuodxy

SONUAATY [RIOL
SNOSUR[[3ISTA
sidizaay Eerads
alwoau] 3saI)uT
SHmID
S3[BS UOISSIOU0Y) PUT ISIPUBYIISAL
sdwystosuods pue suounquuo)
S pare[sy
pue sujusy werdord ‘SadrArdg 10y safrey)
SONUAATY [eIUSWLIAA0TIS ]
saxu] padorg
sanuAAIY

-7 -



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Liability Insurance Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Schedule 3

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 314,913 $ 315,781 $ 315,781
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items 4,040 3,050 3,050
Contributions and Sponsorships - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - - -
Interest Income 806 425 425
Special Receipts - - -
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 319,759 319,256 319,256
EXPENDITURES
Curreht: N :
Culture and Recreation: L S : S ; S -
Salaries and Wages Co S 40612 47,864 47,864
Fringe Benefits R S ’ 1,505 11,808 11,808
Commodities 1,029 8,450 6,000
Contractual Services 199,158 246,925 246,925
Total Current =~ "~ pamen T W 248,304 ~-7315,047 312,597
Capital Outlay : : , 22,502 ¢ 40,000 40,000
Total Expenditure : : +1270,806 © 355,047 352,597
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues : : : ' ,
over Expenditures 48,953 (35,791) (33,341)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 48,953 (35,791) (33,341)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 498,985 498,985 498,985
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 547,938 $ 463,194 $ 465,644

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes 4,621

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 552,559

-72-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals and Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current: = .
..: Culture and Reereation:
.. Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Net Excess (Deﬁcit) of Revenues
over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

=73 -

Schedule 4

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
$ 3683897 369915  $ 369,915
344 206 206
369,241 370,121 370,121
1,209,273 1,274,750 1,274,750
1209273 . 1274750 1,274,750
1209373, 1,274,750 1274750
(840,032) (904,629) (904,629)
825,000 825,000 825,000
825,000 825,000 825,000
(15,032) (79,629) (79,629)
324,816 324,816 324,816
309,784 245187 § 245,187
©,921)
S 306863

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 5

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Audit Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals and Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
. Current:’
Culture and Recreation:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current
Capital Outlay S
Total Expenditures .

Net Excess (Deficit) of Re%inues over Expenditures.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

-74 -

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
$ 20994 $ 21052 § 21,052
23 25 25
21,017 21,077 21,077
22,600 23,300 23,300
22,600 23300 23,300
22,600 23,300 23,300
L (1,583) L (2223) (2,223)
(1,583) (2,223) 2.223)
24,651 24,651 24,651

23,068 $ 22,428 $ 22,428

(756)
S 232

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Social Security Fund

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current; P :
Culture and Recreation:

Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current
Capital Outlay :
Total Expenditures -

Net Excess (Deficit) of ‘Re‘vem:le:s over Expenditures »

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

=75 -

Schedule 6

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
$ 349,403 350,367 $ 350,367
468 350 350
349,871 350,717 350,717
351,655 370,000 % 370,000
351,655 370,000 370,000
,' 351,655 370,000 370,000
(1,784) (19,283) (19,283)
(1,784) (19,283) (19,283)
435,597 435,597 435,597
433,813 416,314 $ 416,314
5,597
$ 439,410

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Police Protection Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES

Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Currenit: | :
Culture and Recreation;
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services
Total Current
Capital Outlay T
Total Expenditures

Net Excess (Deficit) of RCVCnli.IéS over Expenditures .-
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

-76 -

Schedule 7

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
$ 23,993 $ 25000 $ 25,000
70 40 40
24,063 25,040 25,040
1 - -
16,910 24,000 24,000
16,911 24,000 24,000
16,911 24,000 24,000
7,152 1,040 1,040
7,152 1,040 1,040
44,740 44,740 44,740
51,892 $ 45780 $ 45,780
(2,135)
$ 49,757

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 8

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Special Donation Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships 43,712 56,825 56,825
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - - -
Interest Income 85 50 50
Special Receipts - - -
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 43,797 56,875 56,875
EXPENDITURES |
Current: " .. ;
: : Culture and Recreation; G : : _ ; ‘ I i
Salaries and Wages S - : e . e e -
Fringe Benefits - - -
Commodities - - -
Contractual Services . = ) : _ ......38,250 ... 55,000 60,000
Total Current - o L . : 38,250 - i 155,000 60,000
Capital Outlay o : : L - ; - -
Total Expenditures. L S 38,250 . 55,000 60,000
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues ove£ Expenditures ‘ 5,547 o 1,875 (3,125)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 5,547 1,875 (3,125)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 66,313 66,313 66,313
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 71,860 $ 68,188 3 63,188
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes -
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 71,860

-77 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




DEBT SERVICE FUND

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget

Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Schedule 9

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 1,445,598 $ 1,446,500 $ 1,446,500
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - - -
Interest Income 815 600 600
Special Receipts - - -
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 1,446,413 1,447,100 1,447,100
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and Reéreation; : « : ,
‘Salaries and Wages : : Y L - i -
Fringe Benefits R o ; S L iy = -
Commodities : S R K ‘ ' - - -
Contractual Services - - -
Total Current - - -
Capital Outlay L . - - -
Debt Service: T o : : '
Principal v S . L . - - -
Interest and Fees : : E : - - -
Total Expenditures =~ | . ] - - -
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenditures 1,446,413 1,447,100 1,447,100
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out (1,074,800) (1,074,800) (1,074,800)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,074,800) (1,074,800) (1,074,800)
Net Change in Fund Balances 371,613 372,300 372,300
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 766,124 766,124 766,124
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 1,137,737 $ 1,138,424 $ 1,138,424
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes (376,519
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 761,218

-78 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget

Paving and Lighting Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Schedule 10

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ 74,980 $ 75,186 $ 75,186
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships . - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants 188,996 188,996 188,996
Interest Income 205 150 150
Special Receipts - - -
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 264,181 264,332 264,332
EXPENDITURES
Currént: :
Culture and Recreation: , : L
* Salaries and Wages E I B - -
Fringe Benefits ’ Co : o ‘ = 4 .
Commodities 46,962 - " 81,100 81,100
Contractual Services - - -
Total Current 46,962 81,100 81,100
Capital Outlay . . Co IR 303,905 .. 315,000 315,000
Total Expenditures : : o n RS . 350,867 . 396,100 396,100
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revefiues over Expenditures - : (86,686) (131,768) (131,768)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (86,686) (131,768) (131,768)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 218,033 218,033 218,033
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 131,347 $ 86,265 $ 86,265
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes 408
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 131,755

-79 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 11

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Capital Improvements and Repair Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
REVENUES
Property Taxes $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental Revenues 287,883 265,000 265,000
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - 1,250,000 1,250,000
Interest Income 930 1,600 1,600
Special Receipts 120,102 135,000 135,000
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 408,915 1,651,600 1,651,600
EXPENDITURES
Current::
Culture and Recreation: ; . ‘ poon o ‘
Salaries and Wages CLo L FEE : Goe SO -
Fringe Benefits o B SE ol : Thao E -
Commodities - 10,000 10,000
Contractual Services - - -
Total Current _ . ) : . A . 10,000 10,000
Capital Outlay : . e : ::641,308 . :829,986 829,986
Total Expenditurés L ' S 641,308 . 839,986 839,986
Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenditures 1(232,393) 811,614 811,614
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 1,593,000 343,000 343,000
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,593,000 343,000 343,000
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,360,607 1,154,614 1,154,614
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 374,755 374,755 374,755
Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 1,735,362 $ 1,529,369 $ 1,529,369
Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes -
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 1,735,362

- 80 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 12

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Land Acquisition Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)

REVENUES

Property Taxes $ - 8 - 3 -
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - - -
Interest Income 319 180 180
Special Receipts - - -
Miscellaneous - - -

Total Revenues 319 180 180

EXPENDITURES
Current; = j
Culture and Recreation; : i 31 S ~ o

Salaries and Wages ‘ LoED R RS m fE (I e -
Fringe Benefits . ‘ : ‘ ST e . - -
Commodities - - -
Contractual Services - - -
Total Current _ » _ ‘ ] - - -
Capital Outlay e : i EE : : B - ' 100,000 100,000
Total Expenditures R RRESS ' ‘ - 100,000 100,000

Net Excess (Deficit) of Revénﬁes over Expenditurés - ) 2319 : (99,820) (99,820)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 100,000 100,000 100,000
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,000 100,000 100,000

Net Change in Fund Balances 100,319 180 180

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 200,115 200,115 200,115

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 300434 § 200,295 § 200,295

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes -

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 300,434

-81-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Bond Proceeds Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items
Contributions and Sponsorships
Merchandise and Concession Sales
Grants
Interest Income
Special Receipts
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
.. Current:

Culture and Recreation:

- Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Commodities
Contractual Services

Total Current
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fees
Total Expenditures

Net Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Tund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes

Expenditure Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Accrued Interest

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

-82-

Schedule 13

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)
$ - 8 - 8 -
379,511 379,511 379,511
477 125 125
379,988 379,636 379,636
5,427 12,875 12,875
5,427 12,875 12,875
564,661 967,500 967,500
385,000 385,000 385,000
145,881 145,225 145,225
1,100,969 1,510,600 1,510,600
(720,981) (1,130,964) (1,130,964)
1,074,800 1,074,800 1,074,800
1,074,800 1,074,800 1,074,800
353,819 (56,164) (56,164)
(904,241) (904,241) (904,241)
(550,422) § (960,405) _$§ (960,405)
667
$ (549,755

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




PERMANENT FUND

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 14

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual (Budgetary Basis) Versus Budget
Working Cash Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Actual
(Budgetary Budget Budget
Basis) (Final) (Original)

REVENUES

Property Taxes ‘ $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental Revenues - - -
Charges for Services, Program Rentals, and Related Items - - -
Contributions and Sponsorships - - -
Merchandise and Concession Sales - - -
Grants - - -
Interest Income - - -
Special Receipts ' - - -
Miscellaneous - - -

Total Revenues - - -

EXPENDITURES -,
Current:
“ Culture and Recreation: : ;

Salariés and Wages o : - . .
Fringe Benefits - - -
Commodities - - -
Contractual Services . - - -
Total Current o L o , R o - -
Capital Outlay : ; : : - - -
Total Expenditures LI ‘ a - ] - -

Net Excess '(VDeﬁcit) of Revenues 0\}er Expenditures . - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses): - - -

Net Change in Fund Balances - - -

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 250,000 250,000 250,000

Fund Balance, End of Year - Budgetary Basis 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 250,000

Revenue Conversion to GAAP Basis:
Property Taxes -

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis $ 250,000

-83-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




FIDUCIARY FUND

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 15

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities -
Fiduciary (Agency) Fund
Activity and Affiliates Fund
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Balance Balance
April 30, 2014 Additions Deletions April 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 56,701  $ 7,592 $  (19946) $ 44,347

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 5,998 $ 14,518 $ (19,945) $ 571
Due to Affiliated Agencies 50703 - (6927) . 43,776

Total Liabilities. . _$ | 56,701 $ 14518 §  (26872) $ 44,347

-84 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




STATISTICAL SECTION INTRODUCTION
(Unaudited)

This part of the Champaign Park District’s (the District) comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s
overall financial health.

Financial Trend Schedules - Schedule 16 through Schedule 19

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
District’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Schedules - Schedule 20 through Schedule 23

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Canacny Schedules Schedule 24 through Schedule 28

These schedules present 1nformat10n to he]p the reader assess the affordablhty of the
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Ecohom’ic Infermation Schedules”— Schedule 29 and Schedule 30

These schedules offer demographlc and economic 1nd1cators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information Schedules - Schedule 31 through Schedule 33

These schedules contain service and infrastructure information to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the
District provides and the activities it performs.

Sources — Unless otherwise noted on the Schedules, the information in these Schedules is derived
Jfrom the comprehensive annual financial reports for relevant years.

-85 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Auo sasodind uotssnasip 1oy - abueyd o} Joalgns — aAnejua) xp Aleuiunjaid

TES6ST'SS pSP'ITT'TS TT'TES'9Y 9IT619'TY L90'TS9'9¢  §  SSPTHI'EE 9s8'6vT’0E  §  ISTOPE'ST §  9S9'9p9°STS  898'999°€T$
6STSHE BT TP9°206°€1 608°900°€1 9EEPRTEL 6E0°E61 1T €0LP8S'8 T5S'98TL 6TTOETL €50°5€9°9 L66°195°9
960°17€y EI0TLL'T 0L9TEE’E 08v°916°€ $00609°€ - T T 9g6'Les’E £68°789°€ T16L°L48°T 0vE'ETE VIL'GES'E
LLT'E65°9€ 008°ThP'sE EPE'E62'0¢ 00v'81'7T €T06Y8°IT ~ §  618°656'0C TIY'8LT61  §  T9TTESLT §  €ITELL'STS  LST'09S'ETS
- - - - - $ - - s - $ - $ 905’818 §
- - - - ] - - E - - FEG
- - - . - ™ - U A - $ - $ . - $ 89008 §
TES'65T'SS pSP'OII'TS TZ8°TE99P IIT6INTY L90°TTS9'9E  §  8SPTWI'EE 9s8'6PT0E  §  I8TOVE'ST §  9S99Y9STS  T9EPETLS
65T SHEPT T79°206€1 608'900°€ T 9ECPRTET 6E0°E6T'TT LIYEISS T5°98TL 6TT0ET'L £50°S€9°9 656'95™9
960°12E'y €10TLLT 0L9'TEE'E 08'916'€ $00°609'€ TTT699'E €68789°€ T6L°LL8'T 0vE'8ET'E PIL6ES'E
LLI'€65'9€ 008'ZHb's€ EVE'S6T'0E 00%'8T'4T €T06YSIZ  §  618'65670T TIY'8LZ'61  §  T9TTELI §  €9T'ELL'STS  689'6SLTI§
10T 10T €107 10T 1107 010z 600T 800C L00T 900Z
Sununosoy Jo siseq [enIooy
(penprieun)
SIB9X (@IS U], IS8T
jusuodwo)) Aq uonIsod N
LORILSIA 2 Vd NOIVANVHD

91 3pmpayss

TOUISO 19N ‘JUSTULISAOL)
Areuntid Tej0],

PpajoLgSaInN]
paioLgsay
sjessy reyde)
W JUSURSIAU] 1N
JTIWAIIAOL) ATRTILLY

UoRIsoq 1N ‘SIMATBSY
adA] -ssauisng [e10],

pajoLmsam)
PRSIy
5355y [epde))
UL JUaUnSIAU] 19N
SIPLARIY AdA ] -ssoursng

WORISOd JaN] ‘SOBIATOY
[RIUSWILIAOL) [E10],

patomsamu)
paomsay
slassy rendeD
TT JUSUNSIAT] 19N
SIWIANIY [EJUIWLIIACS)

- 86 -



Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - abueya o0} jo93lgns - aApeua)} ¥ Aeunaid

8.0'eyI'e $  TE9E8PS $§  909°EI0S  §  6vI'896T §  609°80S'E $§  T09°T68T §  SL9°G06T $§  STSEE9T 0§ 88L186T $§  OILOILTT $ uowisod 19N Ut aduey)) rejo,
- - - - - - - - (9057°818) (832°1) sauLARIY ad £ -ssautsng
8L0°shI'E TE9'E8Y'S 909°€10°S 671°896 609°80S°€ 709°268'C $L9'606°T STS€69°T ¥62°008°C 86STILT SAUIANDY [RIUSWIL3A0D
Ec.—tmc& PN Em um-—Mr—U
(009°¢6) - - - - - - - - - Juapeainbyg yse) uo ssog
way Areurpioenxg
8L0VLITL £24080°C1 9€0°08€"11 £L5° 1881 $95'68L°01 015°209°01 866 L£6'6 125°5€8'6 8TTELL'6 y16'060'8 uomISOd 19N Ul SaFuLy() JUBWUILACH) ATewl] [B0],
- - - - - - - - (505°818) LLO'T 13410 PUE SINUBAYY [BI8USY) SIIALOY SdAL-ssaulsng |ej0],
- - - - - - - - (905°818) - slapsues],
- - - - - - - - - BBOJ AW0U] ISAIAU]
(SAMIANDY u&.ﬁ-mmmcmmnm
8L0FLITT £2V°080°C1 9€£0°08¢ 11 €L5° 18811 $95°68L°01 015°209°01 866'L£6 6 125°5£8°6 PEL'166'6 1687680°8 1ayjQ PUE SINUIAY [RIUSD) SIIANAY [RIUSWUISACK) [210],
- - - - - - - - 895°008 - s19ssY [epde)) 33N Jo UOHNGLRUOY
- - - - - - - - 8£0°81 - SIopsuel],
18%°£21 856°L9 0Z99 681908 651°29 SST'L8 0£5°89 €51°98 T0LTL (egT'6c1) Byo
YEL'LLT ££9'881 1€2°%22 €E€°C1T 18£°812 1TL'6LE 959°6¥1 10£°061 Po'SEL - sidie09y [etoads
22€'6T S61°L1 £69°0% SYT'ST L1T'€9 LY8°E9 06171 878°18¢ ESY'L6E 890°8SE auI0oU] JS3IANL
£€88°282 £Y0°SLT LEV'TOT 856°LYT w1°182 901°22Z 042082 960°€1€ Tho'y8T 055°5$T Xe, Justwaoeidey
85Z°ZSH 11 y6S 1€S°11L $50'88L°01 8PTL8S0L - L99°P9IOI 18558°6 750862°6 £1°v68'8 £95°€8T'8 TIS'SI9L xe], Apedoig

ISIUIALOY [RIUALILISACL)
uoisod 18N Ut safuey)) JBYI0 PUB SANUIASY [BI3USD

(00V°L£6°8) (16L7965°9) (0£V'99£°9) (r2h'€16°9) (956°087°L) (80671L7)- ~(£2E'820'8)" (966°TH1°L) (OVF161°L) ($98°08£'9) anuaATY (5UAAXE) 1N JUSWUIAACY ArPWIg [eI0],
- - - - - - - - - ($9€7) SonLALOY adAL-ssauisng
(00t'L£6'8) (16L'965°9) (05t°99¢'9) zv'e16%9) (9s6‘08Z°L) (806'¥1L°L) .-~~(£TE'820'8) (966'141°L) (ovt161°L) (66%8L£9) SAYANOY [BJUBLUWIBACD
. anuaasy (ssuadxyg) 1N
60001Z¢€ QERTEL § 159L9L°E £SSTISE 685 1LS°E 6.7 725 € SSL6LY'E 687869 € 96116 S19°059°C sanuaasy wesold juatuascg) Amwig (20,
- - - = - - = = - 6GE 961 sanuaasy wreIfolq sanwanoy adA1-ssauisng 101,
- - - - - - - - ] N . - ] suoynqiuo)) pue syueln Suneladg

- - - , o - 65E'961 $3014198 10§ saS1ey)
: (18jua)) SIUUS],
sagianoy ad41-ssauisng

600°012°€ 9£8'TET'S 169°49L°¢ £5STIS'E 685" 1.5 6LTTTS'E 8SL'6LY'E 681 869'€ $96°116'C __9STPSHT . SINUAATY WeIS0Id SIHALIY [RIUSWILISACY) [BJ0T,

966°€0S ££8°569°C SSY'e8ET z15'669 ¥36'856 98TYSL 00F°1L9 000°$91°1 00TS1Y 000°00 suoyNqLIUOY) pue SjueLy) [eyide)
YLLOTT LOE'EVT ££T°L8 WTLST LEE'EST T€6'061 £89°991 £50°901 9tt'olz S19'9L€ suonnqLauo) pue siwesy Supesadg
6€T°685°C 969°€6£°T £96'962°7 £6L°559°C 89T°651'T 190°LLS‘T SLYTP9'T 9EVLIV'T 819'982°C 19'LL8°1 $30IAIBG 10F saTrey)

UONeaIoY pue aimny
ISOIANIOY [EJUSWILIZACL)
sonuaAsy wreiforg

607 LY 1TL 179'6Z8'11 180°VE1°01 LLE'ST 0L SYSTS8°0L L81°LETTL 180°80S°11 S85°0v8°01 $0p'£01°01 6L'1E0'6 sa5uadxy JUAWWIDACY ATewlId [eI0],

- - - - - - - - - $TL861 1) S,
‘senIATioy ad A1 -ssautsng

607" LY1°TI L279°628'11 180°P€1°01 LLE'STY0L S¥S2TS801 L81°LETTT 180°80S°T1 $8P°0P801 POP'E01°01 $SL'TEY'S 535URdXF SARIALOY [RJUSLIUISACD) [ejO],

1€9°151 Z0S'8LT YLY'9TT 65E°9HT 285'692 61E£'88C LLT'E0E 1orsie P6S°81€E THYET 193Q wud-3uoT uo jsazeiu]

8LL'S66'TT §  STIYISY'IL  §  L09°L06'6  §  SIS6LIOL §  €96°T80l $  898°8p6°0T §  POSWOTII $  v8ESZS'Ol §  OIS'W8L'S §  CIE'86S°S $ UONBaIoFy pue sImny
ISANIALOY [CJUSLUIUISACD)

sasuadxg
$10T »10T £10T z102 110z 0102 6002 800C £00T 9002

Sununosoy Jo siseq [eI00Y
(paupneup)
SIRQX [2OSI] US] 158
uonIsod 9N Ul s3Fuey))
LI 2mpayos JLOTLLSIA XAV NOIVAAVHO

-87-



Ajuo sasodind uojssnasip 10y - sbueys o p3lgns — aapejus)  Areuiwijasd

3]qe[reAt A[IPEal 10U ST 1B} 5 GSVD S U HONTILIOfuT 0uB[eq pury ‘T10T Teax [eosig 0} Jory :ajoN

L9S°S6T°0L §

T8 06°L

$

9LL°LLY'6

LOEEIT'OL

- $ - $ -

$

$

$ Spun,] [EIUSWWISAOD)
PO 1V [e0L

(9et'9TT'T)
LYY608'L

96L Ty
SIY'TI6e'T
SYELST $

@YTLETT)
18L°985°S
ST1°00T
ST0°L86'T
£L1°892

(6£€°¢€8)
90T'€LO'L
L£50°001
049°280°€
T81°5ST

(yE€°66L)
LYS'¥88'9
000°001
087999°c
¥19°19C

$

pouSisseur)

pauBissy

Papramo)

patotnsay

$ d[qepuadg-uoN
'SpURY] [BJUSTIWISACD ISQ [V

9.9'988'9 §

ory'ELy’9

YOE'SPI'9

¥80°LY0°L

$ pun [e15u3D [Eo,

818°588'9
858 3

9SI'ILY'9
P0E'T

POESHI'9

168'vP0°L
£61°T

pauSisseur)
$ s[qepuadg-uonN
‘puny [eIauan)
NOISYIANOD $S dSVI-LSOd

EEVLIL'S §

IPE12E°L  § 890°SS0°L § 0IL'PIT'9

s

6£6'V8Y'S

TT8S01°L

$ SpUn,] [USTWIISA0D
ROV [e10L

000°05T
9TH'6L6
ESYYIS
$6£°596'9....

651°8 )

000°05T 000°0ST 000°05¢T
8€0'6L9 6E1'ELO'T $0T'90€'T
$5£'00S Y9T'L6Y (bLL'zs)
900'538°S. . TS TIRPLIY

£46°9 $ £55°TT $ 851°9¢

$

~00005¢
SL9'898..
(s16'6t)

66TT08'Y .

088'p1

000:052
$82°955'C

920'TSS'E

SSO'YTL
LSY'ET

puny jusueunag
spuny sjoafold renden
Ppuny 301A1a§ 192
spunf anuaAsy [e1vadg
‘ut papoday ‘paatasarur)
putt] 3014198 1931
$ Spuny an@aAsy [ersedg
‘ot papoday ‘pasrasay
'spuny [eIUSTUIAA0D) RO [TV

0SE'T6E9  §

W66 TITS § 8SL'EILE § opl6zey

088'STL'E

8E1°L9C’E

$ puny [e1auan) [ejoL

001'06£"9
05T°T $

mvm.ﬁ:.m mwﬁ.moﬁm oE.aNm.v
(74 3 685°8 3 -

088'€TLE
000°T

8ET°L9E’E

paAIaserur)
g paAlasay
:puny] [e1susc)
NOISYFANOD #S dSVO-Tdd

s10T

81 apnpaysg

14014

€10T

(A4

1102

010z 600T 800T

Sununosoy jo SIseq [eruo0Y PILJIPOIN
(payiprieuq))
SIea X [eosI UaJ, ISeT
Spuny [BJUSUWIUISA0L) JO Sa0UR[Ry pun,]
LOMILSIA SV d NOIVIAVHD

£00T

9002

-88-



Ajuo sesodind uossnosip 10} - abuey? o} Joalqns — aanejua) @ Aeuiwijasd

%Sy %0€'S %E0'9 %L6'S %6L'S %99'S %95°S %L0'9 %L9'ST %S9'TL
1965087 § (R6Lvpr'D) §  (IIELEET) §  809'0S0T 0$1'9L9°T L0S¥99'T §  9L6vTT  §  1€oeest §  (IpIT9TI) § SEITELE  §
(009°€6) - - - - - - - - -
- 0zC' 161 - 00002 - - - - 8€0'81 LISTLE'L
- 856011 - - - - - - - -
- (3£L°685"Y) - - - - - - - -
- 000°0L9Y - - - - - - - LIS'TLGL
- - - 000°0¥T - - - - - -
(06L°12L°€) (099°091°1) (088°Z£0°1) (oo1°921'1) (89%°L00°T) (869°010°1) (ST1'78¢'T) (1z¢'8zH'1) (606'cp) (zsy'szl)
06L1TL'E 0990911 088201 001°9Z1°1 89%°200'1 869°010°1 SITY8El 125°8TH'1 LY6°19 (43 g Al
195°L68'C (810'9€5°1) (T1ELEET) 8090181 0S¥'9L9°T. LOS99°1 9L6'YTT [ (6L1°08C°T) (Z8E'OVTY)
LEO'1O8°EL ¥C3°096°L1 €95°1SLS1 9I8'LLITL 008°8SL'01 20TV el 6LE1ZSTL 6L6'00T°T1 1LE°69€ €1 89L°€T6 YL
6LT €6 - - - - - ] i - -
PIT'SHI $LS'061 6LLIET TIL'IST 6vp0LT 865°C6C Z01'L0E 6L8VEE 99L01¥ 190°6T
000°58€ 000°SLE 000°S1€ 00050€ 000562 000582 000°6LT 000697 000°591'1 000°000°T
TZI9YST €LT'EP1'8 T61'268°9 895°556'T oLzt 0Z0°9LT'E ™ 690°¢L9'T SYITELT L10°08L°¢ 600°€€5°9
10LYTL'01 L69°851°6 T6STIE'S 9£6°699'8 1851868 P8SL8IG - 8066926 $S1'898'8 885°600°8 T69'S9€E°L
86586991 908'7TE9L TSTYIY'YL YTr'836'€1 0ST'SEY'EL 60L°509'F1 SSEIPLTI 010ES'El 761°580'T1 98£°€89°01
185°LZT 856°'L9 0Z9'%9 66586 65179 SSTL8 0£5°89 €519 T99°€L STO'IS
PEI'LLT ££9°331 1€2YTC EEECIT 18€°312 12L'6LE 959°6¥1 10£°061 €LY°8ST 611651
TTE'GT S61°L1 £69°01 SYT8T L1T'€9 L¥8°€9 G8Y° 1YL 878°18¢ 9E0YLE 890°85€E
ress’l 190°02L1 0ZE099 - 7oLy S6S°6L Sob'sEe’l 88L79 £ST°8S 058°1cy 00LYTT
052202 €TTYLI 8L9°081 ELI'IYT $9Z'10T 89L'TET L90°S¥T 8T€°69T LY9'8CT LTY'191
8£8°'18 929°0€1 €€6'9L W6'T6 T28'901 £€L'68 $68'€01 008T1Z' v16'761 96L°T61
686'98€'T ELY'61ZT $8T91I'T 0TSV Ib'T £00'85C°C E6TPPET 809°96€'T 801°791°C 100°850°T 6815991
£88°L8T £Y0°SLT LEV'TIT 856°LYT 11182 90122z 0LZ'08T 960'€1€ THO'Y8T 085'55T
8STTSHIL § Y6S IS TT § $50°88L°01 § 8yT°L8S01 L99'V91°01 1857586 § T50'862'6  § wI'v68's  $ L95'€8T'8  § TIS|SI9L  §
SI0T v10C €10C ZI0C 1107 010T 6002 300T L00T 9002

61 2[mpayssg

Sununosoy Jo siseq [BNIdOY PIFIPOIA
(paypneup))

SIBQ X [OSI] U3] 1se]

spun,] [BJUSUIUISAOL) JO Se0UE[Rq pun Ul sa8uey)

LOIILSIA V4 NOIVIAVHD

saanypuadxy ende)-uoN jo
JU3DIIJ € ST INAIAS 1qaQ

aduepeg punyg ul a3uey?) BN

JuspeAmnby yseyy uo ss0]
wayf Arewiprogsxy

(sas(]) saautnog
Jundueuly JAQIQ PN
WIMIWAIJ 35UBNSS] puog
Wady Mosy puog Swpuaiay 03 JuswARg
193(] JO 9ouenssy
syassy [ende) Jo resodsiq
MNQ SIgFSuRL],
uf SI93suel],
(s3sq]) sadanog Burdueuly JPYIQ

saanpuadXy JIAQ SINUIAIY
Jo apyaq) ssaxy

saryIpusdxy [eI0L

53500y Qouenss] puog
$39, pUe JSaIAIU]
[edioutig

'391A198 1990

AepnQ Tende)
TOREaISTY pue amymy)

Judimy)

saanypuadxy

SeNURAGY [€I0],
SNOBUB[SOSTIA
s1d1a0ay Ter0adg
3WOU] 353133U]
Filiciy)
SO[ES UOISSIVUO)) PUE ISTPURYIIIN
sdms1osuodg pue suopnqLiuo)
SWI)] PaIB[Y pue s[euay

weiSol] ‘saotalag 103 saSrey)
SONUIATY [EJUSTWUIIAOTIAUT
saxe], Apadorg

sanuaAzy

-89 -



Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip Joj - afueya o} 30afgns — aaeua} @ Aeuwijaid

"AVH 001§ Iod st ojey Xe], 109I( [BI0L, € SION
Ieaf [eosy juanbasqns a1} 9,06 pue passed st Aa9]

O} YOIy UL I83A [BISY S} UL 94§ PIZIUS0I3I ST SNUSASI PIJR[SI 9Y) Inq “Teok IePUS[Eo B SISA00 AAQ] [enUUR Y] - STEQX [BOSL] 1T 9ION

SN[BA [ENJOR JO 04 CC JO OIJBI JUSWISSISSE UR S9qLIosald Me] oje]S 1T 910N

NI Ajuno)) uSredurey))  :99Im0S
%¢ECEE ST ELS E L6S9°0 8IVEPII61°1 LST LY 192°90L°061°T L002/900¢C $00¢
%¢ECEE 9£6°701°6L6°¢C ¥I¥9°0 TISPE0°STE T 9T0*VLY 96Z°09SvTE T 800¢7/L00T 900T
%%EeCE 976°S61°09€ Y 06190 TH9°86€°CSH I LLYITS $96°988°TSH1 600T/300¢C L00T
%¢<EE€CE $9€°989°¢y9'y LS19°0 SSHS68° LS T 15809 188°98T°LYS°I 010Z/600C 8002
%¢ECCE 6LV E8ELEYY 00€9°0 C6V V6L STST 0EELYL €9T°LYO°SHS T 1102/010¢C 600¢
2%€ELCCE €ST6ET0S9'Y 6C59°0 ﬁmﬁmnodmm,ﬁ ‘mmmﬂom wNN,Q.N,,@m; Z10T/110¢C 0102
%¢EEEE T1L1%9°009° 63L9°0 LET'LYS EES T 19€°L06 9.8°6€9°CES T £102/T10C 10T
%ECEE T6S°88L°L8S Y 880L°0 $98°79T°67S°1 801°8Z6 9SLrEE'8TS T Y102/€10C C10¢
%ELEE 688°9ST°TISY SY9L0 €96°81L°€0S°1 686026 YL6°L6L°T0S T S102/+10T €10¢
%ECEE 065°895° 185 Y9TL0 0€S°681°LTS T $ 996°506 $ $96°€87°9Z6 1 910¢/S10¢C 10T
oneA [enIoy JO on[eA [eMIOV arey XBL, [e10L on[eA anfeA Ieo X Ieox
JUI0IdJ B se 1021 (T speolfiey Kredoig resy [e9s1g vl
aneA PIssassy 2101 an[eA PISSISSy Xe],

(paupreuq))
SIBo A Teosiq Us], 1se]
AKsdold a1qexe] JO an[eA [EN}OY POIBUINSH PUB PISSIsSy
LONILSIA VA NOIVAANVHD

0 2[npaysg

-90 -



Ajuo sasodund uoissnasip Joj - abueyo o} 303lgns — aapejua)l p Aeuiwypid

121D Auno)) usredurey)) :9910g
aneA Passasse Jo Q01§ 1od sajeI xe], 1T AON

Teak Teosty yusnbasqns oty 9405 pue passed ST AA3] o Yorym

Ur TeaA [edsly SU Ul 940S SNUSAAI pajejal U sazIudodal 1owmsi( yied udredurey)) jng ‘Ieak Tepus[es B SISA0D AAS] [BNUIUER I, - SIS X [BISI] 1 alI0N
€318 0€pE's L9108 0089'L 6viL YeIEL ¥S6T'L LTTTL I6vE'L 88VSL 1210,
7870 861€°0 996Z°0 1€87°0 STLTO 61920 SLSTO PST0 T6570 €€97°0 101ISI( NSUeLY, SSEN
¥88€Y 12057 SSII'Y S088°'€ 8€TLE 9bs9'E ¥559°€ 9679'¢ €LTL'E 8878'¢ 11U 9LUSI Jooyds uStedwey)
65250 £575°0 1615°0 0ZIS'0 ¥905°0 78050 SI1S°0 889%°0 0ZLY'0 9LLY'0 339[10D puepired
6210 6521°0 €911°0 20110 SLOT'O 1201°0 TS01°0 6¥01'0 0901°0 L8010 PSIQ WeSH
TLPO'0 L9¥0'0 $010'0 $8€0°0 1L£0°0 LSE0'0 05€0'0 05€0°0 LSE0'0 89£0°0 diysumo], uredurey)
¥$60°0 1€60°0 0880°0 €800 L1800 06L00 - -~ £8L0°0 6LL0°0 00800 81800 1ILSI(T 9AT351d 150104
9£98°0 11580 8€18°0 1780 889L°0 LL8PLO o 9TPLO. . 68£L°0 ... . 9190 .. 108L0 Auno) udredureyy
TS1ET TSIET TSIET ¥80¢'1 TWET'1 WeT'1 (A TA 6T 6591 0zZIE'T udredwey) jo A1)
¥9TL'0 SY9L'0 83020 68.9°0 62590 +-00€9°0 LS19°0 06190 PIP90 16590 L
00+0°0 00400 00%0'0 00%0°0 00100 00%0'0 00%0'0 00%0°0 96£0'0  LTEQ'0 . 00¥0'0 uoneardsy [eroads
€100°0 91000 S100°0 ¥1000 . #1000 ¥100°0. .. L1000 91000 S100°0. #1000 ..0520°0 391104
05000 05000 6¥00°0 8¥00°0 6¥00°0 8%00°0 9%00°0 L¥00°0 8¥00°0 67000 0S00°0 Suyysr] pue Suiaed
08+0°0 ¥960°0 L690°0 LLSO'0 $990'0 $$90°0 L§90°0 0020°0 89200 75800  V/N 901A195 1980
€120°0 01200 £8100 ¥L10°0 8910°0 0L100 86100 ¥€20°0 1420°0 0SZ00  V/N soueImnsuy ANIqerT
€100°0 ¥100°0 £100°0 Z100°0 ¥100°0 ¥100°0 L100°0 €1000 80000 80000 05000 npny
LETO'0 £€20°0 02200 01200 90200 61200 YET0'0 9%Z0'0 1¥20°0 §ST00  VIN Aunasg [e1oog
6€20°0 9v20'0 9610°0 98100 yLIO'0 0L10°0 $810°0 $810°0 9610°0 S1Z00 VIN (TIND puny Juswamsy [edroruniy 1
0980°0 80800 $020'0 8¥50°0 91600 ¥150°0 $0°0 6610°0 $T50°0 SLSO0  00ST'0 wnasty
6521°0 S0Z1'0 149840 1001°0 6¥50°0 L120'0 L690°0 9690°0 $690°0 00L0'0  00LE'O uoyeaI’sy
00S£°0 66¥€°0 L6VE0 614€°0 YLEEO 6LEE0 90Z£'0 yS1E0 182€°0 0SEE0  00SE0 [e1susy)
a1qeordde 1301081 yIed uSredurey)
i
910Z/S10T S10Z/%10T Y10T/£10T €10T/T10T  TIOZ/IIOZ  1I0Z/O10T  OI0Z/600T  GOOT/300CT  800T/LO0T  L00T/900T SIe3 X Te0stg
¥10T £10T z10e 1102 010T 600T 800T L00T 9007 $00T Teax Aaa
(peyprieur))
SIeo X [BOSI] UaJ 1Se]
syuewrwiaAon) Surdde[reaQ pue 1o - sepey] xe], Aadoig
LIOTILSIA AIVI NOIVAANVHD

[C 2|npaYag

-91-



Schedule 22

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Principal Property Taxpayers
April 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
2015 2006
Percent Percent
Equalized of Total Equalized of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Name of Company Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation
Champaign Market Place, LLC (Shopping Center) $23,508,390 1 1.39% $ 20,175,050 1 1.74%
Campus Property Management (Housing) 18,708,990 2 1.10% 17,063,210 2 1.47%
Bankier Family 12,991,030 3 0.77% 7,995,730 4 0.69%
Shapland Realty, LLC 10,266,290 4 0.61% 8,094,550 3 0.70%
Regency Consolidated (Developer) 9,326,410 5 0.55%
Dan Hamelberg (Housing) 7,741,620 6 0.46%
Baytowne Apartments, LLC (Housing) 7,247,410 7 0.43% 5,414,210 7 047%
Edward Rose Dévéloprﬁent Co. (Developer) L 7,122,890 8 Q.42%E
Pickus Compani}:S (Déveloper) K 6,9'25,510_; 9 041%
Christie Management Co (Health Care) 6,590,160 10 0.39% 5,414,960 6 0.47%
Peter Hostein 7,1 17,730 5 0.61%
Jeffrey R. Hartman . 5,155,040 8 0.44%
Royse & Brinkmeyer Apts 4,581,300 9 0.40%
Campus Investors LLC 4,524,020 10 0.39%
Total $110,428,700 6.51% $85,535,800 7.38% .
Source: Champaign County Treasurer
-92.

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sesodind uoissnasip 10} - abueyd o3 30algns — aAle3ud) %@ Ateujwijoxd

winsear], fjuno) udredwey) pue yi91) Kuno) uSredwey)) 900§

"sTeaA anuaaai jsed pue sInyny 1oy syuswiied I9yjo pue ‘soxe) yoeq ‘sarajur dpnyoul sjdiooay 1 I0N

Teak Teosyy Jusnbasqns a3 94,06 pue passed SI AAS] a1 YOIym Ul Jeak

ﬂmomﬁ oﬂ‘ ﬁ %06 UONwﬁwooou mw INUIAIIL @opﬂou OE\ wﬁn— ‘Teak Hﬂuﬁoﬂmo B SISA0D %>o~ [enuue SyUJ - SIea X Hmommm -1 AQIO0N
%S58°66 9,6°S¥8°L 9L6°S18°L %000 - €L6°LSS L L00T-9002
%5166 A ANAS A Pr1°TST'8 %0070 - 1LL'861°8 8002-L00T
%166 €6£°616°8 €6£°616°8 %000 - 8£5°966°8 6002-8002
%LT 66 865°09%°6 8650916 T %000 - T6£°0£5°6 0102-600T
%I1<°66 TT1°1L9°6 111,96 %000 - S0S°8EL6 1102-0102
%v9'66  S0LYS0°0T 80€¥80°01 %000 - 1Ly*0Z1°01 Z102-1102
%6L°66 £86°88€°01 £86°88<°01 %000 - TSTTIF 0T €102-210T
%TE 66 EPP S9L 0T EPP°S9L°01 %00°0 - STV 6€8°01 ¥10T-€102
%1866 08 LY TT 0€8°CLY T %000 - 1€6°S61°T1 S10T-¥10T
%20°0 SOLT $ - $ %200 S0LT $ S0S°€60°TT  § 91025102
Ano] junoury (2) steax Ao (2) Junowry SIBo X [BOSL] 0¢ 1advy
Juadisd wﬁoswomn—ﬁm u JU3213d 10J —uovﬁm
aje( 031 mﬁoﬂoozoo [eioL @o«ooﬁoo Iea X [eostq voamﬂu %\5@ Xe]J, SIea X
1SI] Y3 WY AN PRJOS[[0D [ejol, [eosty
(penpneun))

SIBO X [@dSI] Us], 1se]
SUONI9[[0) pue sala xe], Aradoi]
1oLysI( yred uSredurey)

£C a[mpayos

-93-



Schedule 24

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Governmental Activities
General Alternate Total Debt as a Percent
Fiscal Obligation Bonds Revenue Primary of Personal Total Debt
Year {Long Term Only) Bonds Government Income Per Capita
2015 $ - $ 4,678,269 $ 4,678,269 0.13% $ 56.08
2014 - 5,072,918 $ 5,072,918 0.16% 60.81
2013 - 5,020,000 $ 5,020,000 0.17% 61.93
2012 - 5,335,000 $ 5,335,000 0.19% 65.82
2011 - 5,640,000 $ 5,640,000 0.20% 69.58
2010 - 5,935,000 $ 5,935,000 0.23% 78.87
2009 - 6,220,000 $ 6,220,000 0.24% 82.65
2008 - 6,495,000 $ 6,495,000 0.26% 86.31
2007 975,000 16,760,000 © $ 7,735000 - 033% - - 10279
2006 . 975,000 06,950,000 - $ 7925000 = 0.37% © 10986
Note: Demographic Information for personal income and population is presented in Schedule 29.

This schedule only includes long-term debt. Starting in fiscal year 2008, the general
obligation bond issue was considered short-term as it was less than 365 days.

- 04 -
preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 25

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Percent
General Less Amount of Estimated
Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Net General Actual Taxable Per
Year Bonds (I.ong-Term) Service Funds Bonded Debt Property Value Capita
2015 $ - $ - $ - 0.00% $ -
2014 - - - 0.00% -
2013 - - - 0.00% -
2012 - - - 0.00% -
2011 - - - 0.00% -
2010 - - - 0.00% - -
2009 - - - 0.00% -
2008 - - - 0.00% -
2007 975,000 - 975,000 0.02% 12.96
2006 975,000 524,055 450,945 0.01% 5.99
Note: Demographic Infornﬁafion for population is presenfed in Schedule 29.

Actual Taxable Property Value is presented in Schedule 20.

This schedule only includes long-term debt. Starting in fiscal year 2008, the general
obligation bond issue was considered short-term as it was less than 365 days.

-95 ..

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 26

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
General Obligations Debt

April 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
Percentage Amount
Bonded Applicable Applicable
Debt to the to the
Governmental Unit QOutstanding Park District Park District  (2)
City of Champaign $ 62,745,000 100.00% $ 62,745,000
Champaign County 37,993,058 43.23% 16,423,395
Champaign School District Unit #4 5,310,000 79.28% 4,209,620
Champaign-Urbana Public Health District 1,313,903 77.45% 1,017,659
Parkland College 54,345,000 31.31% 17,016,662
Champaign Qo_unty Forest Preserve . R, . 656,185 42._92% 281,615 .
- Subtotal, Overlapping Debt (1) 162,363,146 101,693,951
Champaign Park District Direct Debt -~ © © . 5 0000% .
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 162,363,146 $ 101,693,951

Source:

)

@

City of Champaign and OVerlapping government records B

Notes:

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the boundaries of the Champaign Park
District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is
borne by the taxpayers of the Champaign Park District. This estimate produces a schedule that recognizes that,
when considering Champaign Park District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne
by the taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and
therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.

Computed by dividing Champaign Park District's assessed value by the assessed value of the overlapping
governments and multiplying this rate by the overlapping governments' outstanding debt. An overlapping
government unit is any that levies a tax on a citizen of the Champaign Park District. This schedule does not
include revenue supported debt.

-96 -

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Schedule 27

' CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
April 30,2015

{(Unaudited)

Assessed Valuation (2014 Levy Year) $ 1,527,189,530
Legal Debt Margin

Debt Limitation - 2.875 Percent of Total Assessed Value $ 43,906,699
Total Debt Applicable to the Debt Limit

General Obligation Bond Indebtedness 1,084,000
Legal Debt Margin $ 42.822.699
Total Net Debt Applicable to the Debt Limit

as a Percentage of the Debt Limit _ v _ 2.47%

Note: By Tllinois statute, the legal debt/margin excludes alternate revenue source debt
while the related property tax is abated.

-97-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - abueys 03 303lgns - aaneyud] @ Aeujwijaid

900¢
) L00¢
‘soxe] Aradord wouy 10 ‘spuoq uoneSi|qo [eIouas “WiIs}-H0Ys ‘[enuue Jo spaadold Woxy Iejus) onenby 8002
S,1010SI(] 3} JO SNUIASI S} ‘OnsST puoq oI} Woy FuIurewar spuny Yyl wox pred aq 0} papoadxa aIe “159Iaur 6002
PAJRIAI Y} PUR ‘SPUO( 9SIT) “JOASMOY “JOLIISI(T S} JO SUONRSI[qo [e1ousd aIe osay ], "I9jus)) dnenby s owmsiq 0102
31} JO UOTIONIISUOD Y} SOUBUIY 03 PINSSI 3I9M SPUOq I3[, “900Z TeoA [eoSIy20uls SUIPURISINO SPUO] SNUSAIL 1102
SjeuId)[e sey 10LSI(] 9], "90IN0S SNUaAI PaSpald = £q A71owns pspoddns Boﬁ puUOq SABY 10U S0P 10IISK( SYL, 910N Z102
, £10¢
¥102
S10¢
a8eI10A0) ®0L 159193U] redrourrg 901AI19S 192(J asuadxyg anuoAY RN
10] S1qelleAY [edsT]

(paytpneun))

SIEa X [e9SL] U3l ise]
9%e10A0)) puog pepoddng anusASY JO S[NPIYDS

LORLSIA XV NOIVAAVHD

8¢ a|npayog

-98 -



Schedule 29

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Personal
Income ) 3) @ ) 6)
Fiscal 1) Expressed in Per Capita Median School Unemployment Unemployment
Year Population Thousands Income Age Enrollment  Rate (Illinois) Rate (City)
2015 83,424 $ 3475611 41,662 26 9,439 6.0% 4.0%
2014 83,424 3,260,710 39,086 26 9,383 8.5% 5.0%
2013 81,055 3,010,220 37,138 25 9,208 7.5% 6.4%
2012 81,055 2,788,129 34,398 25 9,179 6.7% 6.8%
2011 81,055 2,788,129 34,398 25 8,893 8.9% 7.2%
2010 75,254 2,623,279 34,859 24 9,224 9.5% 8.0%
2009 75,254 2,613,045 34,723 24 9,239 8.4% 6.0%
2008 75,254 2,478,265 32,932 25 9,244 6.5% 4.1%
2007 - 75,254 2,331,444 . 30981 /i 25 9248 . 48% . 3.6%
2006 72,140 2,140,534 . 29;672 e S25 0 9382 42% : 3.6% .
Notes: (1) Population for 2014-2015 is a Census estimate. Population for 2011-2013 is from the 2010 Census conducted by the

U.S. Bureau of the Census. Popiulatiorj for 2007-2010 is from a Special C'cnsus"cpnaljlcted by the U.S. Bureau of the
Census. 2002-2006 population is calculated by adding 1% per annum to the 2000 census.

(2) Provided by the Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commierce.
(3) ‘Age distribution is for the City of Champaign from the 1990 census and 2000 census, U.S. Bureau of the Census.
(4) Tllinois Report Card for Champaign CUSD 4, prior years have been updated to reflect actual data reported.

(5) U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Some amounts from prior years have been updated by the
U.S. Department of Labor.

(6) U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics specific to Champaign-Urbana area only at April.

-99-

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

Principal Employers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Fiscal Years Earlier

Schedule 30

(Unaudited)
2015 2006
Percent of Percent of
Total City Total City
Name of Company Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (1) 10,349 1 25.5% 13,971 1 35.3%
Carle (Carle Clinic Association & Carle Foundation Hospital) 5,623 2 13.8% 5,669 2 14.3%
Champaign Unit4 Schools 1,814 3 4.5% 1,305 3 3.3%
Kraft Foods, Inc. 1,350 4 3.3% 1,300 4 3.3%
Palfkland College 950 5 v 2.3% 1,200 5 3.0%
Chiistie (fli_nic zfassociétién 7,5’("'): %6: 1.8%:@, 800 6 | .2.0%“
Hobf;ico, Inc. - 700 7 1.7%? g
B;lsey Bank 524 8 1.3%
City of Champaign 475 9 1.2% 500 9 1.3%
Horizon Hobby, Inc. *  : 396 10+ 1.6%:
Devonshire Group, LLC | 590 7 1.5%
Amdocs 550 8 1.4%
Bartlett Management Services, Inc. 500 10 1.3%
Total 22,931 56.4% 26,385 66.7%

Source:

Note: (1)

Economic Development Corporation and Bureau of Labor Statistics

- 100 -

The University of Illinois, administration, and campus are located in both Champaign and Urbana.

preliminary & tentative — subject to change - for discussion purposes only




Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip 10} - abuey? 0} j93lgns — aanejua) g Aeuiwijaid

JuotmIeda(] UOLRNSTUIWDPY PUE 0URUL] JOMSICT :20mog

‘ST A4 Surmp suoyerad() ojur pue qoﬁmhmﬁﬁv< J0 M0 pasow sem Juswdo[aaap pue Suraue[d 1 310N

Ssst £hl 201 01 901 601 m oI 901 101
TLE G 62 0t € ot ¢ 67 153 157
¥201 86 85 13 ~ 09 €9 59 59" 09 ss

$T z z z € 3 € £ £ €

82l Al €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 b1 V1

<102 Y10C £10C 102 110z 10T 600C 3002 1002 900C
(psypoeun)
SIea X [OSI] U9 15e']

1€ 3MMpayas

(syusreamnby sumy-[ng) uoyoung Aq saakofdury I9SI(] JO I9qUINN

LOMLSIA 2IVd NOIVANVHD

'SmMoY 080°7 AQ PIPIAIP SIe S3P0O WOHRIYISSL[O Aq SINOY [e10], 31, "SHIJ JO UOHR[no[es pue JuswaSeuet ur 95Teyo € Sem 3194} ‘b1 07 Wt SurumSog

TV1OL
(1 910N suonesado
SITY/uoneaIosy
SunayreN

UoHRRSTUIUPY
{UONESI99Y PUE 213N

uonounj

- 101 -



Ajuo sasodind uoissnosip 1o} - abuey o} 30afgns - aanejus) @ Leujwijaid

spuoureda(] J0LSI(T SNOLIRA :30IM0§

pasofo pasopd pesop 91T, 0011 £01°¢1 80T°L1 850°01 YLV 1T 6vS°El [ood Sutpreds
SP1°1S 96109 ¥87°56 T8¢°18 6€S°101 £11°98 W16 LLSHO1 91+39 17T'LS [o0d woloys

a8es) 1004
186°19 879°6¢€ 0LS’S P19%6L 665°1¢€ 62€°09 £L0°T9 LTTT9 0S7°99 0ZL09 oxesyL BrENA
000°sT 8YS°ST v1€3T 6v°LT LES'SS 81t°sS TTYLS LYY'1S TT6 VY 08Y°LT 19JU3D) SIS,
176°1€ £zeee POS°LE 6L6'LE 6951t T€0°8E TE0E 60T°3€ 96b°LE ST0°8E 19ju9)) [eInyIny) JaSuudg
UMOIUN  UMOWfUR  LpEY 0£8°S LT1%9 .. 0889 6149 . 1L¥E 18L°S SESy jred orexs
00081 2001 €8T 86101 206°6 669°S1 $L6°91 S6°Z1 0SE'6T 98L°91 wire,] suleld
S6E°EL $09°02 $T6°0T 0£€°ST 8S0PE ,,,wgh,mm 9¢€sE 610°Ty 0v6'Ly S6£°6¢ 131U8)) 99y prequoa]
umow{un 8/ 0z8 S16- £18°1 6v1°T 609°1 £36. LbL'S 1z . 9SNOYIEOg WewFneYy
¥ST'S 11L's vEI9 1S€°01 616°11 9601 08L°€1 16€°71 £2891 8€6°ST ) 199D sAeH
LTLYT $80°sT 201°€T 011°€T 766°€€ 9L9°Ey SPH'89 6L8°CS $99°9¢ TE5vT yred sse[3noq

agesq] Aupoed

UOlBaINaY pue aImyn)
uonoun
10T 10T €102 T10C 110z 0102 600C 3002 L00T 9002
(paupneup)
SIed X [eosI Uy, 1se]

Z¢€ ampaysg

uonoun,] £q s1oyeorpu] SuneiadQ
LOTILSIA XA Vd NDIVAANVHD

-102 -



Ajuo sasodind uoissnasip Joj - abueyd o3 393lgns — aApejua) ¥ Aeuiwnaid

sjuounreda( 1OLISICT SNOLIE A :90mog

youne| 180q [EULIOY € JOU ST YOUNE] 180q INQ),

4 I I I I I I I 1 I punosgferdg
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 SHNOD) [[EqAR[IOA
T T - - - - - - - - I00pInQO-sunoD red 2000g
8 8 8 8 8 6 6 6 6 6 PAIYSI] 10U “J00PINQ-SHNOY) SIUUA,
91 91 9l 91 91 91 9l 91 91 91 PayS1] “100PINQ-SHNOY SIUUSY,
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 PayB1] “100pU[-SHNOY SUUA],
I I 1 I 4 4 4 Z (4 4 sanoeg Surwwimg
¥T (44 (44 (44 T €4 0T 0T 0T 1 Sp1a1g 120908
4 4 Z I I I I I I I Sred e
L L 9 9 9 9 9 T k4 k4 mhoucoo Eo.ﬂmuuuuM
0 o€ 6T 6T 6T LT ﬁ, 9T , LT LT spunoxiie|q
79 79 19 19 19 19 79 19 0 09 Syreq
b1 b1 €1 €1 € Al 11 o ot siteay
1 €1 €l o gl &g T g €1 I T < S PANYSI] Jou ‘snoD [reqiadiseg
s s S s s S S s s s P8I ‘suno) [reqiedseg
01 ol 1 11 I I I I no 11 P8I ‘sprayIred
9l 91 Ll N Ll L1 £l €l €1 €1 PawgSIT 10 ‘splaygIreg
- - - - - - - - 1 1 SAYIUNET 180 4
U0IBaIIFY pue AInyn)
uonoun g
10T v10T €107 7107 110T 0107 600T 8007 L00T 9007
(panpreur))

SIes A [eoSL] U9, Ise
uonounJ £q sonsnels 19ssy [ende)
IOTILSIA AV NDIVAAVHD

£€ 3mpaysg

-103 -



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS

September 9, 2015

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Regular Board meeting on
Wednesday, September 9, 2015 which commenced at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center,
706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, lllinois, pursuant to published notice duly given. President
McMahon presided over the meeting.

Present: President Timothy P, McMahon, Vice President Craig W. Hays, Commissioners Alvin S.
Griggs, Barbara J. Kuhl, and Jane L. Solon, Treasurer Gary Wackerlin and Attorney Guy Hall.

Staff Present: Joseph Del.uce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive
Director/Board Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Kevin Crump, Director of
Operations and Planning, Jameel Jones, Director of Recreation, Tammy Hoggatt, and Director of
Human Resources, Information Technology and Risk.

Other staff were in attendance as well as members of the public were in attendance.

Call to Order
President McMahon called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Comments from the Public
None.

Communications
President McMahon circulated the communications.

Treasurer’s Report
Treasurer Wackerlin presented the Treasurer's Report for the month of August 2015. He stated
the Park District's finances have been reviewed and found to be in appropriate order.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to accept the Treasurer's Report for the month of August
2015. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Griggs. The motion passed 5-0.

Executive Director's Report

Volunteer of the Month

Mr. Jones introduced Zoe Stinson, Special Events & Volunteer Manger. Ms. Stinson introduced
Claudia Christy, the new Special Events and Volunteer Coordinator. Ms. Christy reported that
Centennial freshman Celi Jackson was chosen as August Volunteer of the Month., She was
recognized for her efforts with the Swingsetters, Extended Swingsetters and Friday Funsters camp.
Ms. Jackson was in attendance and was presented with a bag of gifts in appreciation.

The Board thanked Ms. Jackson for her efforts.
Ms. Christy gave a brief introduction and history about herself. The Board welcomed Ms. Christy.

General Announcements

Mr. DelLuce reported that the lllinois Association of Park Districts Best of the Best Awards Gala will
be held on Friday, October 2, 2015 in Wheeling. The Champaign Park District will be honored in
three categories: lllinois Parks’ Top Journalist Award — WCIA, Best Friend of Illinois Parks — Small
Business - Sola Gratia Farm, and Good Sportsmanship Award — Mack Hodges. Commissioner



Solon will be recognized at the Gala for 10 years of service to the Park District. Mr. DeLuce
congratulated Commissioner Solon for her accomplishment.

Mr. DeLuce reported Vice President Griggs and he will be attending the National Recreation and
Park Association Congress from September 14-18, 2015.

Committee and Liaison Reports

Champaign Parks Foundation

Vice President Hays reported the Foundation had not yet met for the month of September. He
reported that there was approximately a 30% increase in net funds from the car raffle. The funds
will go toward the Youth Scholarship fund.

President McMahon thanked Jimmy John's for its $25,000 donation toward youth scholarships.
Report of Officers

Attorney's Report

Annexing of Property for Discussion

Attorney Hall reported that the proposed annexation of property was for discussion only. He stated
that it is a very small parcel of land, approximately 1.7 acres, currently owned by the Champaign
County. In information shared with the Board, it suggested that County staff and Park District staff
expressed an interest in transferring the property to the Park District. Mr. DeLuce informed the City
staff during discussion about the property that the Board would make the final decision on whether
to annex the property. Attorney Hall noted that this was a proposed annexation with a suggestion
that if Park District annexed the property it may be interested in taking ownership in the future.

Discussion ensued. Mr. DelLuce reported that the property is the location of the Mable Thomas
Park. It has a playground and a small basketball court on it. The property has been annexed by the
City of Champaign, but not conveyed at this time. The Board expressed concern about the park not
meeting the Park District's standards, cost to maintain it, and inadequate size of the parcel.

It was the consensus of the Board to not annex the parcel. Attorney Hall advised that no further
action was needed on the matter.

President's Report
None.

Consent Agenda
President McMahon stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall

be acted upon by one motion. If discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed
separately. Commissioner Solon asked that Items 8 and 9 be addressed separately. Commissioner
Kuhl asked that Item 6 be addressed separately. Thus the items for the Consent Agenda are as
follows:

Approval of the Minutes of Regular Board Meeting, August 12, 2015

Approval of the Minutes of Executive Session, August 12, 2015

Approval of the Minutes of Study Session, August 26, 2015

Approval of the Minutes of Executive Session, August 26, 2015

Approval of Board of Conduct Code

Approval of an amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement for the Community Matters
Program for the Centennial Park area extending the term of the agreement to December
30, 2015

N R by

Minutes of the September 9, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2



Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 through 5 and 7. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Griggs. The motion passed 5-0.

6. Approval of a Revised Naming of Parks and Facilities Policy

Commissioner Kuhl suggested that the word “trail" be included in the first paragraph and
that the wording before and after “or" mirror each whether naming amenities or renaming

amenities.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approved Item 6 as revised. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Griggs. The motion passed 5-0.

8. Approval rejecting the bid for Hard Court Re-surfacing and Striping bid for Spalding Tennis
Courts, and accepting the bid and authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a contract
for the Morrissey Tennis Courts with the lowest responsible bidder, Harris Barrier
Corporation of Indianapolis, IN, in the amount of $33,780.00

Commissioner Solon asked why staff recommended moving forward with repair of the courts in
Morrissey Park instead of the courts in Spalding Park. Mr. Crump reported that the courts in
Morrissey Park are the oldest and in need of repair the most. Discussion ensued about the life
expectancy of courts and whether additional funds were available to repair the courts at Spalding
Park. Mr. Crump responded that the life expectancy of courts was approximately 25-years and
required patching 2 to 3 times over the lifetime. Currently, no additional funds are available to fund
the Spalding Park courts, and staff will rebid this project in the spring. Staff is working on
replacement and maintenance schedules for facilities and amenities.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 8 as recommended. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

9. Approval accepting the bid and authorizing the purchase of one new 2016 Ford E450
Starcraft All-Star bus from the lowest responsible bidder, Midwest Transit Eqt., in the
amount of $52,926.00

Vice President Hays inquired about the use of the bus from Mass Transit District (MTD). Mr. Crump
reported that the MTD bus was not accessible and it replaced the green school bus which was
used for day camps and various programs. Funds for the proposed purchase will come from the
CUSR budget. Mr. Jones reported that purchase of the bus will allow for multiple trips on the same
day as the bus is wheelchair accessible.

Commissioner Solon inquired about the percentage of CUSR wheelchair participants. Staff will
follow up and provide the Board with this information.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 9. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Griggs. The motion passed 5-0.

New Business

Approval of the List of Bills for August 2015
Staff recommended approval of the list of disbursements for the period beginning August 12, 2015

and ending September 8, 2015.

Minutes of the September 9, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 3



Commissioner Griggs made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning
August 12, 2015 and ending September 8, 2015. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of a Resolution Initiating the 2015 General Obligation Bond Issue
Staff recommended approval of a resolution stating the Park District's need and intent to issue
$1,092,700.00 of General Obligation Bonds for FY15-16.

Commissioner Griggs made a motion to approve a resolution stating the Park District’s need and
intent to issue $1,092,700.00 of General Obligation Bonds for FY15-16. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0.

Approval of a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing on Proposed Bond Issue

Staff recommends approval of a Resolution to set a Public Hearing for Wednesday, October 14,
2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center to discuss the issuance of $1,092,700.00 of
bonds for the purpose of providing funds for capital improvements. As required by law, a public
hearing must be set for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Board proposal to sell
bonds.

Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve a Resolution to set a Public Hearing for
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center to discuss the issuance
of $1,092,700.00 of bonds for the purpose of providing funds for capital improvements. As
required by law, a public hearing must be set for the purpose of receiving public comments on the
Board proposal to sell bonds. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Griggs. The motion

passed 5-0.

Approval of a Revised Employment Policy Regarding Hiring of Relatives

Mr. DeLuce reported that staff drafted an employment policy regarding hiring of relatives. It was
reviewed and revised by Attorney Hall. He reviewed the proposed policy with the Board. Close
relatives of the Board, Executive Director and Department Directors will not be allowed to be
employed by the Park District as full-time employees.

President McMahon was absent from the meeting where this item was discussed and asked for
feedback from the Board on this matter.

Commissioner Solon expressed her concerns about approval of the proposed policy. She was in
favor of keeping the current policy in place. Commissioner Griggs had no objections to the
proposed policy.

Commissioner Kuhl favored approval of the proposed policy. Discussion ensued. Ms. Hoggatt
reported that allowing hiring of relatives for seasonal employees has been very beneficial and that
the Park District has had good success with married couples. Staff believes that relatives make the
best employees for various reasons. The policy will be revised to clarify that close relatives of
Board members, the Executive Director and Department Directors are excluded from being hired
by the Park District, provided that, close relatives of Department Directors can be hired as
seasonal employees insofar as the policy is not otherwise violated.

Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the revised employment policy regarding hiring of
relatives. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Griggs. The motion passed 4-1 with

Commissioner Solon voting nay.

Minutes of the September 9, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4



Old Business

Approval of Timeframe to Include Taxable Allowances as IMRF Earnings

Mr. DeLuce reported that the Board decided to not pass a resolution allowing taxable expenses to
be reported as wages at the August 12, 2015 Regular Board meeting. He shared information with
the Board from IMRF on two retirees and the impact if the adjustment were to go back four years

versus ten years. :

Discussion ensued about pros and cons, consequences of going back four years versus ten years,
and the effect on the retirees. Discussion also ensued about benefit issues. Ms. Wallace stated
that IMRF indicated that the best practice was to adjust to inception, but the recommendation to
comply with the audit finding is to adjust four years. Both methods have been used in the past by
other entities. Mr. DelLuce stated that staff will include the definition of wages as it relates to IMRF
and the IRS in the personnel manual.

Discussion continued about the adjustment period. Commissioner Griggs did not favor adjusting
benefits. Commissioner Kuhl did not favor adjusting back to inception. Ms. Wallace explained the
process of refunding the IMRF portion.

Commissioner Hays made a motion to approved Option 1: Approve the wage adjustments going
back to 2005 when the reporting of taxable expenses as wages began. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Griggs and Kuhl voting nay.

Attorney Hall suggested that Ms. Wallace contact IMRF to see if it will contact the retirees.
Commissioner Kuhl suggested that the Board's decision be communicated through the Park
District.

Discussion ltems
None.

Comments from Commissioners
Commissioner Solon asked about the reports for the Taste of Champaign-Urbana and the summer
programs. Mr. DeLuce reported that staff was compiling the information and that it will be shared

with the Board.

Adjourn
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Griggs made a motion

to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0
and the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

Timothy P. McMahon, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Minutes of the September 9, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
Page 5



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION MEETING
BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS

September 23, 2015

The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Study Session Meeting on
Wednesday, September 23, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road,
Champaign, lllinois, pursuant to notice duly given. President McMahon presided over the meeting.

Present: President Timothy P. McMahon, Commissioners Alvin S. Griggs, Barbara J. Kuhl, and Jane
L. Solon, Treasurer Gary Wackerlin and Attorney Guy Hall.

Absent: Vice President Craig Hays

Staff Present: Joseph Deluce, Executive Director, Cindy Harvey, Assistant to the Executive
Director/Board Secretary, Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Kevin Crump, Director of Operations
and Planning, Tammy Hoggatt, Director of Human Resources, Information Technology and Risk,
Chelsea Norton, Director of Marketing and Communications, and Andrew Weiss, Park
Planner/Landscape Architect.

Members of the public were in attendance. Tim Mitchell, a reporter with The News-Gazette, was also
present.

Call to Order
President McMahon called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

Comments from the Public

Theresa Truelove, 508 S. McKinley, Champaign, addressed the Board about the need for year
round deep water swimming for seniors. She encouraged the Park District to research the Silver
Sneakers Seniors program which is offered in several fitness centers in the area. There are several
different program levels and it is paid for by the individual's health insurance.

President McMahon thanked Ms. Truelove for her comments.
Presentations

Proposed Plan for Improvements to Hessel Park

Mr. Weiss presented and responded to questions about the proposed plan for improvement to
Hessel Park. He reported that the initial plan was presented and discussed with the Board at the
June 2015 Study Session as part of the list of priorities. Mr. Weiss reported that the plan for
improvements is to occur during FY15-16 and FY16-17. In FY15-16, the work will include
purchase and installation of a new playground equipment, installation of new poured-in-place
playground safety surfacing, and installation of a new concrete accessible path. The old
playground will remain operational until the new playground has been constructed. In FY16-17,
construction of the new sprayground and new restrooms/concrete path will be addressed in
capital budget planning process.

Discussion ensued. Commissioner Solon inquired about the number of trees that will be
affected, impact on the swale that helps with the water drainage from the middle of the park,
and the feasibility of building a large sprayground. Mr. Weiss reported that it unknown at this
time how many trees will be affected but the aim is to minimize the loss of trees. He stated that
staff will know more once it has a more detailed accurate drawing. Commissioner Solon stated
that she would like to know how many trees and which of the trees will be affected. Mr. Weiss
stated that staff will compile a list of questions to be addressed, and as the project is developed,



staff will keep the Board abreast of the design developments. Ms. Solon expressed concern
about spending a large sum of money on water for a sprayground that will only be operational
for three months of the year and questioned whether it was the most effective and efficient use
of Park District funds.

Commissioner Kuhl does not believe the Park District will construct a sprayground and not
provide enough space. She suggested that the use and popularity of spraygrounds continues to
increase.

Discussion continued. The current plan if for the restrooms to remain in their current location.

Staff will share more schematic drawings and updates as the design progresses. President
McMahon thanked Mr. Weiss for the presentation.

Leonhard Recreation Center Marketing Study

Ms. Norton reviewed and answered questions about the results of the marketing study
regarding the Leonhard Recreation Center (Center). She reported that the study was designed
to evaluate the current performance and public awareness of the facility. Ms. Norton reviewed
the mission and goals for the Center. Staff worked with DCC Marketing to conduct an online
survey and focus group session to assess applicable factors. DCC analyzed the results and
presented recommendations to continue to build on the public perception, membership, and
membership retention of the facility. Discussion ensued.

Commissioner Kuhl commented that it was a great report and very beneficial report for the Park
District to see what it is doing to enhance the experience of participants.

Ms. Norton updated the Board on the focus group and its attendees. The focus group consisted
of Center members and nonmembers. The report is an overview of what the survey and the
focus group as a whole came expressed and shared with the staff. Mr. DeLuce noted that DCC
came up with the tag “get connected.” The Park District will soon offer Wi-Fi to the public at the
Center.

Commissioner Solon suggested that the Park District offer more senior citizen oriented physical
activities. Ms. Norton concurred. President McMahon commented that it was a great report with
good ideas. He also noted that 88% of respondents to the survey were women.

Mr. DelLuce stated that Mr. Jones and his staff will work with Ms. Norton on the
recommendations. Staff will provide periodic progress updates to the Board.

The Board thanked Ms. Norton for her presentation. Ms. Norton departed the meeting at 5:55
p.m.

Discussion ltems

Champaign Parks Foundation 1% Quarterly Financial Update

Ms. Wallace presented the Parks Foundation quarterly financial report and responded to
questions from the Board. She reported that for the three months ended July 31, 2015, the
Foundation had revenues of $74,021 compared to $23,427 last year. Ms. Wallace reported that
expenses through the end of July 31, 2015 were $8,657 compared to $6,116 the prior year. She
noted that revenues included the $25,000 contribution to the scholarship fund, $5,000 in
donation to Eisner Park to rename the ballfield, $3,800 in memorials, and a general increase in
contributions. A detailed list of all the restricted funds received and what is remaining to be
spent was shared with the Board. Approximately $14,000 in donations was received for the

Minutes of the September 23, 2015 Study Session Meeting
Page 2




Virginia Theatre restoration the first three months of the fiscal year. She reported the
Foundation total net assets for the three months ended July 31, 2015 is $685,704 compared to
$506,104 for the same time in the prior year.

Commissioner Solon inquired about the donation from Amdocs and questioned the procedure
for following up with donors on unspent funds. She noted that Champaign West Rotary set up a
memorial area in Mattis Park to place plaques for members who have passed away and no one
has a copy of the agreement. Ms. Wallace reported that she will have Ms. Auteberry follow up
with Amdocs about the remaining funds.

President McMahon inquired about the process for following up with donors on unspent funds.
He noted that there are a number of line items with remaining balances. President McMahon
inquired about the remaining funds in the Leonhard Recreation Center Buy a Brick program. Ms.
Wallace stated that she monitors invoices to determine if Foundation funds can be used for
certain expenses. President McMahon also asked about the fund balance for memorials. Ms.
Wallace stated that memorials are normally used to purchase trees. Mr. Wackerlin noted that a
specific process does not exist to use remaining funds. President McMahon inquired about the
Harlen E. Moore funds and Ms. Wallace stated that the Park District can not spend the
remaining funds because they are permanently restricted. The Park District is only allowed to
spend interest from the funds for general operating expenses. Commissioner Solon inquired
about the funds designated for the Tootsie sculpture in West Side Park. Ms. Wallace indicated
that remaining funds are to be used for the maintenance of the sculpture and the interest from
remaining funds left over are to be used for the Virginia Theatre restoration. Commissioner
Solon expressed concern about the over grown shrubs around the Tootsie sculpture. Ms.
Wallace stated that unrestricted funds are used for general administrative expenses.

Champaign Park District 1% Quarterly Financial Update

Ms. Wallace presented the staff report and responded to questions from the Board. She reported
that the first three months revenues are at 41.2% of overall budgeted revenues. Property taxes
collected through July 31, 2015 are 53.7% of budget. Concessions revenue was 83.5% of budget.
The Virginia Theatre concessions was 21.2% of budget due the closure for renovations during part
of the year. Interest income is at 55% of budget, which is more than expected but due to the delay of
capital projects and cash reserves being higher than originally participated. Ms. Wallace reported
that charges for services include all of the Park District's program fees, Virginia Theatre ticket sales,
day camp fees, membership fees, and pool admission/ticket sales. Ms. Wallace reported that overall
expenditures for the three months ended July 31, 2015 are 18,5% of budget, which is below the
expected benchmark of 25% of budget.

Ms. Wallace provided information on the three major funds: museum, recreation and general. All
three of the funds are on track. The general fund is slightly less than budgeted. Expenses were at
18.5% of budget. Recreation fund is at 30.9% of budget. The museum fund is at 27% of budget. The
fund balance is well in excess of the 120-day reserve. She reported that the Park District’s three
main funds are at 91% of the reserve requirements due to have property taxes received in advance.

Ms. Wallace stated that if the Board would like to see the information at department level to let her
know.

The Board thanked Ms. Wallace for her presentations.

Agreement with Champaign Telephone for Network Connections

Ms. Hoggatt presented the staff report and responded to questions by the Board. She reported
that the agreement is due to expire on October 1, 2015. She stated that Champaign Telephone
is the parent company but that the Park District works directly with SPOC, owners of the UC2B
fiber lines installed in 2012. Ms. Hoggatt reported that staff has worked out the terms and

Minutes of the September 23, 2015 Study Session Meeting
Page 3




conditions for fiber and the cost for service. Attorney Hall has reviewed the agreement and
made substantial changes. Attorney Hall and staff is working with Champaign Telephone to
finalize the agreement which will be presented to the Board for approval at the October 14, 2015
Board meeting. The cost proposed is $4,133.33 per month, or $49,599.60 annually. The Park
District will save approximately $4,300,00 annually.

Commissioner Solon asked if the Park District was required to bid this service. Attorney Hall
stated that due to the nature of the services it is not required to be bid. Ms. Hoggatt reported
that staff discovered that if it went to a different service because SPOC own the fiber lines it
would require the Park District to run all new infrastructure. Commissioner Solon noted that

through some type of agreement other carriers are permitted to use existing fiber lines.

Commissioner Solon inquired about the proposed set up and availability of public Wi-Fi in the
facilities. Ms. Hoggatt reported that Wi-Fi will be made available to the public in the all Park
District facilities. There are no plans to make Wi-Fi available in parks at this time.

Commissioner Comments
Ms. Solon inquired about the letter received about the IAPD Executive Director annual salary.

There was a brief discussion and Board requested that this matter be placed on the October
Board agenda for further discussion.

Adjourn

There being no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Griggs made a motion to
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. The motion passed 5-0,
and the meeting was adjourned at 6:24 p.m.

Timothy P. McMahon, President Cindy Harvey, Secretary

Minutes of the September 23, 2015 Study Session Meeting
Page 4



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DelLuce, Executive Director
DATE: October 1, 2015

SUBJECT: Hard Court Replacement Project

Background
Hard Court Replacement was included in the 2015/2016 Capital Improvement plan (Project #16PMO1).

Each year, staff identifies hard court basketball surfaces in need of replacement due to extensive
cracking, sub-base failure and age. This bid included the basketball courts at Wesley and Hazel Parks.

Prior Board Action
The Board of Commissioners approved the FY15-16 Capital budget at the April 22, 2015 Special Board

meeting.

Bid Results
Bid packets were requested by eight potential contractors, with five bids received. Bids were opened and

read aloud on September 30, 2015. The bid results are below.

Contractor Main Bid — Wesley Park | Alt. Bid — Hazel Park
Beniach Construction Co., Tuscola, IL $91,313.20 $58,284.00
Stark Excavating Inc., Champaign, IL $92.076.40 $51,497.35
A & R Services Inc., Urbana, IL $99,466.93 $53,097.70
Duce Construction Co., Champaign, IL $101,489.00 $50,961.00
Feutz Contractors Inc., Paris, IL $116,223.90 $61,095.40

Budget Impact
$90,000.00 is budgeted in the 2015/2016 Capital Improvement plan for Project #16PM01. The balance of

$1,313.20 would be made up by savings in other Periodic Maintenance projects.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends that the Board reject the Hard Court Replacement bid for Hazel Basketball Court, and

accept the bid for the Wesley Basketball Courts and authorize the Executive Director to enter into a
contract with the low, responsible bidder, Beniach Construction Company, Tuscola IL, in the amount of
$91,313.20.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Kevin Crump, CPRP Joe DelLuce, CPRP
Director of Operations & Planning Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe Del.uce, Executive Director
DATE: October 5, 2015

SUBJECT: Dumpster Service Bid

Background
The District currently has separate agreements with one hauler managed by several different staff to

service dumpsters at various facilities and provide services for special events such as Taste of
Champaign-Urbana and CU Days. Bidding this service will place all dumpsters under one agreement
for a three-year period and managed by one District employee. This is the second time this service has
been formally bid.

Prior Board Action
The Board rejected all bids at the May 6, 2015 regular meeting, because bids received could not be

adequately compared.

Bid Results
An invitation to bid was published in The News-Gazelte. The bids were opened and read aloud on

Friday, October 2, 2015. Four (4) bids were received and the results are as follows:

Vendor Monthly Base Bid
Republic Services, Urbana, IL $ 565.00
Advanced Disposal, Decatur, IL $716.00
Area Disposal, Clinton, IL $ 1,060.00
ABC Sanitary, Champaign, IL $ 1,460.00

Budget Impact
Funds are allocated each fiscal year in the appropriate operating budget.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends accepting the lowest responsible base bid from Republic Services, in the bid amount
of $565.00 per month, and additional service rates for dumpsters in the bid amounts as follows: a 2-
yard rolling dumpster at $20.00 per lift, 20-yard roll off dumpster at $125 per haul plus $45.00 per ton,
and % yard tote at $8.50 per lift, and authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a contract for this
service.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Bret Johnson Kevin Crump
Grounds & Maintenance Supervisor Director of Operations & Planning

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe Del.uce, Executive Director
DATE: October 6, 2015

SUBJECT: Recommend Acceptance of the FY14-15 Audit Report

Background
The Park District is required by law to hire a licensed public accountant or firm to conduct a financial

audit annually. The audit for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015 was conducted by Martin, Hood,
Friese & Associations (MHFA). Representatives of MHFA will be present to review the audit report
and answer any questions. Staff has reviewed the documents in their entirety prior to the meeting.

Prior Board Action
The Board approved retaining MHFA as the auditor for FY15 at the October 22, 2014 meeting.

Budget Impact
The audit for FY15 is $19,000, of which $11,200 has been paid through October 6, 2015.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends the Board accept the FY14-15 audit report as presented.
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DelLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe Del.uce, Executive Director
DATE: October 6, 2015

SUBJECT: Authorization to Solicit Bids for the 2015 General Obligation Bond Issue

Background
Each year, the Board approves authorizing the Treasurer and Director of Finance to solicit bids for

the issuance of bonds. This year, the amount of bonds will be $1,092,700. The general purpose of
these bonds is to provide funds to pay for the building, maintaining, improving and protecting the
parks and boulevards for the Park District and for the payment of expenditures incident thereto.
Specifically, a portion of the funds will be used to pay for the principal and interest of the Alternative
Revenue Bond issue.

Prior Board Action
At the September 9, 2015 Board meeting, the Commissioners set the date for the public hearing as
October 14, 2015 related to this bond issue.

Budget Impact
None related to solicitation of bids other than the public notice, which is $39.69, and has been

included in the FY16 budget.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends Board approval authorizing the Treasurer and Director of Finance to solicit bids
for the issuance of $1,092,700 in General Obligation Bonds.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DelLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



CHAMPAIGN

PARK DISTRICT
REPORT TO PARK BOARD
FROM: Joe Deluce, Executive Director
DATE: October 8, 2015

SUBJECT: Approval of a Resolution Estimating Taxes to be Levied for FY16-17

Background
Each year, the Board is required to pass a Resolution setting the tax levy for the following fiscal

year (FY) 2016-17. Following the approval of the Resolution, staff will publish the Truth in Taxation
notice, if required. Additionally, the District needs to hold a public hearing on its intent to adopt
such an increased tax levy at the November Beard meeting.

The estimated tax extension for revenue year (RY) 2015 was based on the limiting rate, rather than
an estimate of the anticipated increases. Either way, the calculation for the estimated tax extension
is an educated calculation based on estimated EAV and the consumer price index (CPI). The
limiting rate allows for the extension for new construction and recovered enterprise zone EAV's
which are not subject to tax caps in the initial year, to be maximized. The limiting rate is multiplied
by the EAV estimate. This rate is calculated as follows:

Numerator - is the property taxes that we received last year multiplied by the CPI (0.8% for
RY2015)

Denominator — is the EAV from the most recent County Assessor's Office notification
received in August, decreased by the EAV for new construction and recovered enterprise
Zone,

This limiting rate is strictly an estimation or forecast of the future based on how close our
assumptions are about the changes in CPI, EAV and new construction. As any one of these factors
changes, so does this rate. What causes the limiting rate to change? New construction, recovered
enterprise zone or TIF, no growth in EAV and changes to CPI.

Staff calculated the extension for FY16-17 as historically done, and recommended by finance
professionals, as well as trade associations, which is to maximize the levy by estimating the
extension to capture the legal rate limitation increase allowed once the final EAV is calculated. The
County Clerk’s Office will finalize the extension subject to legal restrictions and send the final
extension in April. The impact on the overall tax rate is an increase of 2.24%. It is important to note
that the limiting rate applicable to tax capped funds actually decreased 1% from the prior year from
.6384 to .6320. The main documentation for the increase in the rate is due to the debt service fund.
As you recall the District abated $358,557 of the prior year extension, which decreased the debt
service rate from .0964 to .0480 for the past year. The original debt service amount levied in the
prior year was $1,091,608, which compared to the current year extension of $1,098,200 is an
increase of 0.6%. As there will not be an abatement filed on next year's debt service fund, the
overall rate will increase from .0480 to an estimated .0707, thereby resulting in the increase to the

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive

experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts,



District's total tax rate. Had the same amount been levied for debt service, then the rate would have
decreased.

Additional adjustments were made to various funds as noted:
s The tax extensions were reduced based on projected expenditures for IMRF, insurance, and
general funds
» The tax extension for the debt service fund was based on the estimated 2015 general
obligation bond issue plus projected interest to be paid November 2016.

The total estimated levy does not exceed 105% of the prior year extension, therefore no Truth In
Taxation notice is required to be published; however Staff recommends setting a public hearing on
the Tax Ordinance, which is included in the recommended action below.

Budget Impact
None at this time, however this is an estimate for taxes to be levied and collected for Fiscal Year

2016-17.

Recommended Action
Staff recommend that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed Resolution setting the tax

levy for fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016 and ending April 30, 2017 at $11,561,383, or an amount
authorized by law, and schedule a public hearing on the Tax Levy Ordinance for Thursday,
November 12, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center as required by the Truth in
Taxation Act. '

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe Deluce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.

Page 1



Z obed

“Judy Ul y2sm 1S1 2y} panss! Ajjlewsou
S UCISUSIXS [eul S| "SNOGE PISN $BEG" 10 ajel Buniwil Jesh soud sy) uey) $59| i
S}l pajewnsa siy | "SUoHE|N2|ed GL A U} 10} pasn sjes Bugiu 0ZEg pejewnsa ay) woly

faen £ew yowgm “jes Buniwi mau sy} uo paseq uoisuaixa [eba] sy} a1enojeo-ad [IM B0

funog ay) ‘swn Jey) Jy “anoge g Juswwod Jad abueya g A3 au eyl e Aybiy sty

‘sieak aunjny BuloBuo ul sdes xe} ay) 0} 1oslgns aq w sanjea asay] "Av3
u1 aBueya s1yl o) Junoosoe o} Jeak Joud 2y) woyy pasealoap sjel Bumw 2y} ek e ay)
ui sdead xe} wouy jdwaxs aie sanjeA 3SaU) Sy JESK aNUAASI £LOZ Y] WO 36'C SSBa10ap

0} pajaslord 218 S AT SUO7 SSUAISIUT PRISA0IY PUB UOHINIISUCY MON palewnss

“2JEl XE} JNO 20NpaiJ

[ AT Ul SSESI0UI UB SBSISUM ‘SJ8) XB) PSIEWINSS IN0 3SBaIOUI [[IM AW Ul 3SEI38D

W [ewiuiw q M £L-91 A4 Jo) Ans| pejewilsa ay) ajejnojed o} pasn A3 Jeutbuo ul abueys
3y} jey; pejedioyue st ) os 'sse| fjlenuelsqns st GLOZAY 104 pajy sjeadde jo raqunu au}

sieaf soud axijun "gL0g Apea ul paZijeuly a1e MIINSY JO pieog By} Yiim pajy sieadde sy}
ouo abBueyo (v anjea sy 1yl Aey Lan st i ‘esesioul pip isnBny Ul Jossessy Auno)
au Aq panigosl A PSIEWNSS BUY) SIUA AW [BNIJR FLOZ AY JOAC %L/'L Paseasaul

v

AVT 24} 'SLOZ (AM) J2aA Snuansy Joj SjBLWISS 92140 $J0S5assY AuUnos) ay) uo paseq

‘sjunowe paddes sy} Jale (%66°E) 088'ZrPS o asealoul
ue 10 (%4zZ'+) 089°LoF$ Jo salel padded a10jag UOISUSIXS |B1O) Ul 8SE210U| Ue sjuasaidal

PUE €8E'LOG'LLS SI LLOZ/OLOZ JES A [BISI] Ul PSInaT] Bq 0] JUNOWY [[BIan0 [elo} 3y Y
S0

WiN YIN

D Xe| Jaje
ajey XE| palAs] fna xel pajasloid Xel palae]

Sded Xe] Jayy

o1y

STOTAY 1S3 = #T0ZAY ™ TIOZAYE TTOZAY® OTOTAY® 600TAY E B0OTAY® L00TAY = 900TAY =

%8T'0 %I 0

WILT %IST

%00

- %000

- %00°C

~ %00°F

- %009 _

— %00°8

%00°0T

1B3) 3NUNY JOUd WOy AV Ul 35ueyd %

%00°2T

paina]
24 0) JUNOWY  WnWIXep (vL0ZAY) Juauing

WIN (9%501<%) paunbay son0N Jqnd UoHexe] uj yinip
9L-GL AL 10} AnaT Jea ), Juaung woly (aseauda() asesuau] 9
gL-GLAd 10} AnaT Jea ) JuBLIND WOl (SsBa108(]) SSEaIaU|

08r00 Ls0'ees
0or0'0 00¥00 9.8'0L9

05200 £1000 £58'6L
05000 05000 8GE'0L
Q5000 £100°0 £G8'6L
LE20°0 ¥p6'L9E
8E£Z00 866'¥9¢
£LZ00 L6Z'5ZE
00510 098070 £se'cle'l
00££°0 BSZL'0 ZEL'TTB'L
00SE0 005E0 c9L'sHE'S &

081°LOE"ESS L

SjeY Xe] Sy Xe] nusasy Xe|

(sdeg xel) 773.1d 404 passnipy

Nd 85°9 SLOZ/8/01

L10OT-910T 1e3 |BISI4
uonewsoyu] AnsT xel
PuysIq Yded ubredwey)

¥92L0  €05€60LL S Junoury fra [e1oL

801M8S 1g8Q
uoneasoay [enedg

#8E9'0 9/S'6r.L'6 deqy xe| o) loalgng g0

s3lj0d

BunyBi pue Guined
pny

funsag |ewog
BRI

SoUBINSU|

wnasnyy

[ Ti=ET RN

|eiauss)

SLOZAY 10) ANW3 1S3



Champaign Park District
RY2016 Limiting Rate Calculation

Estimate

Cap Amount from Previous Year
Multiply by any Rate Increase Factor (RIF)
Multiply by the increase in CPI

Total

Divide by:

Total Assessed Valuation

Less:
New Contruction
New TIF
New Annexed Values
New EZ
Recovered TIF
Recovered Enterprise Zone (EZ)

Subtotal

Capped Amount
Divide by Adjusted EAV
Capped Rate per $100 assessed value

Assessed Valuation - Estimated
Limiting Rate (Capped Rate)
Capped Extension Amount

Special Rec Extension
Bond Extension
Total Taxes Extended

Estimated Overall Tax Rate per $100
Current Year Rate
Increase/Decrease from prior year

Estimated Levy
$ 9,586,532.00
,
1.008
$ 9,663,224.26 A

1,553,301,180 per County Assessor's
letter from 9/2015 - est.
(22,970,850)

(150,000)

(1,081,980) per email from County Clerk 9/2015

1,629,098,350 B

9,663,224 A
1,629,098,350 B
0.631955705 =A/B*100

1,553,301,180
0.6320
9,816,863

621,320
1,098,200
§ 11,536,383.93

0.7427
0.7264
0.0163

Page 3



v abed

PIOCWM EI0ZW 7ZI0ZW TT0Z@m OIOZ= pOOCE BOOLH

PeOIIRY |enjuspisay _mmuhmEEOu _.m._um._.__uc_ uLe4
—_ 0

%059 GSP'S68'LES'T 8002

000000002 %696 IV9'BEE'ESH'T £002

%PETT TIEPEO'STET 9007

000°000°00% %EF'ST STFEFTTAL'T S00E

%06°S 9Z3'8P6TED'T 00T

000°000'009 %ET'9 EBT'TLV VL6 E00T

%679 99107816 00T

000'000008 %PE L SHY'E06'E93 00T

%86'8 LTT'6ER P08 000Z

000'000°000°'T %8P ZLS'06YREL 6661

dkv A %UPE' 025 LTS POL 8661

1EaA PUe 3aAL AQ AV %58'S StO'vZe’si9 {661

%L5°9 vZ9'E68 LEY 9661

%85'T 0£SBST'LEST ¥10Z %ET’S 876'87S 265 S66T

%LTT- £96'8TLE0S'T £T0Z 9%G8E 8TH'TY9'99s 66T

%8T 0~ 798'T9T'6TS'T TT0z %6T ¥ 969°6T9'SHS £66T

%L0T- [ETIFSEES'T 10T %S8E 6LE'TEIETS 7661

%370 TSL'6£0'055'T aToz %ISE 998 FLTF0S 1661

%ET0- £6F'v6LSHS'T 6002 %6T'S ZYR'TRT L8 066T

25e34oU| wnowy JEENS EECEYENT unouy FCETY
0ES'68T'LZS'T £96'8TL'E0ST ¥98°79Z'625°T LET'IPS EES'T TSL'6L0°0SS'T £61'F6LSHS'T SSH'SE8 ST |eyoL
996'S06 596076 801°826 T9€°£L06 STS'Los 0EE'LYL ¥£5'809 pealjiey
7’207’ 1SS Z51°059' L8 Z6E'YL8'998 216'790's88 Tr9'LTB'T06 016'£96'F06 0v6'626'716 [enuapIsay
Z0T'SES'Ta9 764 166'THY P0S'656'LE9 F00'899°FE9 P69’ TOP ZEY ££9'887°929 TSE'859'819 [B12s3WWOY
0v8'9r9TT 0SHLSSTT 0FS'vE6ZT 0S8'TSEZT 0TL'LES'ET 098°0EE’ET 0SSZ9T'ET Ansnpul
005569 085265 0ZE'945°T OTT'LSS 0LT'STS 0ZL'6SY 0r0°9ES ey

$¥T07 €107 ¢roT TT0C 0T0e 600¢ 8007

SNOSIdVdIWOD NOLLVNTVA QISSIsSyY

NOILLVYIWHOLN] TVLININI1ddNS




..Eg-

Schedule 21

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Levy Year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Fiscal Years 20062007 2007/2008 2008/2009 200572010 20102011 20112012 2001242013 2013/2014 20142015 20152016
Rate
Limit if
Champaign Park District: applicable
General 0.3500 0.3350 0.3281 0.3154 0.3206 0.3379 0.3374 0.3419 0.3497 0.3499 0.3500
Recreation 0.3700 0.0700 0.0695 0.0696 0.0697 0.0717 0.0549 0.1001 01114 0.1205 0.1259
Museum 0.1500 0.0575 0.0525 0.0499 0.05 0.0514 0.0916 0.0648 0.0704 0.0808 0.0860
IL Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) N/A 0.0215 0.0196 0.0185 0.0185 0.0170 0.0174 0.0186 0.0196 0.0246 0.0239
Social Security N/A 0.0255 0.0241 0.0246 0.0234 0.0219 0.0206 0.0210 0.0220 0.0233 0.0237
Audit 0.0050 0.0008 0.0008 0.0013 0.0017 0.0014 0.0014 0.0012 0.0013 0.0014 0.0013
Liability Insurance N/A 0.0250 0.0241 0.0234 0.0198 0.0170 0.0168 00174 0.0183 0.0210 0.0213
Debt Service N/A 0.0854 0.0768 0.0700 0.0657 0.0655 0.0665 0.0677 0.0697 0.0964 0.0480
Paving and Lighting 0.0050 0.0049 0.0048 0.0047 0.0046 0.0048 0.0049 0.0048 0.0049 0.0050 0.0050
Police 0.0250 0.0014 0.0015 0.0016 0.0017 0.0014 0.0014 0.0014 0.0015 0.0016 0.0013
Special Recreation 0.0400 0.0327 0.0396 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400
0.6597 0.6414 0.6190 0.6157 0.6300 0.6529 0.6789 0.7088 0.7645 0.7264
City of Champaign 1.3120 1.2659 1.2942 1.2942 1.2942 1.2942 1.3084 1.3152 1.3152 1.3152
Champaign County 0.7801 0.7616 0.738% 0.7426 0.7487 0.7688 0.7841 0.8138 0.8511 0.8636
Forest Preserve District 0.0818 0.0800 0.0779 0.0783 0.0790 0.0817 0.0843 0.0880 0.0931 0.0944
Champaign Township 0.0368 0.0357 0.0350 0.0350 0.0357 0.0371 0.0385 0.0404 0.0467 0.0472
Health District 0.1087 0.1060 0.1049 0.1052 0.1071 0.1075 01102 0.1163 0.1259 0.129
Parkland College 0.4776 0.4720 0.4688 0.5115 0.5082 0.5064 0.5120 0.5191 0.5253 0.5259
Champaign School District Unit 4 3.8288 37273 3.6296 3.6554 3.6546 37238 3.8805 41185 43014 43884
Mass Transit District 0.2633 02592 0.2544 0.2575 0.2619 02725 0.2831 0.2966 0.3198 0.3282
Total 7.5488 7.3491 7.2227 7.2954 7.3194 74449 7.6800 8.0167 8.3430 8.4183
Note 1: Fiscal Years - The annual levy covers a calendar year, but Champaign Park District recognizes the related revenue 50% in the fiscal year in
which the levy is passed and 50% the subsequent fiscal year
Note 2: Tax rates per $100 of assessed value

Source: Champaign County Clerk

Page 5



RESOLUTION

2016-2017 TAX LEVY

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District proposes to adopt an aggregate levy for the fiscal
year commencing May 1, 2016 and ending April 30, 2017 in amounts less than 105% of the amount
of property taxes (exclusive of election costs) extended by said District for the final aggregate levy of
the preceding year; and

WHEREAS, it is required by law that in such circumstances, this Board of Commissioners of
said District determine the amounts, exclusive of election costs, estimated to be necessary to be
raised by taxes for said 2016-2017 fiscal year upon the taxable property in said District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Champaign
Park District does hereby determine and declare that the amount of money, exclusive of election
costs, estimated to be necessary to be raised by taxation upon the taxable property in Park District
for the fiscal year commencing May 1, 2016 and ending April 30, 2017 is $11,561,383.00.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated amount to be raised by taxes does not
exceed 105% of the prior year extension and therefore does not require public notice.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that while not legally required, the District shall give public
notice of and hold a public hearing on its intent to adopt a tax levy, such hearing to be held on
November 12, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign,

[llinois.

APPROVED by the President and Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park District
this 14" day of October 2015,

APPROVED:

Timothy P. McMahon, President

ATTEST:

Cindy Harvey, Secretary



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director
DATE: October 7, 2015

SUBJECT: Agreement with Champaign Telephone for Fiber Utility

Backaground
In 2012 the Champaign Park District installed fiber into nine facilities as part of the UC2B fiber

that was introduced to our community at that time. The fiber has been an asset to the District
allowing for faster speeds on the District’s internal network as well as accessing the internet.

The District has created a Virtual Local Area Network (VLAN) which provides the ability to give
network access in most of the District's facilities, it also eliminates several phone lines as the
District now routes the phone lines over the fiber.

As a way of cutting fiber costs, the Capital Budget includes the expenses necessary to extend
fiber lines from Leonhard Center to Sholem Pool, the filter building and Prairie Farms. In
addition, it includes extending fiber from the Douglass Center to the Douglass Annex. This will
eliminate the monthly cost for two facilities per month.

The proposed agreement includes deletion of those two facilities as well as an increase in
connection speed from the Bresnan Center to the Leonhard Center to allow for faster offsite
backup of District servers. This proposed agreement also includes the addition of a public Wi-
Fi, which will allow the District to offer free Wi-Fi in its facilities without causing security issues
with the internal network. The changes proposed will allow the District to cut fiber costs by
approximately $350.00 per month.

Champaign Telephone is currently the only carrier in the Champaign area to allow a VLAN
through the fiber. The District network is set up using a point to point VLAN that allows each
building to connect directly to Bresnan where the servers are located. This allows the District to
have one location where there is an internet connection and other facilities do not need the
internet to connect back to the main servers. This provides the security necessary for a network
that covers multiple locations.

The agreement has been reviewed by legal counsel.
Prior Board Action

The Board reviewed and approved an agreement with Champaign telephone for fiber utility on
August 8, 2012. The contract would be retroactively effective on October 1, 2015.

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Budget Impact
The cost for the agreement is $4,133.33 per month or $49,599.96 annually. Due to the

proposed changes to the agreement this will create a savings of approximately $4,300.00
annually from the previous agreement.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement between the Park District and Champaign
Telephone Company for fiber services at a cost of $4,133.33 per month or $49,599.96 annually,
and authorize the Executive Director to execute the Agreement conditioned upon conclusion
and approval by legal counsel.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Tammy V. Hoggatt, SPHR Joe Del.uce, CPRP
Director of HR, IT and Risk Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



Master Services Agreement — Network Services

This Master Service Agreement (“Agreement”™), dated-dated and effective as of August-3 L2015, 1s
made by and between Champaign Telephone Company, Inc,, with effiees-a principal address oflecated-at 1300 S. Neil
Street, Champaign, Hineis-1L 61820 (“ProviderCTC™), and the Champaign Park District, with a principal effiees-
loeatedataddress of 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, H-1L 61821 (*Customer™).

In consideration of the mutual promises, mutual-covenants, and agreements contained herein, the receipt and
sufficiency of —which are hereby acknowledged, PreviderCTC and Customer agree as follows:

1.  Glossary of Terms

1.1, “CTC” *champaigntelephone-Companyrtnes~and any of its affiliates or subsidiaries shall otherwise
be collectively referred Lo herein and {aka-SPOE)-Collectively—ETE"-shall mean "Champaign.
Telephone Company, Ing,” theproviderofserviees:

1.2, “Customer” shall mean the-individual-or-company-tepresentative-aceepting-the-terms-olf this-agreement-
through-signature-of the-aeceptance-form-attached-eithervia-paper-copy-or-electroniec-FAX-eopylhe.
Champaign Park District.

1.3, "Website" means the CTC website currently located at hitp://cte.biz

L4, "working day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday-in-the-United-States.

1.5, “CTC-Connect Hosted PBX™ means the assembly of retail products and serviees utilizing physical transport
components (WAN), and feature functionality that provide a robust and complete delivery of voice services
over Internet Protocol (VolP) through Customer network structures (LAN) from a centralized virtual PBX
platform, owned and managed by Champaign Telephone Company.

2. Obligations of CTC

2.1, CTC-Cenneet shall provide the agreed upon services; to Customer in accordance with the terms hercol
this-Agreementand—and subject to_the service delivery schedules set forth herein.

2.2. CTC shall implement, perform -and support network service twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per.
week, three hundred sixty-five (365) davs per year.en-a-7-x-24-x-365-day-schedule:

2.3, CTC shall install and continue to maintain all associated services for the agreed-upen-contractermicrm_
hereof, and thereafter. on a monthly basis until then-menth—te-meonth-untila written notice of termination is
provided by the Customer according to the terms hereof.

2.4, All service related mattersissues may be reported to CTC by telephone call toealling 217-344-4444, twenty-four
(24-) hours per day, three hundred sixty-five (365) days a-per year,_

2.5, Crecannot-promise-thatthe Sepvices will be ervar-free omwithoutinterrupton-Our Servieesmay-be— |
dependent-on-servicesprovided-orprovisioned-o-Coastomeror CFC by-third parby-telecommunications-or-
network-service-providers-CFC-is-notresponsible-to-Customer-for-any-fanlb-or-interruphionscaused-by—
third-party-serviee-providers:CTC shall endeavor to make sure that its services will be free of error or
interruption. However, {o the extent services are dependent upon third-party telecommunications or
network service providers, CTC shall not be responsible for any errors, omissions or interruptions caused
by or as a result of errors or omissions of such third-parties.

2.6. Adbiformationrelating-to-Customeras-colleeted-by-CTC-in-the course-of providing the Sepvices shall-
remain-eonfidential CTC shall keep confidential all information related to Customer during the course
of providing the services set forth herein and afier termination of this Agreement.

2.7, Maintenanee ol Customerequipment-and-any-costassockued-with-medifving-and/orreprogramming—
Customer sequipment-to-ake-iteompatible-with-Champaign-lelephone Company services s solely-the-

mmmrhﬂmﬁ(‘wwﬁmm('uqlomu shall be responsible for maintenance of its equipment, and any costs

associated with modifving and/or reprograming such equipment to make it compatible with CTC’s

services are the sole responsibility of Customer,

3. Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) and Service Level Agreement (SLA)

3.1. Customer or its users may not use Ehampaiga-Telephone-CompanyCTC s network or services to engage in,
foster, or promote illegal, abusive, or irresponsible behavior, A full deseription of the Acceptable Use Policy
and Service Level Agreement is posted on the CTC web site at: http://cte.biz/acceptable-use- poliey and
http://ete biz/service-level-agreement,

3.2. YeurCustomer's services may be suspended or terminated for violation of Hhis-the AUP only as

1




4,

tn

specifically provided for in this Master Services Agreement or the AUP, and no other documents.
term, postings. addenda, exhibits of any kind or characier whatsoever, in-aceerdance-with-vourltnternet
serviees-npreement-with-Champaign-Felephone-Company-(&Te)

Serviee-Entrance-Grant-of- Utility-Ensement Execution of Agreement

4+l—Execution ol this Master Services Agreement by both Parties shall be concurrent with the Aeeeptance-and-
exeeution-ofthe SepdeeAetivatonFormPricing Addendum Service Activation Form of CTC. Execution of
the Pricing Addendum Service Activation Form shall commence the term of this Master Services Agreement.
initiate FHIS- W EHFIY-BASEMENT-by-and—between-Champaiga-Park- Distriet, 706- Kenwoad Road-
Champaign-H-61821 -hereinafiercalled-the- Grantor—and-Champaizn-Telephone-Company-(for HE2B)-a-
State-of-Hlinois-Corporationvhich-has-it-prineipab—place-eFbusiness-ab-300-5-Neil- Champaign- County-
o Champaipn-H-61820hereinrelerred-o-asthe—Grantee.

A2 WERNESSEH E—ThatHfor-and-in-consideration-of-the-sum-o FONE-DOLEAR (5 1.00)-and-other good-and —
mm%eowdemmm—ﬂie—me%&m}-%mm HiFM-thmh&neMmMedged—lhe&&Mthembﬁh
prants-upto-the-Grantee-ils-suceessors sigirs etual-uttlity-casement-lor-placement-of—
Mlﬂb&{%ﬂ%%%&mmwmﬁwmﬁﬂmd{ﬁ%wmwmm—
authoribato-install-construct-operate-maintain - repair-replace-and-reconsteruetsaid-utiliiesas-Grantec may-—

deem-necessary-over-aeross-through-in-and-under-thaleerain-parecls-oHand-deseribed situstedying—wd-
sttuated-atservicsaddresses-included-inhis-contraet:

.

PN INES S WHEREQF-GRANTOR-has-cavsed-this-UHilit
er-or-responsible- par%y—awgaed-bwwmn—ﬂm&ﬁmeiﬁ%&mum
i Services-Aareement

sighature-ofproperty-own
FORM—attached-to-this-Mast

Term of Agreement

5.1, The term of this agreement 5haI[ bc n‘& ¢ (3) years at the rates set forth on the Champaign Telephone Company

Pricing Addendum 8 attached hercto. made a part hereof, and incorporated by reference
herein, #
A b—3-Year
5.2, After the expiration of the three (3) year term set forth in Section 5.1 of this Agreement: provided that this
Agreement has not been otherwise extended. amended or replaced ('.fl.lh amer sl ul ay the Mﬁmh—l&

Menthmonthly rates then currently in effect at the end of the three (3
be subject to change upon such terms as CTC and Customer shall Iurtllcr H]

em%wmwmwm%etﬂmmwmmw
end-of selected term. The-month-to-menth-rate-ts-subject—to-chanpe:

Unless either Party pives written notice to the other al least forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration o
service term of its intent 1o cancel service as of the expiration of the term. then this Agreement shall

continue in effect on a monthly basis as sel forth in section 5.2, Thereafier, either Party shall provide thirty
(30) days written notice of any cancellation of service,

5:2.5.4.  The Parties may mutually agree in writing to terminate this Agreement at any time prior to the

cmmmmn of the term.

MAC Address and IP space allocation

6.1 Each location al which services are to be provided by CTC includes 8 MAC (media access control) addresses;
provided that, additional addresses are available at an—additional charges as shall be reasonably agreed b
CTC and Customer.

6.2 Each location includes a /29 of IP space (5 usable addresses) included in the base-contract price identified in the
Pricing Addendum Service Activation Form. Additional 1P space #s-shall be made available to Customer at
ansuch additional fees as CTC and Customer shall agree. In the event that Cust requires H-more than a
129 is-space allocationsnecessary, CTC shall provide an IP justification form must-be—for completed-by-the-
Customer_to complete._Such form shall not be utilized by CTC to limit or in any manner whatsoever impair

Customer’s services

7

Billing and Payment

7.1.  Customer ghall pay for the is-respensiblefor-paymentolallchargesforservices furnished-provided by
CTC at the rates specified or referenced in the_body of this Agreement or any Pricing Addendum Service
Activation Form which may be attached hereto, made a part hereol and incorporated by reference herein,
phs-together withall applicable federal, state-and-oeal-sales; use, and excise taxes, and other assessments

2




imposed-by-govermment-ageneies, except 1o the extent Customer is exempt therefrom. in-connection-with-
CTsprovision-olservicesto—Cuslomer

7.2, CTC shall bill Customer on the day of each month-menthly for the services provided:: with-with-_
recurring charges being-shall be billed in advance, and any usage charges being billed in arrears. ALETEs:
eptien-The payment of any nonrecurring charges, such as those for serviee-establishment, installation,
special construction, or the like and-similar-eharges-may be required 1o be paid in advance of the provision of
such services.

7.3, HIn the evenl Customer's payment of all-charges for services provided bitled-is not received in full by CTC
within thirty (30) calendar days efaller the date the bill is mailed. which shall be deemed the -("due date"),
Customer's payment may be considereddeemed delinquent-at by CTC, In such evenl, ‘s-sele-diseretionand
Customer shall thereafier-be liable for a daily late payment fee- of .0417% of the outstanding amount due
calculated from the due date: provided that the minimum late fee shall be $5.00 per month. —SubjeetHto-a-

Paily=00H7% e rom-Pale-oHveice—Fhe- Minimum-bate Feeis-$5:00:

8. Discontinuation of Service
8.1.  In the event Customer's bilkpayment of its outstanding charges is delinquent, CTC sitk-shall provide
Customer with a writlen notice ten (10) business days in advace-advaneed—notiee of the discontinuance ol
service, belore-nitiating-disconnection-procedures: Service may be discontinued during—on business days

heuwrs-and-en-business-days-on or after the date specified in the notice of discontinuance if Customer
continues to be delinquent in the payment of'its outstanding charges. Upon-Custormner's-payment-ofat-

mmmndmﬂ—ehmgefr ‘m pavmen{ of zm) dt,lmqm.nl amount, CTC shall promptly reinstate services to

mhﬂ»maaau—hewmpwmwwhhgawd lmemsmm&mﬁweemﬂe%&mmm
all breaches-and-furnished-CTEwith—assuranee-of-timely-pavmentof-Hiuture-charges:

9. Disputed Charges

9.1, Inorder o dispute any charges, Hiless Customer shall |>roviclc~. CTC with written notice eFthereof disputed-
eharges-within twenty-twatwenty (2220) days after receipt of the invoice date-ef-the-bil-inupon which such
charges originally appem—bueh—hﬂl—shﬂll—hﬂamdﬂﬂ—mﬂ-h}-{-mmw Customer shall not be required to
remit payment for the-disputed ameuntcharges during-thein disputeperiod, nor shall any late charges apply
to any disputed amount until resolution thereol-efthe-dispute: However, the undisputed portion of the bill
must be_paid when due, paid-within-fiteen-(15)- d&yﬁ%}&dn&dﬁ%n—l—h&@mtememe%ﬂm%b&
subjeet-to-disconnection-Customer shall direct its communicalions regarding dispuled charges Lomay-

eentaet CTC Customer Care by dialing-clephone call to 217-344-4444 or email us-at: billing@cte.biz,

10— EnsivTosminstipnetServt
H0L 1 Service fumished-byv-CHEshatbhe-provided-for-thedterm-specificd-in-this-Agreement-ab the-time-the seevice-
is-ordered-Such-term-shall-commence-on-the-service-nctivation-date H-priorto-the-expiration-of-the-term—
Customerwishesto-lerminate-itsservice fn-itrentirely—Custamer shatbnotif-CTC nwriting 4.5 days prior
to-earhy-termination-and-shall-be-Hable-for-an-tarb-Fermination-Charge-as-set-forth-below:
A2 EBarh=Termination-charges:
s 100%-of amy-nen-recurring-charges-or-discounts-thab-were-previously-waived—redueed-or
s J00%-oF the Customers-eurrent-monthiy-charges-nmtiplicd-by-the-number-ofmonths:
remaining-in-thetepm-ol-he-Apreements

dl—Service-Ferm
HED.2, FhisAgreementis-binding-and-eHective-upon-signature-by-Customer;-however—the-service-term-
commences—upon-netivation-ol Customers-service-Unless-either-party-giveswritten-noticeto-the-other-at-
least-thirh- (5 —days-prierte-the-expirttion-of the-serviee-tepm-o L its-intentlo-cancelserviee-as-ai-the-
expiration of the servieeterm-then-this- Agreement shatl-continte-inHoree-on--month-to-menth-basis-at-
EFsthencurrem—month-lo-month-retailrales,

42.10. Taxes, Directory Listings, DID fees and Surcharges
42:1:10,1,  Taxes, fees, directory listings, Dircet Inward Dial (*DID™) numbers, and other similar charges that
are assessed by CTC or Ionai, stalu and federal pavernment-agencies regarding-en Customer purchases in
connection with EFCs servieelhis Agreement, plus the amount that the-CempanyCTC is
permitted by the Federal Communrtﬂllom Commission ("FCC") to bithte-thecharge Customer to-eaverfor
federal Universal Service Fund contributions and other assessments imposed by the FCC in connection with

3



the-Company's-provision-ol-the-seevicesthis Agreement, are exelusive-fromin addition to the rates indicated
inthis-Agreementherein, and shall be passed-on-topaid by Customer as applicable.

13.11. Service Suspension/Maintenance
13-=11.1. From time to time Ehampaign-Telephone-CompanyCTC will perform maintenance on its network

during the standard maintenance swindew-timelrame of Midnight to 4:00 AM. central time any day of the
week. In addition, CTC Champaiza-Felephone-Company-may need to perform unscheduled network
maintenance al outside-the-standard-maintenaneewindewolher times that may result in a-briefservice
interruplions. Champaign-Felephone CTC will make all reasonable effortattermpt to gi\'ep_g_j_d__
Customers at least twenty-four (24) hours advance notification of such service interruptions in writing,
via electronic communication, and telephone call wheneverreasonable-and-possible:

1412, Limitations of CHAMPAIGN-FELEPHONE-COMPANY.CTC Liability

THE LIABILITY OF CTC AND ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY
LOSS, INJURY TO PERSON, OR PROPERTY, LIABILITY, DAMAGE, OR OTHER HARM OF ANY
NATURE THAT IS DUE TOTHE RESULT OF ANY OUTAGE, FAILURL, INADEQUACY, MISTAKE,
NEGLIGENCE, OMISSION, INTERRUPTION, DELAY, LACK OF SUITABILITY FOR CUSTOMER'S
PURPOSES, OR OTHER DEFECT IN CTC'S PROVISION OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES, OR
TRANSMISSIONS OR ATTEMPTED TRANSMISSIONS OVER-CONCERNING SUCH SERVICES OR
FACILITIES SHALL NOT EXCEED AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE PROPORTIONATE CHARGES FOR
THE PERIOD DURING WHICH SUCH OUTAGE, FAILURE, INADEQUACY, MISTAKE, NEGLIGENCE,
OMISSION, INTERRUPTION, DELAY, OR OTHER DEFECT-OCCURRED, IRRESPECTIVE OF THE

CAUSE THEREOF; PROVIDED THAT, NOTHING HEREIN SHALL LIMIT OR BE CONSTRUED AS

LIMITING ANY LIAIBLITY EITHER ARISING OUT OF CTC’S BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, FRADULANT MISCONDUCT, OR VIOLATIONS
OF LAW. WHETHER SUCH LIABILITY IS DUE-FO-BEACH-OF-CONTRACT—ACTIVE-OR-PASSIVE-

NEGLIGENCE, ORANY-OTHER-ACT OR FAILURETOACT BY-CTCORITSEMPLOYEES-OR-
AGENTS:

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IN NO EVENT SHALL CTC OR ITS EMPLOYEES OR

AGENTS BE LIABILE FOR ANY OUTAGE, FAILURE, INADE :

OMISSION, INTERRUPTION, DELAY, OR OTHER DEFECT CAUSED BY CUSTOMER OR BY
FACILTIES, SERVICES, OR EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER, OTHER COMMUNICATIONS
CARRIERS ()ll ANY oT Hl- R THIRD I"All'l‘\’ CTC ANDITS I:.MI’LOYFH OR AGENTS SlIALL NOT

INCLUDING WlTHDU’I LlMI’l ATION, LOST REVENU[‘.S OR PROFITS INCURRFD BY Cli‘i'] OMER

AS A RESULT OF THIS AGREEMENT. CTC SHALL REMAIN LIABILE FOR ITS OWN ERRORS AND
OMISSIONS OF ANY CHARACTER WHATSOEVER RELATED TO THE CLAIMS OF THIRD PARTIES.
HESUCH-ERROR-OR-OMISSION-IS- CAUSERD-BY-TFHE-GROSSNEGHIGENCE- O CTC LIABILFTY -
SHALL-BE-LIVHFED-FO-AN-AMOUNT LQUALTFO-FTHEPROPORTIONATE-CHARGES FOR-THE -
SERVICEFORTHAT-PERIODAND-PROVIDED FTHAT NOTHNG HEREIN SHALL LIMIT-OR-BE—
CONSTRUED-AS EIVH NG ANY-EIABHHY-EFFHERARISING OUT-OF-GCFCS AWM
MISCONPUCT ERAUDULENT-MISCONPUCT-ORVIOEATIONS OF LAW-OR-TFO-THE-EXFENTBUT—

ONLA-FOTHE-ENTENT-SUCH- LIABHFY- IS UNEAWEBL-OR-OTHERWS E-UNENFORGEABEE-AS-
CONTRARY-TOPUBLICPOLICY:

THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY SHALL SURVIVE ANY CANCELLATION OR
TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

13. Audit
13.1. Each Party shall maintain complete and accurate records of its activitics under this Agreement for at lcast

three (3) years following termination of this Aereement, Fach l’m'l\' shall allow the other Parly, upon at
least forty-cight (48) hours prior written notice, to audit such Party’s business records specifically relating.
1o llll‘i Agu.cmuﬂ as I\Lm u\ thg m__{ll course 0! huslnms lu ensure com lmnw Wllh 1lm it.um imd

lhh A n.clm.nl HUL]] Part \Imll |mmulmlcl IJmeL co mp__g,l_ll_gmd mmb l"\Cth‘ nthcr Party for any
unpaid amounts due and, il the non-compliance is or was material, the reasonable cost of the audit._In the
evenl 1!11\1 the audit reveals that a Party owes the other Party money. whether or not such amounts were

properly billed at the time the services were billed, the owing Party shall reimburse the other Parly for any
4




amounts due. All audits shall be conducted durin

Parly may conduct an audit not more than once per calendar vear. The Parlies shall take all necessary

action (for example, disabling passwords) to ensure that any former unnkwu.:- and/or contractors do not

access or use the services provided under this Agreement,

14. Issue Management

14.1. The Parties shall provide all necessary information to each other in order to facilitate the carly

identilication and timely resolution of issues related to the services performed hereunder. When an issue
cannot be resolved within a reasonable time, the Parties shall determine an appropriate mechanism and

procedure for resolving such issues. The issue management process may result in a change of the scope
of the services provided

15. Change of Services
15.1. In the event either Party wishes fo change or otherwise alter or enhance the services provided hereunder

that will impact the performance or delivery of the services or costs associaled therewith, such Party
shall submit to the other Party a written document detailing the proposed change, No change shall take
effect unless anrt.ul upon in writing by both Parties. The Parties shall address and nepotiate the

proposed chang: vod Taith, Neither Party shall have any obligation wnh respect Io a change undu

approval of a service change,

16. Third Party Intellectual Property

16.1. The Parties acknow hat the services provided under this J
by third party licensors. The respective Parties use of such third party malmah in_connection with the

services provided hereunder shall be governed by the terms of wndnmus and/or end user hcmsmg
agreements for the corresponding materials. The Parties acknowle 15 4 it
such materials may be updated or rwmed from umc to time and any ﬁuch 11|)d1tea or chungcs qhﬂll bc

applicable to lhe Parlies to th

iIOdl.ICt‘\ or services: (¢) reverse engineer, Qcmmpl]e. dl‘iﬂS‘.bﬂ]b!L, dcc ip er. decrypl, or
'mkl is uobm n th;, source code of an si (d) modify, adapt

e) remove or obscure any pi s!nllctﬂl’x Qr Olht.l
sors contained in any such materials: (1) publicly disseminate information

u.garr.llng the performance of such third party materials; (g) use the name, trademarks. or logos of the
iy licensors of such materials: or (h) commit any act or omission with respect to such materials

that could result in damage to either of the other Parties.

15.17. l"owaaJcml:
15417, i

;[[ Qul |||!1ll1t|on, %mm%m&%mmmmm
nted-or-delayed-by-an-acts of; God, the public enemy. major equipment failures,
ulablhw o ubmm materials or services. wars, sieb-Hire-explosions, accidents, riots. strikes. civil
commaotion. fires, pestilence, natural catastrophes or disasters, economic fluctuations. non-availability of

electric power, or legal or government demands. requirements, laws. or regulations. laws-erany-other—
eause-beyend-the-reasenable-contrel-oFETE._In the event of such failure or delay, the date of delivery or

per formance shall be c\:icndcd not to e\cced the duration of the failure or delav; provided that, the Party
: 151 .

nahlc cﬂ‘urls o mitigale or eliminate the ca 13‘. ol such

effect nnis ormance

16:18. Assignment

Ho-k18.1.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party without the prior written approval of the other;
provided that, such approval shall not be unreagsonably withheld in the event of a transfer in (i
transaction involving a change in control of a Party hereto. or (ii) sale or other disposition of all or

5




substantial “1he assels i ' ir ' related to this

Agreement. This Agreement shall be bln(llng upon ‘md inure to the benefit of the Parties and their.

respeclive represenlatives, successors and permitted assigns eﬁeﬂplwmhe-wmm-eenﬁmt—ef-
CHowhich-may-be-pranted—omwithheld- st C1C s sele-diseretion:

19. Non-Waiver

19.1. Failure

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, m\funnt or condition: nor shall failure {o insist upon strict
compliance with any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of any

such term. covenant, condition, right or power at any other time or times.

20. Default
In the event either Party [ails (o comply the terms of this Agreement, then the non-defaulting Party shall

have the right 1o enforce this Agreement according Lo its terms by oblaining any remedy available to it

under law or equity in the state of Hlinois.

FE1l. GoeverningLawApplicable Law and Venue

21,1, The Parties agree that, notwithstanding any other terms or agreements, the laws of the state o

llimun shall govern the terms of this cvent of any claim or lawsuil regarding this
ign County. Illinois shall be the appropriate venue for such claim or suit. CTC and
Customer blld" comply with all applicable federal. state. and local laws. rules. regulations, ordinances, and

licenses regarding the performance and carrying out of the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, to the
extent that during the term of this Agreement, any term, provision. or condilion hf..rmfglmll hcmme or be

val or unmforcmb[e under [nw lhc Parti

22. Representations of CTC

22.1. CTC represents and warrants that it has the skills and knowledpe necessary to perform the terms of this
Agreement in a proper, workmanlike, efficient. thorough. and satisfactory manner. and it understands that
Customer is relving on such representation in contracting for the services set forth herein,

23. Insurance and Indemnification

23.1. The CTC shall maintain in elTect at its sole expense the following insurance applicable to the work
performed hereunder:
(a)  Warker's CQI‘I][)L[“&MIGI) insurance as required by law:
(by  Employers liability insurance: $1.000.000 per occurrence. and

(c)  General llilhlllt\' insurance, including bodily injury and property damage: $2.000.000 bodily injury .

and $2.000,000 property (ldmi\gc

. CTC shall

shall not be cancelled or amended without ten (10) days written notice having been given to Customer.
Customer shall have the right to maintain or reinstate such coverage and CTC shall pay or permit an oflsel
against charges for the cost thereof,

23.3. CTC shall indemnify and hold harmless Customer and its commissioners. officers. employees. agents.

nd representatives from and a ﬂinst all claims, damages. losses and expenses, including but not

performance of CTC’s work, provided that any ,qugh claim, damage, loss or u\ncn:.u ( :) is dilubmah]e Lo
a 3

bodily injury, sickness. disease or death, or injury to or destruction o
of use therefrom. and (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any wrongful or negligent acl or omission of
CTC, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anvone for whose acls

any of them may be liable. except to the extent it is caused in naul by a Parly mdemmred Iu,n.undx.r Such
obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwis f

indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any Party or person described herein




24, Independent Contractors
24.1. Notwﬂlminnclm any o

oIS lies, or of their
. In addition, CT Q may j'm m lime to time hire

and any such person shall not be construed (o be an

employee, agent, or representative of, or contractor with, Customer in any manner \vlmlsocver

Furthermore, CTC does hercby acknowledge its obligations and shall r

ofall withholdings, insurance. or other amounts as may be required by law in mﬂmclmn with |H hiring or
contracting with any person, and shall in all respects  hi ess T ‘ it fort

pavment of any such amounts

25. Severability
25,1, In the event one or more of the terms, provisions. or conditions contained in this Agreement shall be

determined by a courl of law, having appropriate jurisdiction, to be invalid, illegal. or unenforceable in any
respect, such provision shall be deemed severed from this agsreement and the validity, legality

enforecability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement or any other application thereof shall not be

affected or impaired thereby. and shall remain in full force and effect.

26. Section Headings
26.1. Headings are for convenience of the Parties only and are not to be deemed p 1is Agreement,

27. Rules of Construction
271, In the event of a conllict hclwu.u any terms of this Agreement and any amendment, dlld(.l]'lrler.l[, .|ddcm:|um.

ificati re 'lu.d cnncurrenll ‘o ﬂddl‘t.‘i‘% 1h

deemed to be and construed as glmllg{l by CTC.

28. Amendment
28.1. This Agreement, and any amendments. attachments, ad

may only be modified or amended by a further written document executed by authorized representatives of

both Parties.

29. No Thir (I F‘th\' Beneficiary

strued Lo ereate any duly or
This Agreement does not provide any third

G 3
party with any rlghl prmlegc, remedy, claim, or cause of‘acl:on against CTC or Customer. or any of their

respective affiliates, commissioners, directors, officers, employ nts, represenlatives, or contraclors,

writing. tgdgf tion, any such nnhcc sha!l bl.. sent by ﬁn, { glm;, ;cgul;jr [1 S ,mgll to;

Champaign Park District Champaign Telephone Company
Attention: Executive Director Altention: President

706 kenwood Road 1300 S. Neil Street

Champaign, Il 61821 _Champaign. 1L, 61820

31. Counterparts

Sl 'I‘hi‘a

s least one (1) counterpart is executed
/. or other electronic

g

orm of

any ;-:iglmlurc shall have the same forcc and effect as an original.

32. Authority to Execute Agreement




18:33. Entire Agreement

481331, This Agreement and any amendment, attachment, addendum, exhibit. or specilication attached hereto
or otherwise referred to herein constitute the entire Agreement between the Partics m.rimmnf., o HIL mbu.cl

matter hereol and supersede all prior contemporancous ¢
written in connection herewith —M&MH—QG%MMWHEHHWMWr

Torinterstate-and—internationaHelecomnumicationsservices-as-may-be-med ifed-and-published by C1C-
fron-limedo-time-and—allapplicable-tuils-constitute-the-entire-Agreement-between-Customer-and-CHE-

concerning-the subject-matter-hercolond-supersede-nn-prioragreements-understandines—representations-
oFproposils-This—Agreementmay-notbe-amended-in-ameway-exeept-by-writing execuled-by-both-parties-

oras-explicithy—provided-herein.
Febth—tn-eonsideration-oHhe-mutual-agrecments-contained-herein-CHAMPATGN-TEREEPHONE-COMPANY-—-

GHQ*M&@HHMMMWMIMWMWWMwWW
“Apreementineludes-the CFC-Service-Aetivation-FermPricing Addendum Service Activation Form-
memmgmmha*ﬁm@hmmwnmpmmMHMpanmm%&gMMHWm

t‘m—\%e—Ael-waHeﬂ—lﬂalm

2634, Execution
34.1. The partics intending to be legally bound have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly
authorized representatives.

Champaign Telephone Company, Ine. Champaign Park District,_a municipal corporation

By: By:

Joseph Deluce, Executive Director

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




CHAMPAIGN TELEFPHONE COMPANY PRICING ADDENDUM SERVICE
ACTIVATION FORM

Note: Billing will commence upen date of service delivery at each location
Altached to and made a part of the MEFRO-ETHERMET-INTERNEIMASTER SERVICES AGR EEMENT —

NETWORK SERVICES between Champaign Telephone Company, (“CTC™ or “Provider” and Champaign Park
District (“Customer™).

Locations, provisioned services and monthly rates:

*Bresnan Center, 706 Kenwood Road, 500 Mb Port $399.00
Bresnan 200 Mb for public wi-fi $150.00
Bresnan Center, 706 Kenwood Road, 100 Mb Internet $750.00
¥Leonhard Center, 2307 Sangamon, 500 Mb Port $399.00
Hays Center, 1311 W, Church, 100 Mb Port $375.00
Douglass Center, 512 E. Grove, 100 Mb Port $375.00
Springer Center, 301 N, Randolph, 100 Mb Port $375.00
Tennis Center, 2802 Farber Drive, 100 Mb Port $375.00
Virginia Theater, 203 W. Park, 100 Mb Port $375.00
Voice Services per attached proposal $560.33

#3500 Mb intended for after-hours off-site back-up

Total Monthly Recurring Service Fees: $4,133.33

BILLING INFORMATION:

Contact: Tammy Hoggatt Customer
Name: _ Champaign Park District
Address: 706 Kenwood Road

Champaign, 1161821
Phone Number: 217-398-2550

ARPROVED and EXECUTED for-estimated SERVICEACTIVATIONE fective as of the 45 day of October, 2015,

Champaign Telephone Company. Inc. Champaign Park District. a municipal corporation
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe Deluce, Executive Director, MS, CPRP
DATE: October 5, 2015

SUBJECT:  Approval of Agreement with Challenger Sports, Inc.

Background

Over the past 12 years, the Champaign Park District has successfully partnered with Challenger
Sports, Inc. (Challenger) to execute the Challenger British Soccer Camp. During that time the
camps have provided opportunities for numerous youth in our community to receive a high level
camp experience.

Challenger provides the District with trained and qualified instructors for the camps and all
necessary equipment including balls, t-shirts, participant jerseys, etc. Additionally as part of the
contract the Champaign Park District purchases soccer uniforms from Challenger at a
significant discount over the retail price.

Our business relationship with Challenge Sports is strong, and they have always been
professional and positive in their interactions with us and our community. All insurance liability
requirements have been met, and they adhere to all Champaign Park District policies and
procedures.

Summary of Changes from Previous Agreement

The only substantive changes for the proposed agreement are:
e Update on pricing for camp fees and garments.
e Added set pricing for equipment: balls, cones, scrimmage vests. Previously not included.

Prior Board Action
Board approved a three-year agreement with Challenger Sports, Inc. at the October 10, 2012
Regular Board meeting. This Agreement expired August 31, 2015,

Budget Impact

The majority of the costs for the soccer camps including instructors, equipment, participant
shirts, etc. is borne by Challenger. The only expense for the Park District is site staff. The
program costs us little to run, allows us to provide an excellent service to residents, and
consistently brings in a profit. Because the program is run as a ‘split’ (the exact percentage
varies from class to class based upon age group, recreational half day vs competitive half day,
full day, etc.) barring extremely low registration the Park District always stands to make a profit.
Please see table:

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



# Campers CPD Revenue®

2012 Juns 139 $1,252 *Please note program revenue
2012 July 109 $795 numbers are very close, but not
2013 June 100 $1,121 exacl due to coordinator

2013 July 74 $757 scholarships, refunds, etc.
2014 June 107 $675

2015 June 150 $1,431

2015 July 75 $829

Part of the agreement calls on the Park District to buy the Youth Soccer League jerseys, shorts,
socks from Challenger. The quantity of jerseys and the term of the contract enables Challenger
to provide the Park District a significant discount on pricing far below the retail rate. Challenger
jerseys also come in a large number of colors—important to the Park District program
requirements and something most manufacturers cannot accommodate. Having a stable jersey
improves our program by creating a program identity.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends Board approval of the Agreement between the Park District and Challenger
Sports, Inc. for youth summer soccer camp and garments for a three year period and to
authorize the Executive Director to execute said contract. This agreement will allow the Park
District to continue to offer a high quality, successful and popular summer camp for youth
soccer enthusiasts while securing an extended commitment from Challenger and fee increase
caps for both camp fees as well as the necessary garments associated with the camp.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Tony Oligney-Estill, MS, CPRP Jameel Jones
Sports Manager Director of Recreation

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



AGREEMENT FOR
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into effective this ___ day of __, 2042-2015 by the
CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, an lllinois municipal corporation, with the principal address of 706 Kenwaod
Road, Champaign, lllinois 61821 (hereinafter referred to as “PARK DISTRICT") and BRITISH SOCCER, a
division of Challenger Sports Corporation, whose principal address is 8263 Flint, Lenexa, KS 66214 (hereinafter
refarred {o as "BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER")

RECITALS
WHEREAS, PARK DISTRICT is a municipal corporalion which ewns Dodd's Park Soccer Complex;

WHEREAS, BRITISH-S0CCERCHALLENGER is an organization experienced in and possessing equipment
used to teach soccer rules and fundamentals to children; and

WHEREAS, PARK DISRICT and BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER desire to enter into a contract wheraby
BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER will provide services to PARK DISTRICT as an independent contraclor to
provide trained and qualified instructor(s) to teach youth soccer camps to children registered through the
Champaign Park District.

NOW, THEREFORE, and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and agreements herein set forth,
PARK DISTRICT and BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER agree as follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall provide PARK DISTRICT with
trained and qualified instructor(s), equipment and related services. The contractor shall at all times
have sole control over the manner, means and methods of performing the services required by the
contract according to their own independent judament, and is solely responsible for the direction of their
employees and agents. The contractor acknowledges and agrees that they will devole such lime as is
necessary to produce the contract for results.

The services to be provided by BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall include, without limitation, the
fallowing:

Provide trained and qualified instructor(s) for each camp session.

Provide all equipment necessary for the soccer camp.

Provide promotional literalure, posters, and operational and marketing support,

Provide a soccer ball and t-shirt to each camper who registers.

Serve as the vendor for the Champaign Park Disltrict's seasonal purchase(s) of Challenger jerseys

per the terms laid out in Sections 5 and 6.

Provide all host families a rebate of at least $80 towards the cost of their camp fees.

At all times deal with Park District customers and patrons in a professional and courteous manner.

Exercise appropriate goad judgment in dealing with Park District safaty matters, including, without

limitation, adherence fo Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations and

other pertinent federal and state laws and regulations,

i. Provide at least one qualified coach for each coaching group (12-16) campers,

j.  Each camp shall include five daily sessions Monday through Friday or other as specified. Sessions
shall run for one hour, one and a half hours, three hours, or six hours. Sessiens-shall-run-for-three
hours-and-gix-hours.:

k. Ensure that all coaches are certified and have completed background checks.

I.  Register participants and collect fees.

pooow

—-

=)

The services to be provided by PARK DISTRICT shall include, without limitation, the following:

a. Provide Brilish-SeceerChallenger such facilities and support staff as may be necessary for it to carry
out its responsibilities hereunder.




b. Responsible for administration of camp applications and ensuring that an approximately equal
number of campers are scheduled to each half-day session.

¢ Provide the number of camper registrations fourteen days prior to camp. (The number of coaches
assigned will be based on this number). Additional campers may be enrolled after this date subjecl
to availabilily of coachas.

d. Salicit host families in the communily to house Brilish-SoccerChallenger coaching staff for the
duration of the camp.

e. Provide a site supervisor during camp sessions.

. Promote camp in the Park District’'s Funfermation-Program Brochure, website, and through the e-
mail listsarv.

g—Register-parlicipants-and colleetHHaes:

I.¢1, Shall not solicit the services of any member of the BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER coaching staff
for employment independent of BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER during the term of the
agreement.

PARK DISTRICT agrees thal it will not solicit the services of any member of the BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER coaching staff for employment independent of BRITISH

SOCCERCHALLENGER.
2. TIMING OF PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall offer instruction
for the following soccer camps:
Camp Weeks 20432016 Camp Weaks 20442017 Camp W 2018
June 40-146-10 June (Dates to be TBD) June {Dales te be TBD)
July 22-2618-22 July (Dates to be TBD) July (Dates o be TBD)

3. WORK LOCATION. All work performed by BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER hereunder shall take
place in the PARK DISTRICT’s Dodds Park Soccer Complex, Bradley Avenue and Clayton
Boulevard, Champaign, lllinois. If the Dodds Park Soccer Complex is unavailable for any reason,
PARK DISTRICT shall provide an ouldoor soccer field or training area suitable for instructional
purposes. Approximate requirements, one field per 30 campers.

4, CONTROL OF WORK. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall at all times have gole control over the
manner, means and melhods of completing the work and services required by the Agreement according
to their independent judgment; provided that their conduct shall not be contrary to the Agreement
policies and procedures of PARK DISTRICT. Furthermore, they are solely responsible for the direction
of their employees or agents. BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER acknowledges that they will devote
sufficient time and effort as is necessary to carry out the terms of this Agreement in a professional
manner in order to complete the classes offered.

5. GARMENTS.
5.1 - Artwork — PARK DISTRICT must preof any and all artwork before it is printed.

5.2 - Mistakes - Any and all mistakes made by BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER are the responsibilily
of BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER. PARK DISTRICT is not required or obligated to accept or
purchase such merchandise,

5.3 - Charges - Charges for screen applications, color changes, screen wash, fluorescent ink, opaque
applications, price for XXL and larger, color separation/artwork or other charges need to be done for
each item as specified.

5.4 - Estimated Quantities — BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER understands that PARK DISTRICT may
opl nol to purchase items awarded in this agreement as a result of low, insufficient, or no enrellment in a
program or aclivity for which the item was to be used.

5.5 - Transportation Charges - No merchandise shall be shipped until it is ordered through purchase

order, by an authorized PARK DISTRICT slaff representative. PARK DISTRICT is not required to
accept merchandise shipped prior to order. All prices quoted by BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER

20153-20186 GChallenger British Soccer Camp Agreement 2|Paga



6.

must be F.O.B. to the Champaign Park District, Champaign, Illincis, with all delivery costs and charges
included in the unit prices or are excluded entirely. Items must be delivered.

5.6 - Timely Delivery - Time of delivery will ba no longer than 15 calendar days after order has been
placed, If time of delivery exceeds this slaled period, a discounl of no less than 10% will apply to said
order. PARK DISTRICT reserves the right to cancel such orders, or any part thereof, without obligation,
if delivery is not made within the time(s) specified.

5.7 - Taxes - The Champaign Park District is exempt from any taxes imposed by Slate andfor Federal
Government. Exemption cerlificates will be provided upon request.

5.8 - Modifications or Changes in Purchase Orders and Conlracls — Madifications 1o this agreement and
resultant purchase orders or contracts shall be binding upon the PARK DISTRICT unless made in
writing by an authorized representative from the PARK DISTRICT.

5.9 - Variations of Specifications = BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER must indicate any variances from
garment specifications and/or conditions, no maller how slight. If variations are not stated prior to
shipping, it will be assumed that the product or service fully complies with the specifications.

COMPENSATION. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER agrees that it will conduct and maintain an
instructional soccer camp on behalf of PARK DISTRICT. Each camp shall include five daily sessions
Monday through Friday or other as specified. Sessions shall run for one hour, one and a half hours,
three hours, and-or six hours. As consideration for these services rendered by BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER pursuant to this Agreement, PARK DISTRICT agrees to pay BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER the following camp fea rates (per session length) for 20132016:

First Kicks 1.0 hour $7480
Mini Soccer 1.5 hours $7984
Half Day 3.0 hours $404109
Full Day 6.0 hours §$161166

BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER and PARK DISTRICT agrees to an annual increase of no more than
3% per year in camp fee session rales for 2044-2017and 20452018,

As per the terms of this agreement, BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER also agrees to serve as the
PARK DISTRICT'S vendor for Challenger soccer jerseys, Pursuant lo that fact, PARK DISTRICT
agrees to pay BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER the below listed rates for a minimum of 5§00-400
garment sets per fiscal year for the duration of this contract. A garment set is defined as one (1) jersey,
one (1) pair of shorts, and one (1) pair of socks.

Colors Youth Sizes Adult Sizes
103 Pima Jersey137-Mohawk | Various $6:266.30/ea $6-766,80/ea
246-243 Palriot-Dakota Shorts | 18 Black $4.204 25/ea $4.604.65/ea
308 Premiere Socks Various $2.20/ea $2.20/ea

BRITISH- SOCCERCHALLENGER agrees 1o hold the above listed garment prices for the full term of
this contract,

Addilional equipment from CHALLENGER will be available for purchase a the following prices:

Posse Soccer Ball $4.99 Size3 4, or b
Tyronza Club Soccer Ball 56,99 Size3 4, or 5
Zuni Club Soccer Ball §7.35 Size 3 4 or 5
Tyronza Premiar Soccer Ball £8,00 Size3 4 orb
[ Pinnie (Seimmage Ves() $3.50 Por ltem
Challenger Disc Cones $0.50 Par ltem

20153-201886 Challenger Brilish Soccer Camp Agreement 3|Page



In order to be paid for the camp fee rates listed above, BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER shall submit
invoice to the PARK DISTRICT by the 1% Friday of the month. Invoice must include purchase order
number. Payment will be monthly after Board approval of bills, which is the 2™ Wednesday of each
month. The PARK DISTRICT will undertake no withholdings for taxas, social security benefits or any
other obligations of any kind or character whalsoever, as the relationship between the parties is one of
independent contractor. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall be responsible for all withhaoldings
and reporting of wagas and income to the federal and state authorities. BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER acknowledges and agrees that they are not enfifled to any benefits or
protections afforded employees of PARK DISTRICT. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall not hold
out as employees of PARK DISTRICT to members of the public, and further acknowledges that they will
be responsible for paying any unemployment insurance and workers compensation insurance on behalf
of themselves and any of their employees. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall be solely
responsible for any employees' or agents’ actions in performing the work or services to be provided
pursuant to the terms of lhis Agreement. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER will provide PARK
DISTRICT with a Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) and social security number for any
individual receiving payment. BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER acknowledges that they shall be
solely responsible for the acts or omissiens of their employees or agents in performing the work or
services pursuant to this Agreement. PARK DISTRICT shall issue a form 1089 to BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER reflecting compensation pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

T TERM AND TERMINATION. The term of this Agreement shall be from October-September 1, 2042
2015 to August-31July 31, 20462018,

This Agreement may be lerminated by eilher party for "cause” by giving ten (10) days’ notice fo the
other party in writing of such intention to terminate the Agreament. For the purposes of this Paragraph,
“termination for cause” is defined as termination for an intentional or a willful violation of any of the
provisions of this Agreement by a party. The party seeking to terminate this Agreament for cause must
specify in writing to the other party the nature of the “cause” resulting in termination. Furthermare, this
Agreement may be terminated “without cause” by either party giving the other at least ten (10) days’
notice in writing of the intended termination date.

8. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS. PARK DISTRICT and
BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local statutes,
rules, regulations, ordinances and licenses regarding the performance and carrying out the terms of this
Agreement.

9, EQUIPMENT AND EXPENSES. BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER shall be responsible for all
expanses, including, without limitation, the provision of equipment and materials related to carrying out
this Agreement unless otherwise stated herein.

10. INSURANCE. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall keep in full force and effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement the following insurance coverages: comprehensive general liability
insurance, including contractual liability coverage, with minimum limits of not less than One Million
Dollars (£1,000,000.00) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) annual aggregate;
property damage insurance; full worker's compensation insurance equal o the statutory amount
required; employers' liability insurance with limits of not less than One Millien Dollars ($1,000,000.00);
and auto liability insurance with limits of not less than Five Hundred Theousand Dollars ($500,000.00). All
insurance carriers providing the coverage set farth herein shall have a raling of A as assigned by A.M.
Best & Co. and satisfactory to PARK DISTRICT in its sole discretion. All certificates of insurance in
connection herawith shall be furnished to the PARK DISTRICT no later than seven (7) days prior o the
commencement dale of this Agreement naming lhe CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT as an additional
insured befare commencement of work. All insurance coverage provided by BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER shall be primary coverage as to PARK DISTRICT. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by PARK DISTRICT shall ba in excess of BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER
insurance and shall not contribute with it. The PARK DISTRICT, its officers, agents and employees are
to be covered and named as additional insured's under the general liability coverage and shall contain
no special limitation on the scope of protection afforded to the additional insured's. The policy and/or
coverage shall also contain a “contractual liability” clause. Said insurance policies shall not be canceled

20153-201B5 Challenger British Soccer Camp Agreemeant d|Pagea



12.

13.

14,

185,

16.

17.

18.

19.

or amended withoul thirly (30) days prior wrilten nolice having bean given to the PARK DISTRICT.
Such cancellation shall be grounds for the PARK DISTRICT to immediately cancel this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION. BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER shall indemnify, save, defend, and hold
harmless PARK DISTRICT, including its officers, officials, agenls, volunteers and employees,
(hereinafter collactively referred to as “PARK DISTRICT") from and against any and all liabilities,
obligations, claims, damages, penalties, causes of action, cost and expenses (including reasonable
altorney and paralegal fees) for which PARK DISTRICT may become obligated or alleged to be liable
by reason of any accident, bodily injury or death of parsons, civil or constitutional rights violation, or loss
or damage 1o tangible property, arising directly or indirectly in connectlion with, under, or as a result of
this Agreement.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. BRITISHSOCCERCHALLENGER represents and
warrants that BRITISHSOCCERCHALLENGER has the skills and knowledge necessary to perform the
terms of this Agreement in a safe, proper, efficient, thorough and satisfactory manner and understand
that PARK DISTRICT is relying on such representation in contracling with theam,

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement shall not be assigned or delegated by either parly to any subsidiary,
successor, partner, employee, agent or affiliate without the prior written consent of the ather party which
shall not be unreasonably withheld. If PARK DISTRICT permils the assignment of the services
pravided for hereunder at any one or mare times, such assignment shall not be deemed permission to
assign the parformance of this Agreement at any other time or times.

APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. The parties agree that the laws of the State of lllinais shall govern
the terms of this Agreement. In the event of any claim or lawsuit regarding this Agreement, Champaign
County, lllinois, shall be the appropriate venue for such claim or suit.

MISCELLANEQUS. If the PARK DISTRICT and BRITISH-SOCCERCHALLENGER conclude that
anolher instruclor is required, BRITISH SOCCERCHALLENGER will provide staff to PARK DISTRICT.

SEVERABILITY. Inthe event one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be
determined by the Court of law having appropriate jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect, such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and the validily, legalily or
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement or any other application thereof shall not be
affected or impaired thereby, and shall remain in effecl.

WAIVER. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condilion, nor shall a failure to insist
upen strict compliance with any right or power al any one time or times be deemed a waiver or
relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition or right or power at any other time or times.

COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate, each of which shall be deamed to
be an original.

NOTICE. All notices required pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to
have been given on the date and at the time Ihey are sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to
the respective party at the addresses set forth below, or at such olher place address as the parties shall
provide to each other in writing. In addition, any such notice shall be sent by the first class regular U.S.
Mail.

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT CHALLENGER BRITISH
SOCCERCHALLENGER

Attention: Ms.-Bobbia-HerakeviehMr, Jog Del uce Attention: Chris Boardman
Execulive Director Regional Director

706 Kenwood Road 800 W. 5" Avenue, Suite 212
Champaign, IL 61821 Naperville, IL 60563

| 20153-20186- Challenger British Soccer Camp Agreemant 6|Papge



20. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. Il shall be binding upon the
personal representalives, successors and permitted assigns of the parlies hereto.

21, ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT. This Agreemant and any terms ar specifications attached
hereto or otherwise referred lo herein conslilute the entire agreement between the parties pertaining lo the
subject matter hereof and supersede all prior or contemporaneous agreements and understandings either oral
or written of the parties in connection herewith, No madification of this Agreement shall be effeclive unless
made in writing, signed by bolh parlies and dated after the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have executed this Agreement to be effeclive as of the day and year first
above wrilten,

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT BRITTISH SOCCER
A Municipal Corporation A division of Challenger Sports Caorporation
By: By:
Name: Name:
(print name) {print name)
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Attest:

By

Board Secretary

20153-20186 Challenger British Soccar Camp Agreement 6|Page

. LFnrmatted: Underline



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DelLuce, Executive Director
DATE: October 9, 2015

SUBJECT: The News-Gazette, Inc. Park Partner Agreement Renewal

Background
The Park Partner agreement with The News-Gazette, Inc. has helped Champaign Park District

promote programming to the community in a valuable, cost-effective manner for years. Our
relationship with both The News-Gazette and the radio stations under The News-Gazette, Inc.
remains strong, as is their interest in continuing their support of the Champaign Park District.

Additions to the renewal agreement include zoned insertion of 15,000 brochures promoting
Virginia Theatre, digital image files shared between The News-Gazette and Champaign Park
District for Program Guide use, and assistance with nomination ballots for Champaign Parks
Honors event.

Prior Board Action
The Board approved an agreement with The News-Gazette at the May 8, 2013 Regular Board
meeting, which has expired.

Budget Impact
Budget impact is dependent on ads purchased, which will all be at a 50% discount per this

agreement. Last fiscal year (May 2014 — April 2015), the Park District was invoiced
approximately $20,000 for notices for requests for bids, employment offerings, and
advertisements. Additional savings include the Taste of Champaign-Urbana map insertion and
Virginia Theatre brochure insertion.

Recommended Action
Staff recommends approval of the Park Partner Agreement between the Champaign Park
District and The News-Gazette, Inc. for a two-year period from November 1, 2015 to October

31, 2017.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Chelsea Norton Joe Deluce, CPRP
Director of Marketing & Communications Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and effective as of , 2015, by and between
the Champaign Park District, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as, “Park District”),
whese-with a principal address is-of 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, lllinois, and The News
Gazette Inc., operating and doing business as The News-Gazette and NewsTalk 1400/Lite Rock
97.5 (hereinafter alternatively referred to as, “The News-Gazette” or “Radio Stations”) with a

principal office-located-ataddress of 15 Main Street, Champaign, lllinois_(and each individually or
collectively referred to herein from time to time, as “Party” or “Parties’).

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the mutual covenants, consideration.-and agreements set forth
herein, the Parties agree as follows:

Section 1 - General Purpose: For purposes of this Agreement, Park District and The News-
Gazette and Radio Stations shall be “Park Partners’, and The News-Gazette and Radio
Stations shall be included in various promotional materials, including program guides, banners,
decals, and other advertisements which will indicate that The News-Gazette and Radio Stations
are “Park Partners” Forfor the Virginia Theatre programming identified herein. Park District shall
receive in-kind or discounted newspaper and radio advertising as set forth herein.

Section 2 - Term: This Agreement shall be in effect for a period of two (2) years frem-on and
after its effective date; provided that, this Agreement may be terminated at any time without
notice upon the express written consent of both Parties or for default as provided for herein.

Section 3 — The News-Gazette/Taste of Champaign
The News-Gazette shall provide the following services:

A. Printing and insertion of approximately 70,000 printed-announcement inserts to be
placed and disseminated in The News-Gazette and Accent publications, together with up
to 15,000 additional copies, as determined by the Park District to distribute as it
chooses. Park District shall pay $2,500.00 to cover the cost thereof. Deadlines and
insertions dates shall be determined by mutual agreement taking into proper account the
timing-scheduling and nature of the events.

B. Additional in-paper advertisements will be provided on a matching inches basis-cost in
any newspaper owned by The News-Gazette-at-ne-additional-charge.

The Park District shall provide.

A. Sponsorship acknowledgement in accordance with the level of in-kind consideration,
including tickets, t-shirts, or promotional recognition as would be afforded a similar
sponsor participating at a level of $7,500 or more in value.

B. A twenty foot by twenty foot (20’ x 20) booth with tent to be shared with Radio Stations
for Taste of Champaign.

Section 4 - The News-Gazette Film Series
The News-Gazette will-shall provide the following services in connection with all films in the
News-Gazette filefilm/series:

509190v1



A. Design and publish a-two (2) full-color advertisements (minimum size 6 columns X 10”)
to appear in The News-Gazette the week prior to each film showing. Color printing shall
be utilized to the extent possible.

B. Design and print one 27"x 40" window cling poster for each film.

C. Additional advertisements shall be provided on a matching dollar basis in any
newspaper owned by The News-Gazette, including the community weekly newspapers.

D. Production and printing of small posters {11-x-17")}-and postcards {3-5"%-5% listing all
films for distribution throughout Park District facilities.

The Park District shall with regard to film showings provide:

A. Title Sponsorship for the film series.

B. News-Gazette Film Series title slides to be shown prior to each film shown at the Virginia
Theatre.

C. Prominent displays of News-Gazette produced posters at Virginia Theatre and other
Park District facilities.

D. Mevies-Films selected by the-Park District with approval by The News-Gazette.

E. Options to offer door prize drawings at each film showing, together with retention of all

entry slips.

Section 5 - The News Gazette - Virginia Theatre Planned Season
The News-Gazelte shall provide the following for each annual season developed:

A. Zoned insertion (with Park District consultation) of 15,000 copies of the season program
once per-each year developed to coincide with the respective season announcement.
B. Matching promotional fund dollars, pending an annual cash commitment of $2,500 from
the Virginia-TheatrePark District, for each planned season.
C. Annual publication materials valued at $2,087.25 in connection with post card insertion,
online advertising, or a combination thereof, including.:
i. Insertion of 40,000 single 8.5" x 5.5" postcards over the course of each season,
with a minimum of 10,200 to be inserted to meet minimum value per insertion.;
ii. Production of 250,000 leaderboard or medium rectangles on www.news-
gazelte.com website-; and
iii. For these events, the Champaign Park District will be recognized as a
partner in all print, electronic, and radio materials promoting each event, and will
be featured in a full page ‘thank 'Thank you' ad in The News-Gazette following
each event.

The Park District shall provide:

A. Logo acknowledgment of The News-Gazette and Radio Stations as Virginia Theatre
season sponsors in all of the following:
i. An active web link to thevirginia.org-;
ii. News-Gazette logo included in each printed season brochure; andard
ii. News-Gazette logo included in any individual program brochures created for
events that are part of the “Subscriber's Series”.
B. A Oone-eighth (1/8) page print ad in printed programs.
C. One (1) pair of complimentary tickets for three (3) different season subscriber featured
events (3 total pairs of tickets) for each season.
D. Forty (40) tickets for twelve (12)films during the each season, with the titles to be
determined by the Park District and The News-Gazette, excluding EbertFest.

509190v1



E. Two (2) exclusive film screenings (adjacent to a previously scheduled movie), including

Gazette's Premier Subscribers-each-season.

Section 6 — Radio Stations
Radio Stations shall provide:

A. One (1) “DWS News Hour" or equivalent live remote broadcast from The Virginia Theatre
on a date mutually agreed upon by the Parties, but in any event coinciding with the
Virginia Theatre planned season announcement each year (typically in late spring/early
summer).

B. Park District with a minimum of 1,000 promotional advertising spots at the best time
available each year based upon the contract year then in effect. The duration of the
promotional spots shall be either thirty (30) or sixty (60) seconds depending on the
advertising content required in order to appropriately promote each event or concept.
The promotional advertising spots will air- on AM or FM frequencies or both depending
on the nature of the event as determined by both Parties.

C. Park District with a monthly review of en-on-air promotional advertisements-advertising

D. Park District with a specific radio station liaison to meet with Park District officials once
each calendar month in order to review and plan promotional event needs thirty (30),
sixty (60), and ninety (90) days prior to the respective event.

E. Park District with a discounted rate for on-air purchases of advertising and promotional
of each successive contract year. The rates for 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. are thirty—four
dollars ($34.00) for sixty (60) second commercials, and twenty-nine dollars ($29.00) for
thirty (30) second commercials.

F. Park District with 1,000 promotional advertising spots, and sponsor, promote, and
advertise Park District events identified herein through on-air, on site, and ticket
giveaway promotions. Radio Stations shall be promoted as a sponsors on all related
promotional materials regarding these following events:

Taste of Champaign-Urbana, sponsor with staff attending and live coverage:;
Halloween FunFest, as exclusive radio title sponsor with staff attending the event;
Daddy Daughter Dance (February);

Night Lite Egg Pursuit, as exclusive radio title sponsor; with staff attending the
event:; and

5. Touch-A-Truck, as exclusive radio title sponsor; with staff attending the event.

nal

Section 7- Park District Responsibilities for The News-Gazette and Radio Stations
The Park District shall:

A. Include in all “Park Partner” promotions the logo of The News-Gazette and Radio
Stations, including without limitation, any advertisement, commercial, flyer, or poster.

B. List The News-Gazette and Radio Stations in the Park District Program Guide three (3)
times each year in an advertisement promoting all ‘Park Partners’.

C. Create, develop, and maintain an internet link to The News-Gazette and Radio Stations
on the Park District and Virginia Theatre websites for the term of this Agreement.

3

509190v1



L © ™

Include on a "Park Parther” banner all current "Park Partners” with such banner
displayed on the Park District's “Showmobile” and at special Park District events as it
determines reasonable.

Promote The News-Gazette and Radio Stations on one Park District mini-park sign at
least two (2) weeks each year; and availability permitting, such promotion being on the
signs located at the intersection of Church Street and Prospect Avenue in Champaign,
lllinois.

Prometion-Promote The News-Gazette and Radio Stations on scoreboard signage at
certain athletic fields and/or gymnasiums as determined solely by Park District.
Provide two staff members to assist Radio Stations at each University of lllinois Tailgate
party.

Provide The News-Gazette and Radio Stations with one hundred (100) one-day
Leonhard Recreation Center passes each year (for the period May 1 — April 30").
Provide The News-Gazette and Radio Stations with one hundred (100) one-day pool
passes for each Park District swim season covered in this agreement.

Provide Radio Station with Ten (10) complimentary tickets to the Daddy Daughter
Dance.

Provide the News-Gazette and Radio Station with twenty (20) complimentary tickets to
each film in The News-Gazette Film Series.

Section 8- Miscellaneous Provisions:

A.

B.

C.

D.

E:

The News-Gazette shall share {#]-eftwenty (20) digital image files with the Park District
each year. Each image will be specifically requested by the Park District and is for
private use or credited Program Guide use only. The Park District shall not sell or
commercially use such images without prior express written authorization from The
News-Gazette.

The Park District shall share {#}-oftwenty (20) digital image files with The News-Gazette
each year. Each image will be specifically requested by The News-Gazette and is for
private use or credited publication only. The News-Gazette will not sell or commercially
use these images without prior express written authorization from the Park District.
The News-Gazette and Radio Stations shall create, distribute, and manage (as
applicable) selected and mutually agreed upon award nomination ballots for the
Champaign Parks Honors event. This process may involve both digital and print
distribution as mutually agreed upon by both Parties.

The Park District’s Sholem Aquatic Center, Leonhard Recreation Center, and/or other
mutually agreeable Park District venues shall host two (2) events, including
complimentary admission for up to 500 Premier Subscribers, each season. For these
such events, the Champaign Park District will be recognized as a partner in all
print, electronic and radio materials promoting each event, and will be featured in a full
page ‘thank Thank you' ad in The News-Gazette following each event.
[PROGRANM-GUIDE-RPRINTINGZ-DISTRIBUHONZ-AD SALES? PENDING-MORE
CONVERSATION WITH THE NG]

#E. The News-Gazette, Inc. and Radio Stations shall provide Park District with a website

GF.

509190v1

link from The News-Gazette and Radio Stations sites to the Park District and Virginia
Theatre websites for the entire term of this Agreement.

Additional print or digital advertising for any of The News-Gazette sponsored events
shall cause Park District to receive matching dollar advertising. Matching dollars means
that for every dollar Park District spends on advertising, The News-Gazette will match
that value with an equal dollar amount of advertising. The paid portion can be
purchased at the regular contract or non-profit entity rate:. hHowever, donated ads are
not applicable toward contract fulfillment.

4



HG. The News-Gazette and Radio Stations shall be informed of additional event or
promotional opportunities as they arise for its consideration prior to securing alternate
sponsorship. This provision does not provide any exclusivity, option or confer any other
rights upon The News-Gazette and Radio Stations.

Section 9 - Default: In, the event that either Party fails or refuses to comply with the terms of
this Agreement, and cure such default within thirty (30) days of written notice in the manner
provided for herein, then the other Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.

Section 10 - Mutual Hold Harmless and Indemnification: Park District shall indemnify,

officers, employees, agents, and representatives from and against any and all liability, loss,
costs, causes of actions, demands, attorneys fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments of
whatsoever kind and or character, including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to
demands; in whatever form that may take, with respect to any claim made against The News-
Gazette and-or Radio Stations that arises solely from an act, failure, or omission on the part of
Park District, or any of its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, orrepresentatives, or
volunteers in carrying out the terms of this Agreement. The News-Gazette and Radio Stations
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Park District and any-all of its commissioners,
officers, employees, agents, -or representatives, or volunteers from and against any and all
liability, loss, costs, causes of actions, demands, attorneys fees, expenses, claims, suits and
judgments of whatsoever kind and-or character, including without limitation, all possible costs of
responding to demands; in whatever form that may take, with respect to any claim made against
Park District that arises solely from an act, failure, or omission on the part of The News-Gazette
and-or Radio Stations, or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, and-or
representatives in carrying out of the terms of this Agreement.

Section 11 - Independent Contractors: Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, the relationship between Park District, The News-Gazette and Radio Stations
is/are, and shall remain, one of independent contractors. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
construed to establish a relationship of employer/employee, partners or joint ventures between
the partiesParties. The term “Park Partners” means any of the entities identified herein solely
for the promotional matters set forth herein, and does not and shall not be construed to mean
that any form of partnership has been formed by or among them, as the case may be, whether
in law or in fact.

Section 12- Severability: In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Agreement shall be deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement, and the
validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement or any other
application thereof shall not be affected or impaired thereby, and shall, therefere. remain in full
force and effect.

Section 13 - Assignment - Binding Effect: Neither partyParty. nor any subsidiary, successor,
officer, employee, agent or affiliate shall assign or delegate any of their rights or responsibilities
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other.

Section 14 — Non-Waiver: Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms,
covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, shall not be deemed a waiver of that term,
covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any one
time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of the right or power at all or any other
times.

509190v1



Section 15 - Entire Agreement and Amendment: This Agreement and any written addendum

to it executed in writing by the Parties constitute(s) the entire Agreement between and/or among
Park District and The News-Gazette and Radio Stations, and may be changed, modified or
amended only by mutual written agreement executed by Park District and The News-Gazette
and Radio Stations. This Agreement replaces and supercedes any previous Agreements.

Section 16 - Counterparts: This Agreement shall be executed in any number of counterparts
each of which shall be deemed to be an original.

Section 17 - Notice: Any notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and be
deemed to have been given at the time it is mailed to the respective party-Party via certified
mail, return receipt requested with an additional copy sent via U.S. first class mail at the address
set forth below, or at such other place or address as the Parties shall provide to each other in
writing.

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT THE NEWS-GAZETTE, INC.
Attention: Joseph DelLuce Attention: John Reed
Executive Director Publisher

706 Kenwood Road 15 Main Street

Champaign, IL 61821 Champaign, IL 61820

Section 18 — Time of the essence: Time is of the essence of the performance of the terms of
this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties-Parties have caused this Agreement to be
executed effective as the day and year first above written.

Champaign Park District The News-Gazette, Inc.
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
6

509190v1



CHAMPAIGN
PARK DISTRICT

REPORT TO PARK BOARD

FROM: Joe DelLuce, Executive Director
DATE: October 5, 2015

SUBJECT: Approval to Enter into 3-Year Lease Agreement for Postage Machine

Background
The Park District is purchasing a new postage machine at a cost of $1,528.00 which requires rental

of an accompanying meter (purchase of the meter is not allowed). The Park District currently pays
$48.40/month for rental of a postage meter. In addition, the annual maintenance fee to service the
current postage machine due to its age is $542.00.

Prior Board Action
None.

Budget Impact
Meter rental and maintenance of the outdated postage machine currently costs the District

$1,300.00 per year. Under the new agreement, rental of the meter and maintenance on the new
postage machine will only cost the Park District $660.00 per year. The savings are attributed to
updates being included with the new postage machine at no cost.

Recommended Action

Staff recommends the Board approve an agreement with Neopost, USA, Inc. and its affiliate,
Mailroom Finance, Inc. for rental of the new postage meter for a three year period in the amount of
$38.00 per month and maintenance of the new postage machine of $204.00 per year, and authorize
the Executive Director to execute the agreement.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DelLuce, CPRP
Director of Finance Executive Director

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.



HASLER

Q_f_ﬂce_a Number Office Name
|WALZ LABEL & MAILING SYSTEMS

Hasler Rental Agreement
For use with Hasler Postage Meters

Phone Number Date §
| (309) 698-1500

g 1
|

| 706 KENWOOD RD

Section (B) Installation Information  (if different from billing information)

""""" S ——

l CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

‘Company Name (Full Legal Name)

|”iﬁs“kE’ﬂWoon RD

Installation Address (No PO Boxes)

61821 | [CHAMPAIGN [ " |L|_61§21 |
ey Zip Code + 4 City State Zip Code + 4
E‘TVO"lM”E!ng-FiT D P N e Sl el —] {"faﬁ-éllli-ﬁléii"i‘lu L T R B Y S e SRS B 4 1B AT AT R -—-J
CONBCEIN o CONMCEAGE P —
Emal[ 'f\?,"?'_?ss Email Address
[@)ste3ss0 | [@ins1-3830
sl SOOI .. O Ehons Nugoar Fax Number
‘Purchase Order # Main Post Office G Post Office Zip Code + 4
| ] Tax Exempt? (Exemption Certificate is required if Yes) | [l Use my existing TMS Account Number ! 771720 ]

g_ﬂg‘!jﬁ[‘_@_'_i_"‘f_ﬁ@?‘ or bill my credit card [ visa CLIm/c [J AmEx
lCard # T ]-E):p Date

Section (C) Postage Meter Information

| Meter Model| IH360AI Base Model | IH360

| Meter Model| o Base Model

| Payment frequency | Quarterly )
E"M'é'té?E Rental Payments ]
[ $40.00 for 36 months, thereafter for months |

Sectlon (D) Rate Change Protection
[[] Rate Change Protection

Model  Iserial Number ‘Annual Price

Section (F) Approval

Section (E) Services Include

@ Hasler iMeter™ [ Postage Meter Rental
f J TolalFunds Postage Management
+ "Download now, Pay laler” eplions fer commereial postage
[#] Online Advantage
+ MyAccount online poslage accounl and poslage usage meniloring
+ Ink cariridge re-order email alaris, remola diagneslics and software checks
(] Online Postal Rales iMeler™ App
+ Aulomatic aleclronic USPS Poslal Rales & Fees
[_] oniine Pestai Expense Management iMeter™ App
+ Online reparting 1o monilor, Irack and conlrol postaga expenditures
L__‘ Online USPS® E-Services iMeter™ App
+ Discounted slectronic Confirmation Sarvices
+ Onlina delivery tracking and delivery stalus amail updates
[[] Online E-Services with Electronic Return Receipt iMeter™ App
- USPS eServices wilh eleclionic signalure proof of receipt
(] neoship
El SoftwareCare / Software Advantage (for shipping & accounting applicalions)

Authorized Signature

TMS accounts previously funded by ACH Debits will not be converted to TotalFunds, unless initialed here

This document consists of a Postage Meter Rental Agreement (‘Rental Agreement"), and an Online Services and Software Agreement with
Neopost USA Inc.; and a neoFunds/TotalFunds Account Agreement with Mailroom Finance, Inc. Your signature constitutes an offer to enter into
the Rental.Ag{aamant and, if applicable, the other agreements, and acknowledges that you have received, read, and agree to all applicable terms
and conditions (version R-06-13), which are also available at http://www.neopostusa.com/terms/R-06-13.pdf, and that you are authorized lo sign
the agreements on behalf of the customer identified above, The applicable agreements will become binding on the companies identified above |
only after an authorized individual accepts your offer by signing below, or when the equipment is shipped to you.

Date

Print Name and Title

Accepted by Date Accepted

Neopost USA, Inc. 478 Wheelers Farms Rd Milford CT 06461 www.haslerinc.com

Form 51187 (PF) 06/13



nEOPOSbMTERMS & CONDITIONS

POSTAGE METER RENTAL AGREEMENT

1. Postage Meter Rental. In this Postage Meter Rental
Agreement (the “Rental Agreement”), the words “You” and
“Your” mean the customer named on the Postage Meter Rental
Agreement order form (“Order Form”). “We,” “Us” and “Qur”
mean Neopost USA Inc. You agree to rent from Us the postage
meter identified on the Order Form, as well as any other products
listed on the Order Form, together with all existing and future
accessories, embedded software programs, attachments,
replacements, additions and repairs, (the “Postage Meter”) upon
the terms stated herein,

2, Provisions as to Use. You acknowledge that: (i) as required
by United States Postal Service regulations, the Postage Meter(s)
is being rented to You and that it is Our property; (ii) the Postage
Meter will be surrendered by You upon demand by Us; (iii) You
are responsible for the control and use of the Postage Meter; (iv)
You will comply with all applicable laws regarding Your use or
possession of the Postage Meter; (v) the use of the Postage Meter
is subject to the conditions established from time to time by the
United States Postal Service; and (vi) the Postage Meter is to be
used only for generating an indicia to evidence the prepayment of
postage and to account for postal funds. It is a violation of
Federal law to misuse or tamper with the Postage Meter and, if
You do so, We may terminate this Rental Agreement upon notice
to You.

3. Rental Fee, Payment and Term. The initial rental term for
the Postage Meter is set forth on the Order Form (“Initial Term”).
The rental fee for the Initial Term is also set forth on the Order
Form. The Initial Term of this Rental Agreement will begin on
the earlier of either the date the Postage Meter is installed or five
(5) days after the Postage Meter is shipped by Us, You promise
to pay to Us the amounts shown on the Order Form in
accordance with the payment schedule set forth thereon, plus all
other amounts stated on the Order Form or in this Rental
Agreement.  You shall make all payments to the address
indicated on Our invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of
Qur invoice. A late fee will be charged if the payment is not
made within such period and an additional late fee will be
charged for each subsequent thirty (30) days that the invoice
remains unpaid. You agree to pay Us the then-current fee
charged by Our financial institution for checks returned unpaid
and for ACH direct debit transactions which are rejected. You
also agree to pay all setting fees and charges incurred in
connection with the download of funds to the Postage Meter.
The Postage Meter rental fee does not include the cost of
consumable supplies.  This Rental Agreement is NON-
CANCELABLE during the Initial Term and any Renewal Period
(as defined below). Unless You notify Us in writing at least
ninety (90) days before the end of the Initial Term that You
intend to return the Postage Meter at the end of the Initial Term,
this Rental Agreement will automatically renew for consecutive
terms equal to the billing cycle listed on the Order Form at the
then-current payment amount for such Postage Meter (each a
“Renewal Period”). We will not notify You that the Initial Term
or any Renewal Term is ending. You may terminate this Rental
Agreement at the conclusion of any Renewal Period by giving Us
thirty (30) days prior written notice of Your intent to do so.

4. Return of Postage Meter and Products, Upon the
termination of this Rental Agreement, unless directed otherwise
by Us, You shall, after receiving an Equipment Return

Page | of 4

Authorization (“ERA”) number from Us, promptly send the
Postage Meter and any other products, at Your expense, to any
location(s) that We designate, in addition to paying Us Our then-
applicable processing fee. The Postage Meter must be properly
packed for shipment with the ERA number clearly visible, freight
prepaid and fully insured, and must be received in good
condition, less normal wear and tear. Furthermore, You agree
that if you fail to return a postage meter within thirty (30) days of
receipt of the ERA then You will pay a postage meter
replacement fee of $1,000.

5. Postage Meter Maintenance, Inspections, and Location,
We will keep the Postage Meter in good working condition
during the term of this Rental Agreement. The United States
Postal Service regulations may require Us to periodically inspect
the Postage Meter. You agree to cooperate with Us regarding
such inspections. We may, from time to time, access and
download information from Your Postage Meter to provide Us
with information about Your postage usage and We may share
that information with Our distributors and other third parties and
You hereby authorize Us to do so. You agree to promptly update
Us whenever there is any change in Your name, address,
telephone number, the licensing post office, or the location of the
Postage Meter,

6. Loss; Damage; Insurance. You shall: (i) bear the risk of
loss and damage to the Postage Meter and shall continue
performing all of Your other obligations hereunder even if the
Postage Meter becomes damaged or there is a loss, (ii) keep the
Postage Meter insured against all risks of loss and damage in an
amount at least equal to its full replacement cost.

7. Postage Advances. We do not sell postage. In the event
You require an emergency advance for postage, We, at Our sole
discretion, may advance You money to reset the Postage Meter,
If We do provide such an advance, You agree to repay Us within
five (5) days from the time of such advance: (i) the amount of the
emergency advance; and (ii) the then-current advance fee.

8. Default, In the event You fail to perform in accordance
with the terms set forth in this Rental Agreement, or any other
Agreement with Us or any of Our affiliates, including, but not
limited to Mailroom Finance, Inc., then We may, without notice:
(i) repossess the Postage Meter(s); (ii) disable the Postage Meter;
(iii) immediately terminate this Rental Agreement; and (iv)
pursue any remedies available to Us at law or in equity.
Furthermore, upon the return of the Postage Meter, You hereby
authorize Us to offset any amount of postage remaining in the
Postage Meter, prior to any refund to You, against any amount
due to Us or any of Our affiliates. You shall also pay all of Our
costs in enforcing Our rights under this Rental Agreement,
including reasonable attorneys® fees and expenses that We incur
to take possession, store, or repair, the Postage Meter, as well as
any other expenses that We may incur to collect amounts owed
to Us. These remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive,
and shall be in addition to any and all other remedies available to
Us.

9. Rate Updates.

A. MAINTENANCE OF POSTAL RATES. It is Your sole
responsibility to ensure that correct amounts are applied
as payment for mailing and shipping services, We shall
not be responsible for returns for delivery delays,
refusals, or any other problems caused by applying the
incorrect rate to mail or packages.

Postage Meter Rental Agreement Version: R-06-13

NEDPOSTUSA 1 478 WHEELERS FARMS ROAD | MILFORD, CT 06461 | TEL: 203.301.3400 | FAX:203.301.2600



nEOPOSbNTERMS&CUNDITIUNS

B. Rate Updates with Online Services, If the Order Form
indicates that You are enrolled in Our Online Services
program, then We will make available periodic updates
for Your covered products and/or Postage Meter,
including updates to maintain accurate USPS rates for
the USPS services that are compatible with such
products or Postage Meter, The rate updates that are
offered with Our Online Services program are only
available for products that are Integrated (as defined
below) into Your mailing machine, For the purposes
of this section, “Integrated” means that the covered
hardware cannot properly operate on a stand-alone basis
and it has been incorporated into the mail machine.
Products that are not Integrated including, but not
limited to, all Software and scales with “ST-77,” or
“SE"” in the model number will not receive updated rates
as part of Our Online Services program (collectively
“Excluded Products”).

C. Rate Updates with Rate Change Protection and Software
Advantage. If You have any of Our Excluded Products,
You may have elected to purchase Rate Change
Protection (“RCP™) from Us for Your hardware
products or Software Advantage for Your Software, If
the Order Form indicates that You have selected RCP or
Software Advantage, We will make available the
following updates for Your covered products or
Software: (i) updates to maintain accurate rates for the
services offered by the USPS and other couriers that are
compatible with Your covered product or Software; and
(ii) updates for major zip or zone changes that are
compatible with Your covered product or Software. If
any reprogramming is required because You have
moved the products or Postage Meter to a new location,
none of the services described in this Section cover the
cost to do so. Customers with an outstanding Accounts
Receivable balance may not receive a rate update until
the open balance is resolved.

10, UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF DEPOSIT REQUIREMENT.
By signing this Postage Meter Rental Agreement, You
acknowledge and agree that You have read the United States
Postal  Service  Acknowledgement of Deposit (the
“Acknowledgement™) and will comply with its terms and
conditions, as it may be amended from time to time,

11. ADDITIONAL UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
TERMS.

A. By signing this Postage Meter Rental Agreement, You
acknowledge that You are also entering into an
Agreement with the United States Postal Service
(“*USPS"™) in accordance with the Domestic Mail
Manual (“DMM”) 604.4, Postage Payment Methods,
Postage Meters and PC Postage Products (collectively,
“Postage Evidencing Systems” or “PES”) and accept
responsibility for control and use of the PES contained
therein,

B. You also acknowledge You have read the DMM 604.4,
Postage Payment Methods, Postage Meters and PC
Postape Products (Postage Evidencing Systems) and
agree to abide by all rules and regulations governing its
use.

Page 2 of 4

C. Failure to comply with the rules and regulations
contained in the DMM or use of the PES in any
fraudulent or unlawful scheme or enterprise may result
in the revocation of this Rental Agreement.

D. You further acknowledge that any use of this PES that
fraudulently deprives the USPS of revenue can cause
You to be subject to civil and criminal penalties
applicable to fraud and/or false claims against the
United States. The submission of a false, fictitious or
fraudulent statement can result in imprisonment of up to
five (5) years and fines of up to $10,000 (18 U.S.C.
1001). In addition, a civil penalty of up to $5,000 and an
additional assessment of twice the amount falsely
claimed may be imposed (3 U.S.C. 3802).

E. You further understand that the rules and regulations
regarding use of this PES as documented in the USPS
Domestic Mail Manual may be updated from time to
time by the USPS and it is Your obligation to comply
with any current or future rules and regulations
regarding its use.

F. You are responsible for immediately reporting (within
seventy-two hours or less) the theft or loss of the
postage meter that is subject to this Rental Agreement.
Failure to comply with this notification provision in a
timely manner may result in the denial of refund of
funds remaining on the postage meter at the time of the
loss or theft.

12, Taxes. You agree to pay for all applicable taxes related to
the sale or rental of any products or Postage Meter to You, as
well as any taxes applicable to Your possession, and/or use of the
products and/or Postage Meter. Furthermore, You agree to pay
the applicable fee to cover Our expenses associated with the
administration, billing and tracking of such charges and taxes.

13. Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY
STATED HEREIN, WE MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
REGARDING ANY MATTER WHATSOQEVER, INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE SUITABILITY OF ANY
PRODUCTS OR POSTAGE METER, ITS CONDITION, ITS
MERCHANTABILITY, ITS FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, ITS FREEDOM FROM INFRINGEMENT, OR
OTHERWISE.

14, Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER
PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR
PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND ARISING OUT OF,
OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THIS AGREEMENT,
WHETHER OR NOT SUCH PARTY WAS ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE. NOTWITHSTANDING
ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS RENTAL AGREEMENT,
EXCEPT FOR DIRECT DAMAGES RESULTING FROM
PERSONAL INJURY OR DAMAGE TO TANGIBLE
PROPERTY CAUSED BY OUR GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, THE MAXIMUM OUR
LIABILITY TO YOU FOR DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL
NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL OF THE AMOUNTS PAID TO
US HEREUNDER BY YOU,
15. Assignment. No right or interest in this Rental Agreement
may be assigned by You, without Our prior written consent,
16. Notice. All notices, requests and other communications
hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be addressed to You or
Postage Meter Rental Agreement Version: R-06-13

NEOPOST USA | 478 WHEELERS FARMS ROAD | MILFORD, CT 06461 1 TEL: 203.301.3400 | FAX: 203.301.2600



DGOPOS DWTERMS&CUNDIHUNS

Us, as applicable and shall be considered given when: (i)
delivered personally; or (ii) sent by commercial overnight courier
with written verification receipt.

17. Integration. This Rental Agreement represents the final and
only agreement between You and Us regarding Your acquisition
of the Postage Meter and any other products or services, There
are no unwritten oral agreements between You and Us. This
Rental Agreement can be changed only by a signed, written
agreement between You and Us.

18. Severability. In the event any provision of this Rental
Agreement shall be deemed to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby. The parties agree to replace any invalid
provision with a wvalid provision, which most closely
approximates the intent and economic effect of the invalid
provision.

19. Waiver or Delay., A waiver of any default hereunder or of
any term or condition of this Rental Agreement shall not be
deemed to be a continuing waiver or a waiver of any other
default or any other term or condition, but shall apply solely to
the instance to which such waiver is directed. We may accept
late payments, partial payments, checks or money orders marked
“payment in full,” or with a similar notation, without
compromising any rights under this Rental Agreement.

20. Arbitration; Choice of Law; Venue; and Attorney’s Fees,
Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Rental
Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration
administered by the American Arbitration Association in
accordance with its Commercial Arbitration rules and judgment
upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any
court having jurisdiction thereof., There shall be no class
arbitration, The place of arbitration shall be in Hartford County
in the State of Connecticut. This Rental Agreement shall be
governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the
State of Connecticut, excluding its conflict of law principles. All
fees and expenses shall be borne by the parties equally. However,
each party shall bear the expense of its own counsel, experts,
witnesses, and preparation of proofs, The prevailing party shall
be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs
and the arbitrator(s) shall be authorized to award such amounts.

neoFunds/TotalFunds ACCOUNT AGREEMENT

1. Incorporation of Certain Terms., You acknowledge that
You have entered a Postage Meter Rental Agreement with
Neopost USA Inc. (the “Rental Agreement™). If you have an
eligible Postage Meter, then you will have access to a
neoFunds® postage funding account (for Neopost POC accounts)
or a TotalFunds® postage funding account (for TMS accounts)
and this neoFunds/TotalFunds Account Agreement (“Account
Agreement”™) shall govern Your use of such account.  Any
defined terms in the Rental Agreement shall have the same
meanings in this Account Agreement, except that “We,” “Us,”
and “Our,” refer to Mailroom Finance, Inc., an affiliate of
Neopost USA Inc. Sections 10 through 19 of the Rental
Agreement are hereby incorporated into this Account Agreement
except that any reference in those sections to the “Lease” refers
to this Account Agreement,

Page 3 of 4

2. Establishment and Activation of Account. You hereby
authorize Us, to establish an account in Your name (“Account™)
for funding the purchase of postage from the United State Postal
Service (“USPS") for use in the Postage Meter. Your Account
may also be used to purchase supplies, pay for the Postage Meter
rental, and obtain certain other products and services from
Neopost USA. The establishment of Your Account shall be
subject to Our approval of Your creditworthiness. Any use of the
Account shall constitute Your acceptance of all the terms and
conditions of this Account Agreement and all other documents
executed or provided in connection with the Account. The
Account may not be used for personal, family, or household
purposes.

3. Operation of Account. Each time an employee or agent of
Yours with the express, implied, or apparent authority to do so
(each an “Authorized User") uses the Account to receive a
postage meter reset or obtain other products or services that
Neopost USA Inc. is authorized to provide, Neopost USA Inc.
will notify Us of the amount to be applied to Your Account
balance. If the Account is used to obtain postage, then We will
transfer the requested amount of postage to the USPS on Your
behalf and Your Account will be charged for the amount of
postage requested and any related fees, if applicable. You can
continue to pre-pay the USPS for postage and understand that
pre-paid postage funds will be used first to pay for my postage
meter resets. You further understand that neoFunds/TotalFunds
will provide additional available postage funds when Your pre-
paid account balance is zero ($0). When You request a Postage
Meter reset, if You have the funds on account with the USPS,
those funds automatically will be withdrawn first to pay for
postage, and any additional amounts due for postage and related
fees will be billed through the neoFunds/TotalFunds Account
under the terms and conditions of this Account Agreement, If the
Account is used to acquire products or services that Neopost
USA is authorized to provide, then We shall pay the applicable
amount to Neopost USA Inc. and add such amount to Your
Account balance,

4. Payment Terms. You will receive a billing statement for
each billing cycle in which You have any activity on Your
Account. Payments are due on the due date shown on Your
billing statement. You may pay the entire balance due or a
portion of the balance, provided that You pay at least the
minimum payment amount shown on Your statement. However,
if You have exceeded the Account Limit, then You must pay the
entire amount of any overage, as well as the minimum payment
amount shown on Your statement. Whenever there is an unpaid
balance outstanding on Your Account which is not paid in full by
the due date shown on Your billing statement, We will charge
You, and You agree to pay, interest on the unpaid balance of the
Account for each day from the date the transaction is posted to
Your Account until the date the unpaid balance is paid in full, at
the Annual Percentage Rate (as defined below). The Account
balance that is subject to a finance charge each day will include
outstanding balances, minus any payments and credits received
by Us on Your Account that day, The Annual Percentage Rate
applicable to Your Account will be equal to the lesser of eighteen
percent (18.00%) per annum or the maximum permitted by law.
Each payment will be applied to reduce the outstanding balance
of Your Account and replenish the amount available to You. We
may refuse to extend further credit if the amount of a requested
charge plus Your existing balance exceeds Your Account Limit,

Postage Meter Rental Agreement Version: R-06-13

NEDPOST USA | 478 WHEELERS FARMS ROAD | MILFORD, CT 06461 | TEL: 203.301.3400 | FAX:203.301.2600



NeopPOSt” reaus & conormons

5.  Account Limit and Account Fees. You agree that We will
establish a credit limit on Your Account (the “Account Limit”),
The exact amount of the Account Limit will be indicated on
Your invoice. We may, in Our sole discretion, allow Your
balance to exceed the Account Limit. In the event We do so,
You agree to pay Us an additional fee equal to one percent (1%)
of the amount by which the Account Limit is exceeded for each
transaction that You initiate after Your Account has reached the
Account Limit. Such amount will be charged to Your Account
on the date that the relevant transaction(s) occurs. Unless
prohibited by applicable law, You agree to pay the amounts set
forth in this Account Agreement, which may include, without
limitation, the amounts specified above, a fee for a late payment,
and a fee for any checks that are returned as a result of
insufficient funds. Unless prohibited by applicable law, We may
charge You and You agree to pay Our fees then in effect for
copies of Your monthly statements. All such fees shall be added
to Your Account balance.

6. Cancellation and Suspension. We may at any time close or
suspend Your Account or temporarily refuse to allow further
charges to Your Account, You can cancel Your Account at any
time by notifying Us in writing at the address provided on Your
Account statement of Your desire to do so. No cancellation or
suspension will affect Your obligation to pay any amounts You
then owe under this Account Agreement. We will notify You of
the Account balance in the event of any termination and all
outstanding obligations will survive the termination of this
Account Agreement by either party.

7. Default. We may declare You in default if You: (i.) have
made any misrepresentations to Us; (ii.) at any time, have done
or allowed anything that indicates to Us that You may be unable
or unwilling to repay the balance of Your Account as required
under this Account Agreement; or (iii.) are in default under this
Account Agreement or any lease, rental, or other agreement with
Us, Neopost USA Inc., or their affiliates. If You are in default,
or upon any cancellation of Your Account, We shall not be
obligated to continue to provide the Account service or extend
further credit under this Account Agreement, If We are required
to take collection action or any other legal action under this
Account Agreement, You shall pay upon demand by Us all court
and collection costs, along with reasonable attorney’s fees.
These remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive, and shall
be in addition to any and all other remedies available to Us,

8. Remedies. If We have declared that You are in default
under this Account Agreement, then We may: (i) declare all
agreements You have with Us in default and due and payable at
once without notice or demand; (ii) refuse to make further
advances on Your behalf to reset Your Postage Meter; and (iii)
exercise any other rights that We may have. In addition, You
agree that any default under this Account Agreement shall
constitute a default under any agreement You may have with any
of Our affiliates, including, but not limited to, Neopost USA Inc.,
MailFinance Inc.

9. Amendments. We may amend this Account Agreement, or
any of its provisions, including without limitation any fees and
charges and/or the Annual Percentage Rate, at any time by at
least thirty (30) days written notice to You, and such written
notice may be included in Your billing statement. Any such
amendment will become effective on the date stated in the notice
and will apply to any transactions after such date, as well as to
any outstanding balance on Your Account,

Page 4 of 4

10. Notice: Any notice required to be given under this Account
Agreement by either party hereto shall be given if to You, at the
address shown on Your Order Form, and if to Us at P.O. Box
30193, Tampa, Florida 33630-3193.

11. Miscellaneous. You understand that We may obtain credit
reports in connection with Your Account now and in the future.
This Account Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without
reference to its conflict-of-laws rules, and any applicable federal
laws. The sole jurisdiction and venue for actions related to the
subject matter hereof shall be in a State or Federal Court within
the State of Florida.

ONLINE SERVICES AND SOFTWARE AGREEMENT

1. Incorporation of Certain Terms, You acknowledge that
You have entered a Postage Meter Rental Agreement with
Neopost USA Inc. (the “Rental Agreement™). Any defined terms
in the Rental Agreement shall have the same meanings in this
Online Services and Software Agreement (“OSS Agreement”).
Sections 12 through 20 of the Rental Agreement are hereby
incorporated into this OSS Agreement, except that any reference
in those sections to the “Rental Agreement” refers to this OSS
Agreement,

2. License Grant and Additional Terms. In exchange for the
license fees that are included in Your Rental Payment, We
hereby grant to You a nonexclusive, nontransferable license to
use the Software products, including related documentation,
described on the Order Form solely for Your own use on or with
the Postage Meter and other products. You warrant and
represent that You will not sell, transfer, disclose or otherwise
make available such Software products or copies thereof to third
parties; provided, however, that the Software products may be
used by Your employees or independent contractors using the
Postage Meter and other products. No title or ownership of the
Software products or any portion thereof is transferred to You.
You acknowledge and agree that there may be additional terms
and conditions that apply to Your use of any Software provided
by Us. Such terms will be provided with the Software and may
be supplemented by Us or third party licensors, from time to
time, by notice to You,

3. Use of Websites, Neopost USA Inc. and/or any of Our
affiliates, or suppliers, including, but not limited to, MailFinance
Inc. may, from time to time, make certain websites available to
You in order to provide You with certain services (“Websites™).
If You access any such Websites, You acknowledge and agree
that Your use of the Website is subject to the terms of use and/or
license terms in effect at the time You use the Website. Such
terms are available on the Websites for Your review. You
acknowledge and agree that such terms may be supplemented
and modified from time to time (“Supplemental Terms”). Your
use of a Website after Supplemental Terms have been issued will
signify Your acceptance of those terms. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this OSS Agreement and the Supplemental
Terms, the Supplemental Terms shall control.

Postage Meter Rental Agreement Version: R-06-13

NEOPOST USA | 478 WHEELERS FARMS ROAD | MILFORD, CT 06461 | TEL: 203.301.3400 | FAX:203.301.2600



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENTS

This Addendum to Agreements is by and between Neopost USA Inc. (“Neopost USA”) and
Champaign Park District (“Customer™) with reference to the following:

A. Neopost USA and Customer are entering into a Postage Meter Rental Agreement (the
“Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Neopost USA will rent a Postage Meter to Customer.

B. Any defined term used herein shall have the same meaning as in the Rental
Agreement.

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and in the Rental Agreement, the
parties agree to amend the Rental Agreement as follows:

1. Section 3, titled “Rental Fee, Payment and Term” is hereby amended to
delete the sixth sentence in it its entirety and replace it with the following: “If We
do not receive a payment in full on or before its due date, You shall pay a fee
equal to the greater of 5% of the amount that is late, or five dollars ($5), but in no
event shall you pay more than the maximum amount allowed by law.”

2. Section 5, titled “Postage Meter Maintenance, Inspections, and
Locations,” is hereby amended to delete the fourth sentence in its entirety and
replace it with the following: “We may, from time to time, access and download
information from Your Postage Meter to provide us with information about the
dollar value amount of Your postage usage and We may share that information
with the United States Postal Service and our servicing dealership.”

The Rental Agreement, neoFunds/TotalFunds Agreement, Online Services and Software
Agreement, and this Addendum contain the complete understanding and agreement between the
parties hereto, and supersede all representations, understandings or agreements prior to the
execution thereof. Any changes or additions to the foregoing agreements will be valid only if
they are in writing and signed by the appropriate parties.

In the event of any conflict between the terms of the Rental Agreement and this Addendum, the
terms of the Addendum shall control.

The parties have caused this Addendum to Agreements to be executed by their duly authorized
representatives on the date set forth below.

Champaign Park District Neopost USA Inc.

By: By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Champaign Park District Rental Addendum 10/7/2015

HPL



	1a
	2a
	1
	2
	3

	3a
	A.
	B.
	C.
	D.




